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Other – provide a description:
Maximum offering amount (if different from target offering amount): 750000.00
Deadline to reach the target offering amount: 07-01-2020

NOTE: If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering
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Total Assets: Most recent fiscal year-end: 0.00 Prior fiscal year-end: 0.00
Cash & Cash Equivalents: Most recent fiscal year-end: 0.00 Prior fiscal year-end: 0.00
Accounts Receivable: Most recent fiscal year-end: 0.00 Prior fiscal year-end: 0.00
Short-term Debt: Most recent fiscal year-end: 0.00 Prior fiscal year-end: 0.00
Long-term Debt: Most recent fiscal year-end: 0.00 Prior fiscal year-end: 0.00
Revenues/Sales: Most recent fiscal year-end: 0.00 Prior fiscal year-end: 0.00
Cost of Goods Sold: Most recent fiscal year-end: 0.00 Prior fiscal year-end: 0.00
Taxes Paid: Most recent fiscal year-end: 0.00 Prior fiscal year-end: 0.00
Net Income: Most recent fiscal year-end: 0.00 Prior fiscal year-end: 0.00

Using the list below, select the jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities:

Jurisdiction Code Jurisdiction Code Jurisdiction Code
X Alabama AL X Montana MT X District of Columbia DC
X Alaska AK X Nebraska NE X Puerto Rico PR
X Arizona AZ X Nevada NV
X Arkansas AR X New Hampshire NH Alberta A0
X California CA X New Jersey NJ British Columbia A1
X Colorado CO X New Mexico NM Manitoba A2
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X Hawaii HI X Oklahoma OK Prince Edward Island A7
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X Illinois IL X Pennsylvania PA Saskatchewan A9
X Indiana IN X Rhode Island RI Yukon B0
X Iowa IA X South Carolina SC Canada (Federal Level) Z4
X Kansas KS X South Dakota SD



X Kentucky KY X Tennessee TN
X Louisiana LA X Texas TX
X Maine ME X Utah UT
X Maryland MD X Vermont VT
X Massachusetts MA X Virginia VA
X Michigan MI X Washington WA
X Minnesota MN X West Virginia WV
X Mississippi MS X Wisconsin WI
X Missouri MO X Wyoming WY
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Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the
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undersigned.

Paul Koenig
(Issuer)

/s/ Paul Koenig, Manager and Chief Executive Officer
(Signature and Title)

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Regulation
Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), this Form C has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the
dates indicated.

/s/ Paul Koenig
(Signature)

Manager and Chief Executive Officer
(Title)

02-26-2020
(Date)



Exhibit A

OFFERING STATEMENT

VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC

VIROMENT CAPITAL LLC OFFERING STATEMENT
750 Promissory Notes at $1,000.00 per Promissory Note

Date of this Offering Statement: February 26, 2020

Deadline to reach the target offering amount: July 1, 2020

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These 
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed 
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or 
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination that 
these securities are exempt from registration.



Respond to each question in each paragraph of this part. Set forth each question and any notes, but not any instructions thereto, in their entirety. If disclosure in response to any 
question is responsive to one or more other questions, it is not necessary to repeat the disclosure. If a question or series of questions is inapplicable or the response is available elsewhere 
in the Form, either state that it is inapplicable, include a cross-reference to the responsive disclosure, or omit the question or series of questions.

Be very careful and precise in answering all questions. Give full and complete answers so that they are not misleading under the circumstances involved. Do not discuss any 
future performance or other anticipated event unless you have a reasonable basis to believe that it will actually occur within the foreseeable future. If any answer requiring significant 
information is materially inaccurate, incomplete or misleading, the Company, its management and principal shareholders may be liable to investors based on that information.

THE COMPANY

1. Name of issuer: VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC

ELIGIBILITY

2. ☒ Check this box to certify that all of the following statements are true for the issuer:

☐ Organized under, and subject to, the laws of a State or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia.
☐ Not subject to the requirement to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
☐ Not an investment company registered or required to be registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940.
☐ Not ineligible to rely on this exemption under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act as a result of a disqualification specified in Rule 503(a) of Regulation 

Crowdfunding. (For more information about these disqualifications, see Question 30 of this Question and Answer format).
☐ Has filed with the Commission and provided to investors, to the extent required, the ongoing annual reports required by Regulation Crowdfunding during the 

two years immediately preceding the filing of this offering statement (or for such shorter period that the issuer was required to file such reports).
☐ Not a development stage company that (a) has no specific business plan or (b) has indicated that its business plan is to engage in a merger or acquisition with an 

unidentified company or companies.

3. Has the issuer or any of its predecessors previously failed to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements of Rule 202 of Regulation Crowdfunding? ☐ Yes ☒ No
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Directors of the Company

4. Provide the following information about each director (and any persons occupying a similar status or performing a similar function) of the issuer:

Name: Paul Koenig
Principal Occupation: Owner / CEO
Employer: Viroment USA, LLC

Dates of Service: January 27, 2020 to present

Dates of Service: June 6, 2015 to present
Employer’s Principal Business:  Produces Technology to Process Hog Waste

List all positions and offices with the issuer held and the period of time in which the director served in the position or office:
Position:   Owner / Manager Dates of Service:  January 27, 2020 to present

Business Experience:

Paul Koenig. Paul was raised on a family “Century Award” farm in central Minnesota USA and later attended the University of Minnesota where he participated in varsity football for 
the Gophers while majoring in business and science. After college Paul became involved in real estate starting out volunteering for property owners eventually becoming one of the 
largest private voucher-based Section 8 HUD housing provider in the upper Midwest. Paul’s personal real estate portfolio has included 750+ real estate transactions, new construction 
builds of 100+ new properties in low income neighborhoods and 100+ fully remodeled (complete code compliance properties) multi-family properties. Currently, Paul is the founder and 
CEO of Viroment USA, LLC, an award-winning clean tech company in the wastewater space. Paul has worked at Viroment USA, LLC since June 6, 2015. The company’s innovative 
technology reduces wastewater sludge footprints by up to 95% creating clean reuse water and a valuable multiuse bio-cake.

In November 2017, Paul was invited to a Beijing China to participate in the historic US Commercial Services Trade Mission event held at the Great Hall of the People in 
Beijing China. Viroment executed contracts in the amount of $800M with Hangzhou Iron and Steel and $100M with Guanye Guangdong Environmental Protection Company Limited; 
both of which are Chinese Government State Owned Companies. The signing event was personally witnessed by United States Secretary Commerce Wilbur Ross, President Donald 
Trump and President Xi Jinping (China). Media Link: https://eblnews.com/video/paul-koenig-us-business-delegation-president-trump-china-253693. Paul has been a strong and 
influencing advocate on both a professional and personal basis. He is widely known to his clients and friends as resourceful. Paul enjoys coaching youth sports, volunteering on 
community association boards and solving large scale problems.

Officers of the Company

5. Provide the following information about each officer (and any persons occupying a similar status or performing a similar function) of the issuer:

Name: Paul Koenig
Title:  Manager and CEO Dates of Service:  January 27, 2020 to present
Responsibilities:   Manage Company Operations

List all positions and offices with the issuer held and the period of time in which the director served in the position or office:  None.
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Business experience:

Paul Koenig (See above under Directors of the Company).

Russ Vering. Russ Vering resides in Scribner, NE and operates Central Plains Milling (CPM) in Howells, Nebraska in a partnership between Russ and Frontier Cooperative of Brainard, 
Nebraska. CPM manufactures feed for swine, cattle and poultry. CPM’s revenues are in excess of $25M/year with growth projections to reach $50M/year. In 2016 Russ purchased the 
former Husker Coop in Columbus NE investing $850,000 to update the facility under the CPM brand. CPM owns a proprietary home-grown recipe or blend of feed for its clients in 
addition to traditional feed stock it sells. This unique blend netted a $1,000,000 distribution agreement with feed giant JMS for distribution of the product across the region. After college 
Russ worked on his family farm and eventually became owner of the family farm. Russ is personally involved with contract wean-to-finish sites in several surrounding counties in 
eastern Nebraska. He has been recognized for his participation in TQA taskforce. Russ is a board member of the Nebraska Pork Producers Association. In his role as a board member 
Russ has been on several US Trade Mission, played a critical role in both charitable events / donations as well as in an advisory position for government oversight and regulatory 
compliance. Russ has been a member of the Viroment Capital, LLC team since January 27, 2020 when the Company was founded.

Chris Reimers. Chris is originally from West Point, Nebraska. Chris attended the University of Nebraska-Lincoln majoring in Agricultural Engineering. Chris was an operations 
manager at ADM in Sioux City, Iowa before he settled in with Settje Agri-Services. In his current role he manages manure marketing & application, agronomy services, and CAFO 
environmental compliance. Chris played an integral role in the Costco “1 Billion Bird Facility” in Nebraska: https://civileats.com/2018/12/11/costcos-100-million-chickens-will-change-
the-future-of-nebraska-farming/. Chris’s responsibilities for this first of its kind project addressed compliance, engineering and groundwork for this block chain supply of Costco’s 
famed “$4.99 for a Four-Pound Chicken” product. Chris’s current footprint at Settje includes manure marketing that spans across their 8,000 barns-built client-base across the Central 
USA. Chris’s top clients control 80% of the regional livestock space. Russ has been a member of the Viroment Capital, LLC team since January 27, 2020 when the Company was 
founded.

Principal Security Holders

6. Provide the name and ownership level of each person, as of the most recent practicable date, who is the beneficial owner of 20 percent or more of the issuer’s outstanding equity 
securities, calculated on the basis of voting power.

Name of Holder No. and Class of Securities Now Held % of Voting Power Prior to, and Following, Offering
Viroment USA, LLC1 500 Units 50%
Russ Vering 250 Units 25%
Chris Reimers 250 Units 25%

Business and Anticipated Business Plan

7. Describe in detail the business of the issuer and the anticipated business plan of the issuer.

The business of Viroment Capital, LLC is to (a) organize barn build packages for the pork industry, which means purchasing the necessary real estate and attending to the construction of 
hog barns, and (b) lease such barns to hog farmers / growers. The Company will equip each hog barn that it builds with a proprietary hog waste treatment system, which will be a portion 
of the assets leased to the hog farmers / growers to be used as a part of their hog farming / growing operations. See Exhibit B – Business and Business Plan for a detailed description of 
the business and business plan of Viroment Capital, LLC.

1 Viroment USA, LLC is an entity founded and controlled by its sole owner, Paul Koenig, Viroment Capital LLC’s Manager and Chief Executive Officer.
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Risk Factors

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These 
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed 
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or 
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination that 
these securities are exempt from registration.

8. Discuss the material factors that make an investment in the issuer speculative or risky:

Risks Related to Real Estate Investing

General real estate risks. The Company will be materially affected by conditions in the real estate markets, the financial markets and the economy generally. In recent years, concerns 
about the mortgage market, high unemployment, the availability and cost of credit have contributed to increase volatility and uncertainty for the economy and financial markets. These 
factors may negatively impact the Company, causing a decline in the market value of the Company’s properties in several cities in Nebraska (the “Properties”), once purchased.

The Company does not own the Properties. The success of the Company is dependent upon the Company’s ability to acquire the Properties, and there are no assurances that the 
Company will be able to do so. The Company will not be able to close on the purchase of the Properties until the proceeds of the offering have been received and closed upon.

Government regulation. The business of acquiring and leasing real estate to be used for agricultural purposes, including specifically hog farming / growing, is subject to a significant 
degree of government regulation. The regulations include potentially costly matters, such as requiring improvements to meet building codes and standards, and environmental matters. 
Any new or increased levels of regulation could adversely impact the profitability of the Company.

Lack of diversification. The Company will acquire, own and operate the Properties, and does not intend to engage in any other business, and will therefore not have the benefit of 
maximum diversity. As a result, any adverse change (a) in the geographic area in which the Properties are located or (b) in the industry(ies) in which the Company’s prospective tenants 
(the “Tenants”) located on the Properties operate could have a significant adverse effect on the Properties and the Company’s business that will not be mitigated or offset by other lines 
of business or investments.

Competition. The real estate industry is highly competitive, and the Company faces competition from other individual and institutional buyers for investment opportunities. These 
competitors may be real estate developers, real estate financing entities, real estate investment trusts, mutual funds, hedge funds, investment banking firms, institutional investors and 
other entities or investors that acquire real estate and may have substantially greater financial resources than those available to the Company. All of these factors may negatively impact 
the performance of the Company.
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The performance and value of the Company are subject to risks associated with its real estate and with the real estate industry. The economic performance of the Company and 
the value of the Properties are subject to the risk that the Properties may not generate revenues sufficient to meet its operating expenses and capital expenditures. Accordingly, the 
Company’s cash flow may be adversely affected, reducing the Company’s ability to meet its repayment obligations to the noteholders under the Promissory Notes. The following 
factors, among others, may adversely affect the income generated by the Company’s intended Properties: (a) downturns in the national, regional and local economies; (b) competition 
from newly-developed properties; (c) localized real estate conditions, such as oversupply or reduced demand for space; (d) changes in interest rates and/or other financial market 
volatility, including changes in the availability of capital; (e) changes in lending regulations and reserve requirements, as well as changes in tax laws and accounting principles; (f) the 
perceptions of Tenants regarding the safety, convenience and attractiveness of the Properties for their intended purposes or otherwise; (g) increased operating costs, including insurance 
expense, utility expense, real estate taxes, state and local taxes, and fluctuating security costs; (h) significant fixed costs associated with the Properties, such as real estate taxes, insurance 
and maintenance costs, which are generally not reduced when circumstances cause a reduction in revenues from the Properties; (i) declines in the financial condition of the Tenants and 
the ability to collect rent from Tenants who are impacted by insolvency, inflation, recessions or other economic events; (j) macro-economic events, including fluctuations in energy 
supplies and changes in the federal government's economic and fiscal policies, that impact the financial condition of Tenants; (k) casualty and condemnation risks; (l) natural disasters, 
civil disturbances, terrorism, or acts of war that may result in uninsured or underinsured losses; and (m) typical financial and operational burdens with respect to the ownership of real 
estate, which include the payment of expenses and taxes, and the cost of the maintenance and improvements of the Properties.

Risks Related to the Properties and the Company’s Operations

The anticipated closing on the Properties is contingent. If the Company is unsuccessful in raising the funds needed to close this offering, it will not be able to invest in the Properties. 
There is no guarantee the Company will be able to raise the capital necessary to invest in the Properties. Additionally, even if the Company receives the proceeds of this offering, there is 
no guarantee that it will ultimately invest in the Properties.

Risk related to illiquid assets. Liquidity relates to the ability of the owner to dispose of assets readily and the price to be paid for them. The Company’s assets are inherently illiquid. 
Such illiquidity could prevent the sale by the Company of the Property at a time when it otherwise might be desirable to do so. This lack of liquidity may have an adverse impact on the 
value of the Company. In addition, illiquid assets may be more difficult to value due to the unavailability of reliable market quotations. The sale of less marketable assets may require 
more time and result in lower prices due to higher brokerage charges and other selling expenses than the sale of more marketable assets.

Success and availability of new technology cannot be assured. The Company’s business plan includes the construction of barns for the commercial raising of hogs on the Properties, 
including construction and implementation of a hog waste treatment system in each barn (the “Treatment System”). Each Treatment System incorporates proprietary technology (the 
“Technology”) which the Company does not own. The Technology is owned by the Manager (i.e., Viroment USA, LLC). The Company will purchase the Treatment System from the 
Manager for installation at the Properties. Because the Company does not own the Technology and underlying intellectual property rights to the Technology, availability of the 
Technology to produce and install the Treatment System in the Properties cannot be assured. The Treatment System will be a portion of the assets leased to the Tenants of the Properties. 
The Treatment System and the Technology will be used by the Tenants as a part of their hog farming / growing operations product. A component of the Company’s business plan is the 
successful implementation of the Treatment System and the Technology, which will allow the Company to harvest dried hog waste and sell it for a profit to third parties. The 
Technology is new technology without a history of adoption at the commercial level. The success of the Company will depend in part on the adoption of the Treatment Systems and 
Technology by the Company’s Tenants. It is not possible to predict the success of the Treatment Systems or Technology or whether the Treatment Systems and Technology will be 
adopted without problems by the Tenants. The effective performance and reliability of the Treatments Systems and Technology are critical to the Company’s reputation and its ability to 
attract and retain hog farming Tenants.
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Risks associated with Tenants. The industry of the Tenants for the Properties, hog farming / growing, is highly competitive, and the Tenants face competition from other individual and 
institutional hog farmers / growers. These competitors may be large, corporate agricultural producers with substantially greater financial resources than those available to the Tenants. 
The Tenants rely on third party vendors and other suppliers to operate their businesses. In the event one or more of these third party providers experiences an interruption in its business 
operations, a Tenant could experience a material adverse effect on its business operations or financial condition. Other economic and public health conditions in the markets in which the 
Tenants operate, including rising commodity and fuel prices, higher labor costs, increased transportation costs, natural disasters, terrorist attacks, outbreaks of public health pandemics or 
other diseases, or third party conduct could negatively impact the business of the Tenants. Various economic and public health conditions can have a significant negative impact on the 
business of the Tenants. A decline in the financial condition of the Tenants, due to market competition, failure of a third party providers or otherwise, and the ability to collect rent from 
such Tenants may adversely affect the Company’s ability to meet its operating expenses, including its repayment obligations to holders of the Promissory Notes.

Cash Flow Risk. Any projected cash flows included in this offering statement should be considered speculative and are qualified in their entirety by the assumptions, information and 
risks disclosed in this offering statement. The assumptions and facts upon which such projections are based are subject to variations that may arise as future events actually occur. 
Investors are advised to consult with their own tax and business advisors concerning the validity and reasonableness of the factual, accounting and tax assumptions. The Company and 
the Manager make no representation or warranty as to the future profitability of an investment in the Company. A decrease in rental revenues of the Company may materially and 
adversely affect the Company’s cash flow. No assurance can be given that future cash flow will be sufficient to cover all operating expenses. If the Company's revenues are insufficient 
to pay operating costs, the Company may be required to use reserves or seek additional funds. There can be no assurance that additional funds will be available, if needed, or, if such 
funds are available, that they will be available on terms deemed acceptable to the Manager.

Assessment of Investment Yields. No assurances can be given that the Company can make an accurate assessment of the yield to be produced by the Properties. Projected operating 
results will normally be based primarily on the judgment of the Manager. In all cases, projections are only estimates of future results based upon assumptions made at the time the 
projections are developed. There can be no assurance that the projected results will be obtained, and actual results may vary significantly from the projections. Many factors beyond the 
control of the Company are likely to influence the yield on the Property, including, but not limited to, competitive conditions in the local real estate market and local and general 
economic conditions.

Risks Related to an Emerging / Early-Stage Company

No operating history. We were incorporated as a limited liability company in January of 2020. Accordingly, we have no history upon which an evaluation of our prospects and future 
performance can be made. Our proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated with new enterprises. The likelihood of our creation of a viable business must be 
considered in light of the problems, expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays frequently encountered in connection with the inception of a business operation. There can be no 
assurances that we will ever operate profitably. We may not be able to successfully implement or operate our business plan. You should not rely on the past performance of the Manager 
or the Manager’s members, to predict our future performance. You should consider our business, operations and prospects in light of the risks, expenses and challenges faced as an early-
stage company.

Limited operating history of manager. The Manager has limited prior operating histories in other facets of the real estate industry and has not previously formed an entity for the same 
purpose as the Company. To date, the principal activities of the Company has consisted of organizational matters, performing due diligence on the Properties and the preparation of this 
offering. Although the Manager and affiliates of the Manager have some experience in the ownership, development, leasing, construction and management of real estate, neither the 
Company nor the Manager have any significant operating history.
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Limited working capital and reserves. The Manager will budget a limited sum for operating reserves and for start-up expenses and carrying costs associated with investment into the 
Properties. In the event of delays, the Company may require additional funds. There can be no assurance that such additional funds can be obtained by the Company, and failure to 
obtain such funds could adversely affect the Company’s operations.

Limited valuation of the manager and limited net worth of its member. The Manager has a limited valuation and its member has a limited net worth, and neither has any obligation 
to make capital contributions or loans to the Company. Although neither the Manager nor its member will generally be liable for obligations of the Company during the time that the 
Company maintains its registration as a limited liability company, lenders and other suppliers or creditors dealing with the Company may be influenced by the valuation of the Company, 
the valuation of the Manager and the net worth of the Manager’s member in extending credit to the Company, which may have an adverse effect on the Company.

Personnel. If the Company fails to retain its key personnel, it may not be able to achieve its anticipated level of growth and the Company’s business could suffer. The Company’s future 
financial success depends, in part, on its ability to attract and retain key personnel. The Company’s future financial success also depends on the continued contributions of the Manager 
and the Company’s members, executive officers and other key technical personnel, each of whom would be difficult to replace. The process to replace any of the Manager or the 
Company’s executive officers and other key technical personnel would involve significant time and expense and may significantly delay or prevent the achievement of the Company’s 
business objectives.

The Company’s management team does not work full-time for the Company. The Company’s management team has other professional commitments and engagements and do not 
devote their full-time to the Company. Accordingly, the Company may not be able to operate with the efficiency and effectiveness as it would if its management were full-time 
employees.

The Company’s operating expenses and administrative costs may be higher than expected. The Company will incur various operating expenses and administrative costs in 
connection with this offering and the operation of the Properties (including, but not limited to, legal and accounting fees). If expenses are higher than projected, the amounts available for 
repayment of the Company’s obligations under the Promissory Notes to the noteholders will decrease.

Future fundraising may affect the rights of investors. In order to fully fund our business plan, the Company is likely to raise funds again in the future, either by offerings of securities 
or through borrowing from banks or other sources. The terms of future capital-raising, such as loan agreements, may include covenants that give creditors greater rights over the 
financial resources of the company. The Company may procure debt financing secured by the assets of the company, which would have priority over unsecured debt obligations of the 
Company like the securities offered in this offering, the Promissory Notes. Any ability to generate or pay profits will be contingent upon first repaying any such debt and contractual 
obligations.

The Company may require additional funds. The Company anticipates that the proceeds from this offering will provide the Company with sufficient capital to invest in the Properties. 
However, the Company may require additional future capital to sustain growth and profitability or to satisfy losses and other liabilities. Changes in the planned operations of the 
Company may result in a change in the timing and amount of required additional capital. There can be no assurance that additional capital will be available to the Company when needed 
or on terms acceptable to the Company.

The Company expects to incur additional debt. The Company expects to incur debt, including debt secured by the Company’s assets, to partially fund construction of the barns on the 
Properties. Complying with obligations under such indebtedness may have a material adverse effect on the Company and on the Company’s ability to repay its obligations under the 
Promissory Notes. Any secured debt incurred by the Company in connection with construction of the barns or otherwise will have payment and lien priority over the Promissory Notes 
issued in this offering.
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The Company may be unable to secure additional necessary financing. The Company cannot guarantee that it will be able to raise additional funds on commercially feasible terms or 
at all. Thus, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to continue to develop and fully implement its business plan or continue to operate if the necessary funding is not 
available.

The Company may not generate sufficient revenues, or any revenues, that would enable you to recover your investment or make any profits. The business of the Company is 
based upon the development of discrete Properties. Any revenues generated will need to cover all costs, expenses, repayment of debt (principal and interest), as well as other contractual 
obligations of the Company (including future contractual obligations), including payment of expenses that are superior in right to the rights of a Promissory Note holder.

Casualty Losses. Although the Manager expects to obtain and keep in force comprehensive liability and casualty insurances on the Properties, there are certain types of losses that are 
either uninsurable or not economically insurable. Such losses, include, but may not be limited to earthquakes, tornadoes, high winds, war and floods. Should any of these or other 
disasters occur, the Company could suffer material adverse effects. In addition, in the event of significant damage to or destruction of the Properties, the Company may elect to accept 
insurance proceeds and not elect to rebuild the Project subjected to loss. If insurance proceeds are not used to replace the Properties, the Company may end up with a Properties lot not 
easily saleable. As a result, the Company could suffer reduced revenues and may need to re-adjust its accounting. In addition, new developments in the insurance markets could make 
coverage for certain risks either unavailable or prohibitively expensive. As a result, the Company may be unable to obtain certain types of coverage, or coverage at acceptable levels of 
cost, and may be exposed to various risks, which, in the past, have been insurable in the ordinary course of business.

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest / Affiliate Transactions

The Manager interests may conflict with yours. Upon the completion of this Offering, the Manager will control day-to-day activities of the Company and certain decisions such as the 
investment in the Properties. The Manager thereby will determine all matters of general policy of the Company. The Company cannot assure you that the interests of the Manager will 
always align precisely with your interests.

Creation of future funds. The Manager will be investing in other real estate projects and that may impact the duties of the Manager with respect to this offering. The Manager cannot 
assure that it will adequately manage multiple investments with different investment strategies. Negative performance of future Properties may indirectly impact the performance of 
Properties by drawing the Manager‘s attention towards the poorly performing Properties.

Lack of Separate Legal Representation. The Company is represented by the law firm of Saul Ewing Arnstein & Lehr LLP in Minneapolis, Minnesota. Potential investors should seek 
separate legal counsel to review documents related to this offering and advocate for their individual legal needs.

Affiliate Transactions. The Company may engage in transactions with affiliates, subsidiaries or other related parties, which may be on terms which are not arm’s-length but will be in 
all cases consistent with the duties of the management of the Company to its unitholders or its noteholders (if any, with respect to the noteholders). The Company plans to use the 
Technology in its operations, specifically by installing Treatment Systems purchased from the Manager (i.e., Viroment USA, LLC) at the Properties. The proprietary intellectual 
property rights to the Technology are owned by the Manager. The Company will license or otherwise acquire the right to use the Technology in its operations by purchasing the 
Treatment Systems from the Manager for installation at the Properties. This transaction is an example of a transaction with an affiliate in which the Company will engage.

Risks Related to the Method and Terms of this Offering, Including the Promissory Notes

The Promissory Notes are “Restricted Securities.” The Promissory Notes the Company is offering in this placement have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the 
“1933 Act”) or under the securities laws of the states in which they will be offered. You will not be able to resell the Promissory Notes unless they are subsequently registered or an 
exemption from registration is available. The Company has no obligation to register the Promissory Notes under the 1933 Act or any state securities law. The Company will refuse to 
transfer your Promissory Notes to a potential buyer if such a transfer would violate federal or state securities laws. As a result of these restrictions, investors hereby must bear the 
economic risks of their investment for an indefinite period of time. An investment in the Company is suitable only for sophisticated investors who can afford to bear the risk of a 
complete loss of such investment. A purchase of the Promissory Notes should be considered only by persons financially able to maintain their investment and who can afford a loss of all 
or a substantial part of such investment.
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No guarantee of any return of your investment. While the Company intends to make repayments to the noteholders from monies collected and the proceeds it receives from operation 
of the Properties, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to fully repay all notes plus accrued interest at maturity. There can be no assurance as to whether or when you will 
get your invested capital returned. The potential will exist for a partial or total loss of your investment. You will not have a secured interest in the Properties.

Other limitations on voluntary and involuntary transfers; including one year requirement. In addition to restrictions of the transfer of the Promissory Notes that are imposed by 
law, the Promissory Notes are subject to numerous contractual limitations that will substantially limit your ability to transfer your Promissory Notes.

Limited resale rights. The Company offers no guaranteed rights of repurchase prior to maturity date. You should be cognizant that you will not be able to demand redemption of your 
promissory notes under any circumstances. Your investment will be “locked up” for at least one year and should therefore be viewed as a long-term and illiquid investment.

No voting rights. The Promissory Notes the Company is offering provide no governance rights and voting rights. You will not have any right to participate in the management of the 
Company. The Manager will control day to day activities of the Company and all decisions. You should not invest in the Promissory Notes unless you are willing to entrust all decisions 
to the Manager.

The offering price was arbitrarily determined. The price of the Promissory Notes in this offering was arbitrarily determined by the Company. You must rely on your own business 
and investment background and your own investigation of the business and affairs of the Company in determining whether to invest in the Promissory Notes. We make no representation 
as to the value of the Promissory Notes, and there can be no assurance that you will be able to sell your Promissory Notes at any price.

No registration rights. The Company does not intend to register the Promissory Notes or any of its securities with the Securities and Exchange Commission and you will have no right 
to require the Company to do so.

The Company has broad discretion in the application of the proceeds from the sale of the Promissory Notes. The management of the Company has broad discretion to adjust the 
application and allocation of the net proceeds of this offering in order to address changed circumstances and opportunities. As a result of the foregoing, the success of the Company will 
be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of the management of the Company with respect to the application and allocation of any net proceeds received in this 
offering.

Factual statements have not been independently verified. No party has been engaged to verify the accuracy or adequacy of any of the factual statements contained in this offering 
statement. In particular, neither legal counsel nor any other party has been engaged to verify any statements relating to the experience, skills, contacts or other attributes of the managers, 
officers and employees of the Company, or to the anticipated future performance of the Company.

An investment in the Company is speculative. Purchasers of the Promissory Notes offered hereby may not realize a return on their investment and could lose their investment. 
Investors should carefully review these Risk Factors and consult with their attorneys, tax advisors, and/or business advisors prior to purchasing the Promissory Notes offered hereby.

Risks Related to Federal and State Taxation

Federal Tax Laws Subject to Change. It is possible that the current federal income tax treatment accorded the Company and its noteholders will be modified by legislative, 
administrative or judicial action in the future. The nature of additional changes in federal income tax law, if any, cannot be determined prior to the enactment of any new tax legislation, 
the announcement of any new administrative guidance or a final adjudication in court, as applicable. However, any such changes in current federal income tax law could significantly 
alter the tax consequences and decrease the after-tax rate of return of an investment in the Company. Potential investors therefore should seek, and must rely on, the advice of their own 
tax advisors with respect to the possible impact on their investments of recent legislation, as well as any future proposed tax legislation or administrative or judicial action.

State, Local and Foreign Taxes. The Company, as well as the noteholders, may be subject to various state, local and foreign taxes, all of which also are subject to change. Prospective 
investors are urged to consult their own tax advisors regarding the state, local and foreign tax consequences of investing in the Company.

10



THE OFFERING

9. What is the purpose of this offering?

The Company intends to use the net proceeds of this offering for the purchase of the Properties (including purchase of the real estate and construction of the hog barns), as well as 
working capital and general corporate purposes related thereto, including the specific items listed in Item 10 below. While the Company expects to use the net proceeds from the offering 
in the manner described above, it cannot specify with certainty the particular uses of the net proceeds that it will receive from this offering. Accordingly, the Company will have broad 
discretion in using these proceeds. In addition, in securing additional debt financing, the Company has the discretion to use its assets, including cash raised through this offering, as 
collateral to secure such financing.

10. How does the issuer intend to use the proceeds of this offering?

The Company estimates that it will use the proceeds from this fundraising for the following approximate costs, expenses and fees in connection with the production of the film:

If target offering 
amount sold:

If maximum 
amount sold:

Total Proceeds: $ 250,000.00 $ 750,000.00
Less:  Offering expenses (e.g., portal fees, etc.): $ 38,500.00 $ 68,500.00
Net Proceeds: $ 211,500.00 $ 681,500.00
Use of Proceeds:
Project soft costs pre-construction $ 15,000.00 $ 45,000.00
Land and project deposits $ 40,000.00 $ 130,000.00
Equipment $ 138,500.00 $ 461,500.00
Marketing: $ 3,000.00 $ 7,000.00
Contingency expenses: $ 10,000.00 $ 28,000.00
Professional fees (legal, accounting): $ 5,000.00 $ 10,000.00
Total Use of Proceeds: $ 211,500.00 $ 681,500.00
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DELIVERY & CANCELLATIONS

11. How will the issuer complete the transaction and deliver securities to the investors?

If the Company reaches its target offering amount prior to the deadline, it may conduct an initial closing of the offering early if its provides notice about the new offering deadline at 
least five business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material change that would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the investment commitment). 
The Company will notify investors if it conducts an initial closing. Thereafter, it may conduct additional closings from time to time at its discretion until the deadline date.

The following describes the process to invest in the Company, including how the Company will complete an Investor’s transaction and deliver securities to the investor.

1. Investor Commitment. The Investor will submit a requested investment amount. When doing so, during the offering period or immediately after the deadline, the Investor 
will also execute a Subscription Agreement with the Company (“Subscription Agreement”), using the Investor’s electronic signature. For more information regarding the terms of 
Subscription Agreement, see Exhibit C – Subscription Agreement.

2. Acceptance of the Investment. If the Investor Agreement is complete, the Investor’s commitment will be recorded. After the offering closes, the Subscription Agreement, as 
well as a promissory note (“Promissory Note”), will be counter-signed or executed by the Company. Each of the executed Subscription Agreement and Promissory Note will then be sent 
to the investor via email.

3. Investor Transfer of Funds. The Investor will be responsible for transferring funds into an escrow account held with a third party bank on behalf of the Company.

4. Closing: Original Deadline. Unless the Company meets the target offering amount early, Investor funds will be transferred from the escrow account to the Company on the 
deadline date identified in the Cover Page.

5. Early Closings. If the target offering amount is met prior to the original deadline date, the Company may close the offering earlier, so long as the Company gives you at least 
five business days’ advance notice of the earlier closing date. The Company will reschedule the offering deadline and notify you at least five business days’ notice of the new deadline, 
of your right to cancel commitments for any reason until 48 hours prior to the new offering deadline, and whether the Company will continue to accept investments during the 48 hour 
period prior to the new offering deadline. At the time of the new deadline, your funds will be transferred to the Company from the escrow account, provided that the target offering 
amount is still met after any cancellations.

6. Book Entry. Investments will be in book entry form. This means that Investor will not receive a certificate representing his or her investment. Each investment will be 
recorded in the Company’s books and records and reflected on the Company’s balance sheet and profit and loss statement in the same manner as other promissory note debts.
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12. How can an investor cancel an investment commitment?

NOTE: Investors may cancel an investment commitment until 48 hours prior to the deadline identified in these offering materials.

The intermediary will notify investors when the target offering amount has been met.

If the issuer reaches the target offering amount prior to the deadline identified in the offering materials, it may close the offering early if it provides notice about the new 
offering deadline at least five business days prior to such new offering deadline (absent a material change that would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation 
of the investment commitment).

If an investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the 48-hour period prior to the offering deadline, the funds will be released to the issuer upon closing of the 
offering and the investor will receive securities in exchange for his or her investment.

If an investor does not reconfirm his or her investment commitment after a material change is made to the offering, the investor's investment commitment will be cancelled 
and the committed funds will be returned.

An Investor's right to cancel. An Investor may cancel his or her investment commitment at any time until 48 hours prior to the offering deadline.

If there is a material change to the terms of the offering or the information provided to the Investor about the offering and/or the Company, the Investor will be provided 
notice of the change and must re-confirm his or her investment commitment within five business days of receipt of the notice. If the Investor does not reconfirm, he or she will 
receive notifications disclosing that the commitment was cancelled, the reason for the cancellation, and the refund amount that the investor is required to receive. If a material 
change occurs within five business days of the maximum number of days the offering is to remain open, the offering will be extended to allow for a period of five business days 
for the investor to reconfirm.

If the Investor cancels his or her investment commitment during the period when cancellation is permissible, or does not reconfirm a commitment in the case of a material 
change to the investment, or the offering does not close, all of the Investor's funds will be returned within five business days.

The Company's right to cancel. The Subscription Agreement you will execute with the Company provides the Company the right to cancel for any reason before the offering 
deadline.

If the sum of the investment commitments from all investors does not equal or exceed the target offering amount at the time of the offering deadline, no securities will be sold 
in the offering, investment commitments will be cancelled and committed funds will be returned.

In addition, the Company may cap at 450 the total number of investors who will be allowed to invest through the offering that are not “accredited investors,” as defined in 
Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933. In the event that more than 450 non-accredited investors are initially accepted into an offering in step (2) 
described in Question 11, the Company may cancel investments based on the order in which payments by Investors were received, or other criteria at the discretion of the 
Company, before the offering deadline.
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OWNERSHIP AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Offering

13. Describe the terms of the securities being offered.

The following is a description of the terms of the Promissory Notes. Also refer to the Form of Promissory Note which is Exhibit D to this Offering Statement for additional 
details.

Form of Investment – Unsecured Indebtedness

Investments for all Subscribers through this offering will be in the form of an unsecured Promissory Note, which is a debt instrument. The Promissory Notes will be considered an 
indebtedness obligation of the Company. Each Promissory Note has the same maturity date and principal sum; however, the rate of return on each Promissory Note may vary based on 
the amount invested by the individual investor, as described in the “Term of Notes” section below. Monthly payments may vary based the specific rate of return for a Promissory Note 
(as described in the “Term of Notes” section below). Monthly payments to each individual investor may vary as well based on the principal of the aggregate number of Promissory Notes 
held by such investor.

The Promissory Notes are a general debt obligation of the Company and are not secured by a security interest in any assets of the Company.

Maturity

The principal and unpaid accrued interest on each Promissory Note then outstanding will be due and payable upon demand by the investor on or after the date that is thirty-six (36) 
months following the date of the issuance of such Promissory Note.

Annual Rate of Return / Interest Rate

Each Promissory Note will have a principal balance of $1,000.00. Investors who purchase an aggregate number of Promissory Notes equal to or greater than five (5) Promissory Notes 
(i.e., an investor who invests an aggregate of at least $5,000) will be entitled to receive a minimum cumulative, annual return calculated as follows with respect to each such Promissory 
Note:

● eight percent (8.0%), if the investor purchases at least 5 Promissory Notes for an aggregate of $5,000 but less than 50 Promissory Notes for an aggregate of $50,000;

● nine percent (9.0%), if the investor purchases at least 50 Promissory Notes for an aggregate of $50,000 but less than 100 Promissory Notes for an aggregate of $100,000;

● ten percent (10.0%), if the investor purchases at least 100 Promissory Notes for an aggregate of $100,000 but less than 200 Promissory Notes for an aggregate of $200,000;

● eleven percent (11.0%), if the investor purchases at least 200 Promissory Notes for an aggregate of $200,000 but less than 500 Promissory Notes for an aggregate of $500,000; 
and

● twelve percent (12.0%), if the investor purchases at least 500 Promissory Notes for an aggregate of at least $500,000.

Payments on each Promissory Note will be made to each investor quarterly, beginning with the last day of the fourth month following the closing date of the Offering takes place for the 
Subscriber, and then the last day of every third month thereafter.
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Prepayment

The Promissory Notes will be subordinate in right of payment to all current and future indebtedness of the Company for borrowed money to banks, commercial finance lenders or other 
institutions regularly engaged in the business of lending money (whether or not such indebtedness is secured).

Priority

The Promissory Notes will be subordinate in right of payment to all current and future indebtedness of the Company for borrowed money to banks, commercial finance lenders or other 
institutions regularly engaged in the business of lending money (whether or not such indebtedness is secured).

Promissory Note Payments if Company is Dissolved

The Promissory Notes will be treated as an unsecured debt of the Company during a dissolution and the maturity date of such Promissory Note will be accelerated to the date of 
dissolution of the Company.

Transfer Restrictions and Right of First Refusal

The securities being offered may not be transferred by any purchaser of such securities during the one year period beginning when the securities were issued or after such one year 
period without the express written consent of the Manager, unless such securities are transferred:

● to the issuer;

● to an accredited investor;

● as part of an offering registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission: or

● to a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser 
or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

14. Do the securities offered have voting rights? ☐ Yes ☒ No

Holders of the Promissory Note will not receive any voting rights.

15. Are there any limitations on any voting or other rights identified above? ☐ Yes ☒ No

RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER OF THE SECURITIES BEING OFFERED:

The securities being offered may not be transferred by any purchaser of such securities during the one year period beginning when the securities were issued or after such one year 
period without the express written consent of the board, unless such securities are transferred:

1. to the issuer;

2. to an accredited investor;

3. as part of an offering registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission: or

4. to a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser 
or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.
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NOTE: The term “accredited investor” means any person who comes within any of the categories set forth in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D, or who the seller reasonably 
believes comes within any of such categories, at the time of the sale of the securities to that person.

The term “member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent” Includes a child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, 
sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law of the purchaser, and includes adoptive relationships. The term “spousal 
equivalent” means a cohabitant occupying a relationship generally equivalent to that of a spouse.

DESCRIPTION OF ISSUER’S SECURITIES

16. What other securities or classes of securities of the issuer are outstanding? Describe the material terms of any other outstanding securities or classes of securities of the issuer.

Class of Security

Securities 
(or Amount) 
Authorized

Securities
(or Amount) 
Outstanding Voting Rights

Units -- 1,000 Yes

For more information regarding the terms of the Company’s Units, see Exhibit E – Operating Agreement.

17. How may the rights of the securities being offered be materially limited, diluted or qualified by the rights of any other class of security identified above?

As a limited liability company, the Company is not required to authorize a set number of units and it has the right, with the consent of a majority of the Units, to issue additional Units 
and to create and issue new classes of securities. The rights of unsecured creditors, such as holders of the Promissory Notes, will generally be senior to those of members of the 
Company in the event of dissolution. Additionally, the Company has the right to enter into loan agreements and/or promissory notes, either secured or unsecured that may have priority 
rights over the Promissory Notes issued to investors in this offering.

Describe any other rights:

18. Are there any differences not reflected above between the securities being offered and each other class of security of the issuer?

The members holding Units may in some cases also be officers and/or directors of the Company.

19. How could the exercise of rights held by the principal shareholders identified in Question 6 above affect the purchasers of the securities being offered?

The principal shareholders identified in Question 6 above have, in aggregate, control over all of the Company’s / issuer’s business operations. The investors in this offering, as 
holders of only unsecured promissory notes (in the case of the Promissory Notes), cannot, individually or as a group remove the principal shareholders or otherwise have control over the 
business of the Company.

20. How are the securities being offered being valued? Include examples of methods for how such securities may be valued by the issuer in the future, including during subsequent 
corporate actions.

The value of the Promissory Note is based on the principal of the Note, and no other valuation methodology. The return on investment for each Promissory Note is based on 
various market factors and does not necessarily bear any relationship to the Company’s book value, assets, earnings or other generally accepted valuation criteria.
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The offering price for the Promissory Notes offered pursuant to this Form C and Offering Statement has been determined arbitrarily by the Company, and does not necessarily 
bear any relationship to the Company’s book value, assets, earnings or other generally accepted valuation criteria. The value of the Promissory Note is based on the principal of the Note, 
and no other valuation methodology. The return on investment for each Promissory Note is based on various market factors and does not necessarily bear any relationship to the 
Company’s book value, assets, earnings or other generally accepted valuation criteria. In determining the offering price, the Company did not employ investment banking firms or other 
outside organizations to make an independent appraisal or evaluation. Accordingly, the offering price should not be considered to be indicative of the actual value of the securities 
offered hereby.

21. What are the risks to purchasers of the securities relating to minority ownership in the issuer?

An investor with a Promissory Note will hold no shareholder position in the Company and does not have any voting rights. Thus, a noteholder will be extremely limited as to 
his/her/its ability to control or influence the governance and operations of the Company. The marketability and value of the noteholder’s interest in the Company, evidenced by the 
Promissory Note, will depend upon many factors outside the control of the investor. The Company will be managed by its officers and be governed in accordance with the strategic 
direction and decision-making of its management, and the investor will have no independent right to name or remove an officer or member of the management of the Company. 
Following the investor’s investment in the Company, the Company may sell Promissory Notes or equity interests to additional investors, some of which may have senior rights to those 
of the investor’s Promissory Note. The amount of additional financing needed by the Company, if any, will depend upon the maturity and objectives of the Company.

22. What are the risks to purchasers associated with corporate actions, including additional issuances of securities, issuer repurchases of securities, a sale of the issuer or of assets of 
the issuer or transactions with related parties?

Additional issuances of securities. Following the investor’s investment in the Company via a Promissory Note, the Company may sell interests and/or promissory notes to 
additional investors, some of which may have senior rights to those of the investor’s Promissory Note.

Issuer repurchases of securities. The Company may have authority to repurchase its securities from holders. Such repurchase will typically have little effect on the investor 
because the investor holds a Promissory Note and is not a shareholder/member of the Company.

A sale of the issuer or of assets of the Company / issuer. A Promissory Note will either be assumed by a prospective buyer or paid in full, including principal and accrued 
interest, if a change of control occurs.

Transactions with related parties. The investor should be aware that there will be occasions when the Company may encounter potential conflicts of interest in its operations. On 
any issue involving conflicts of interest, the executive management of the Company will be guided by their good faith judgement as to the Company’s best interests. The Company may 
engage in transactions with affiliates, subsidiaries or other related parties, which may be on terms which are not arm’s-length but will be in all cases consistent with the duties of the 
management of the Company to its unitholders or its noteholders (if any, with respect to the noteholders). By acquiring a Promissory Note, the investor will be deemed to have 
acknowledged the existence of any such actual or potential conflicts of interest and to have waived any claim with respect to any liability arising from the existence of any such conflict 
of interest.

23. Describe the material terms of any indebtedness of the issuer.

The Company does not currently have any indebtedness.
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24. What other exempt offerings has the issuer conducted within the past three years?

The Company has not conducted any offerings within the past three years. This offering is the Company’s first offering.

Related party transactions

25. Was or is the issuer or any entities controlled by or under common control with the issuer a party to any transaction since the beginning of the issuer's last fiscal year, or any 
currently proposed transaction, where the amount involved exceeds five percent of the aggregate amount of capital raised by the issuer in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the 
Securities Act during the preceding 12-month period, including the amount the issuer seeks to raise in the current offering, in which any of the following persons had or is to 
have a direct or indirect material interest:

(1) any director or officer of the issuer;

(2) any person who is, as of the most recent practicable date, the beneficial owner of 20 percent or more of the issuer's outstanding voting equity securities, 
calculated on the basis of voting power;

(3) if the issuer was incorporated or organized within the past three years, any promoter of the issuer; or

(4) any immediate family member of any of the foregoing persons.

No.

FINANCIAL CONDITION OF THE ISSUER

26. Does the issuer have an operating history?

No.

27. Describe the financial condition of the issuer. including, to the extent material, liquidity, capital resources and historical results of operations.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

A prospective investor should read the following discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations together with the Company’s financial 
statements and the related notes and other financial information included elsewhere in this Offering Statement. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis, 
including information regarding the strategy and plans for the Company’s business, includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. A prospective investor 
should review the “Risk Factors” section for a discussion of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-
looking statements contained in the following discussion and analysis.

Overview

Viroment Capital, LLC is a real estate development company based in Minneapolis, Minnesota which has licensed or otherwise acquired the right to use proprietary hog waste treatment 
technology and purchased treatment systems incorporating such technology from an affiliate. The Company plans to (1) purchase real estate in Nebraska; (2) construct a barn specially 
purposed for growing hogs commercially on such property; (3) lease the barn to a commercial hog grower; and, (4) utilize the proprietary hog waste treatment technology and treatment 
systems to harvest dried hog waste from the barn to sell to third parties.

Milestones

Viroment Capital, LLC was incorporated in the State of Delaware on January 27, 2020.

Historical Results of Operations

Since its incorporation and organization, the Company has had limited operations upon which prospective investors may base an evaluation of its performance.

Revenues

The Company has not generated any revenues since its incorporation and organization. The Company does not expect to generate any revenues until September 1, 2020, at the earliest.

Cash and Expenses

The Company had cash in hand of $1,000, as of February 19, 2020. From February 19, 2020 through the date of the Company’s Form C filing, the Company incurred an additional 
$15,000 in expenses, consisting of $15,000 for professional fees incurred in preparation for this offering.

In the coming three to six months, the Company expects to incur expenses in connection with (1) project soft costs pre-construction; (2) land and project deposits; and, (3) equipment.

Sources of Capital

The Company expects to engage in additional fundraising activities, including debt financing, as may be approved by the Manager and the Company’s members. In particular, the 
Company expects to procure debt financing using the purchased real estate as well as the constructed barn as collateral. It is the possible that the Company offers a security interest in all 
of its assets, including cash on hand, as collateral for access to debt capital. The Company may also raise further funds through additional issuances of equity securities.

Liquidity & Capital Resources

The Company currently has $1,000 capital on which to rely. In addition to this offering, the Company expects to seek other sources of funding including debt financing, which may be 
secured debt financing, and equity fundraising.

The Company will likely require additional financing in excess of the proceeds from this offering in order to perform operations over the lifetime of the Company. Except as otherwise 
described herein, we do not have additional sources of capital other than the proceeds from the offering. Because of the complexities and uncertainties in establishing a new business 
strategy, it is not possible to adequately project whether the proceeds of this offering will be sufficient to enable us to implement our strategy.

This complexity and uncertainty will be increased if less than the maximum amount of securities offered in this offering is sold. The Company intends to raise additional capital 
simultaneously with this offering and in the future from investors. Although capital may be available for early-stage companies, there is no guarantee that the Company will receive any 
investments from investors.
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Financial Information

28. Include the financial information specified below covering the two (2) most recently completed fiscal years or the period(s) since inception, if shorter:

For financial information please see Exhibit H – Financial Statements – attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

29. With respect to the issuer, any predecessor of the issuer, any affiliated issuer, any director, officer, general partner or managing member of the issuer, any beneficial owner of 
20 percent or more of the issuer's outstanding voting equity securities, calculated in the same form as described in Question 6 of this Question and Answer format, any promoter 
connected with the issuer in any capacity at the time of such sale, any person that has been or will be paid (directly or indirectly) remuneration for solicitation of purchasers in 
connection with such sale of securities, or any general partner, director, officer or managing member of any such solicitor, prior to May 16, 2016:

(1) Has any such person been convicted, within 10 years (or five years, in the case of issuers, their predecessors and affiliated issuers) before the filing of this 
offering statement, of any felony or misdemeanor:

(i) in connection with the purchase or sale of any security? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(ii) involving the making of any false filing with the Commission? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(iii) arising out of the conduct of the business of an underwriter, broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, investment adviser, funding portal or paid 
solicitor of purchasers of securities? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(2) Is any such person subject to any order, judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, entered within five years before the filing of the 
information required by Section 4A(b) of the Securities Act that, at the time of filing of this offering statement, restrains or enjoins such person from engaging 
or continuing to engage in any conduct or practice:

(i) in connection with the purchase or sale of any security? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(ii) involving the making of any false filing with the Commission? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(iii) arising out of the conduct of the business of an underwriter, broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, investment adviser, funding portal or paid 
solicitor of purchasers of securities? ☐ Yes ☒ No
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(3) Is any such person subject to a final order of a state securities commission (or an agency or officer of a state performing like functions); a state authority that 
supervises or examines banks, savings associations or credit unions; a state insurance commission (or an agency or officer of a state performing like 
functions); an appropriate federal banking agency; the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission; or the National Credit Union Administration that:

(i) at the time of the filing of this offering statement bars the person from:

(A) association with an entity regulated by such commission, authority, agency or officer? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(B) engaging in the business of securities, insurance or banking? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(C) engaging in savings association or credit union activities? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(ii) constitutes a final order based on a violation of any law or regulation that prohibits fraudulent, manipulative or deceptive conduct and for which the 
order was entered within the 10-year period ending on the date of the filing of this offering statement? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(4) Is any such person subject to an order of the Commission entered pursuant to Section 15(b) or 15B(c) of the Exchange Act or Section 203(e) or (f) of the 
Investment Advisers Act of 1940 that, at the time of the filing of this offering statement:

(i) suspends or revokes such person's registration as a broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, investment adviser or funding portal? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(ii) places limitations on the activities, functions or operations of such person? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(iii) bars such person from being associated with any entity or from participating in the offering of any penny stock? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(5) Is any such person subject to any order of the Commission entered within five years before the filing of this offering statement that, at the time of the filing of 
this offering statement, orders the person to cease and desist from committing or causing a violation or future violation of:

(i) any scienter-based anti-fraud provision of the federal securities laws, including without limitation Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act, Section 10
(b) of the Exchange Act, Section 15(c)(1) of the Exchange Act and Section 206(1) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 or any other rule or 
regulation thereunder? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(ii) Section 5 of the Securities Act? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(6) Is any such person suspended or expelled from membership in, or suspended or barred from association with a member of, a registered national securities 
exchange or a registered national or affiliated securities association for any act or omission to act constituting conduct inconsistent with just and equitable 
principles of trade? ☐ Yes ☒ No

(7) Has any such person filed (as a registrant or issuer), or was any such person or was any such person named as an underwriter in, any registration statement or 
Regulation A offering statement filed with the Commission that, within five years before the filing of this offering statement, was the subject of a refusal 
order, stop order, or order suspending the Regulation A exemption, or is any such person, at the time of such filing, the subject of an investigation or 
proceeding to determine whether a stop order or suspension order should be issued? ☐ Yes ☒ No
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(8) Is any such person subject to a United States Postal Service false representation order entered within five years before the filing of the information required by 
Section 4A(b) of the Securities Act, or is any such person, at the time of filing of this offering statement, subject to a temporary restraining order or 
preliminary injunction with respect to conduct alleged by the United States Postal Service to constitute a scheme or device for obtaining money or property 
through the mail by means of false representations? ☐ Yes ☒ No

If you would have answered “Yes” to any of these questions had the conviction, order, judgment, decree, suspension, expulsion or bar occurred or been issued after May 16, 
2016, then you are NOT eligible to rely on this exemption under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act.

OTHER MATERIAL INFORMATION

30. In addition to the information expressly required to be included in this Form, include:

1. any other material information presented to investors; and

2. such further material information, if any, as may be necessary to make the required statements, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading.

See Exhibit F – Offering Page on Intermediary’s Portal – for a description of the Company’s investment page on the portal’s webpage. See Exhibit G – Portal Agreement, Consulting 
Services Agreement and Escrow Agreement – for more details regarding the Company’s agreement with the portal, a related consulting services provider, and the escrow bank.

TAX MATTERS

EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OR HER OWN TAX AND ERISA ADVISOR AS TO THE PARTICULAR CONSEQUENCES TO 
THE INVESTOR OF THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND SALE OF THE INVESTOR'S SECURITIES, AS WELL AS POSSIBLE CHANGES IN THE TAX LAWS. TO 
INSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS IMPOSED BY THE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE, WE INFORM YOU THAT ANY TAX STATEMENT IN 
THIS FORM C CONCERNING UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAXES IS NOT INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE USED, BY ANY 
TAXPAYER FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING ANY TAX-RELATED PENALTIES UNDER THE UNITED STATES INTERNAL REVENUE CODE. ANY TAX 
STATEMENT HEREIN CONCERNING UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAXES WAS WRITTEN IN CONNECTION WITH THE MARKETING OR PROMOTION OF 
THE TRANSACTIONS OR MATTERS TO WHICH THE STATEMENT RELATES. EACH TAXPAYER SHOULD SEEK ADVICE BASED ON THE TAXPAYER'S 
PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN INDEPENDENT TAX ADVISOR.

Potential Investors who are not United States residents are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the United States federal income tax implications of any investment in 
the Company, as well as the taxation of such investment by their country of residence. Furthermore, it should be anticipated that distributions from the Company to such 
foreign investors may be subject to UNITED STATES withholding tax.

EACH POTENTIAL INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT HIS OR HER OWN TAX ADVISOR CONCERNING THE POSSIBLE IMPACT OF STATE TAXES.
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SPECIAL NOTICE TO FOREIGN INVESTORS

IF THE PURCHASER LIVES OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES, IT IS THE PURCHASER'S RESPONSIBILITY TO FULLY OBSERVE THE LAWS OF ANY 
RELEVANT TERRITORY OR JURISDICTION OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN CONNECTION WITH ANY PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES, INCLUDING 
OBTAINING REQUIRED GOVERNMENTAL OR OTHER CONSENTS OR OBSERVING ANY OTHER REQUIRED LEGAL OR OTHER FORMALITIES. THE 
COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO DENY THE PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES BY ANY FOREIGN PURCHASER.

Forward Looking Statement Disclosure

The Form C and any documents incorporated by reference herein or therein contain forward-looking statements and are subject to risks and uncertainties. All statements other than 
statements of historical fact or relating to present facts or current conditions included in the Form C are forward- looking statements. Forward-looking statements give the Company's 
current reasonable expectations and projections relating to its financial condition, results of operations, plans, objectives, future performance and business. You can identify forward-
looking statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. These statements may include words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” 
“plan,” “intend,” “believe,” “may,” “should,” “can have,” “likely” and other words and terms of similar meaning in connection with any discussion of the timing or nature of future 
operating or financial performance or other events. The forward-looking statements contained in this Form C and any documents incorporated by reference herein or therein are based on 
reasonable assumptions the Company has made in light of its industry experience, perceptions of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors it 
believes are appropriate under the circumstances. As you read and consider this Form C, you should understand that these statements are not guarantees of performance or results. They 
involve risks, uncertainties (many of which are beyond the Company's control) and assumptions. Although the Company believes that these forward-looking statements are based on 
reasonable assumptions, you should be aware that many factors could affect its actual operating and financial performance and cause its performance to differ materially from the 
performance anticipated in the forward-looking statements. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of these assumptions prove incorrect or change, 
the Company's actual operating and financial performance may vary in material respects from the performance projected in these forward-looking statements. Any forward- looking 
statement made by the Company in this Form C or any documents incorporated by reference herein or therein speaks only as of the date of this Form C. Factors or events that could 
cause the Company's actual operating and financial performance to differ may emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for the Company to predict all of them. The Company 
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as may be required by law.

ONGOING REPORTING

The issuer will file a report electronically with the Securities & Exchange Commission annually and post the report on its website, no later than April 20th (120 days after the end of each 
fiscal year covered by the report).

Once posted, the annual report may be found on the issuer's website at: www.viroment.sppx.io

The issuer must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:

(1) the issuer is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) the issuer has filed at least one annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and has fewer than 300 holders of record and has total assets that do not exceed 
$10,000,000;

(3) the issuer has filed at least three annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) the issuer or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any 
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) the issuer liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.
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Exhibit B

BUSINESS AND BUSINESS PLAN

Business Plan Summary

Viroment Capital, LLC is a real estate development and operations company based in Minneapolis, Minnesota which has licensed or otherwise acquired the right to use proprietary hog 
waste treatment technology and purchased treatment systems incorporating such technology from an affiliate. The Company plans to:

● purchase real estate in Nebraska;

● construct a barn specially purposed for growing hogs commercially on such property;

● lease the barn to a commercial hog grower; and,

● utilize the proprietary hog waste treatment technology and treatment systems to harvest dried hog waste from the barn to sell to third parties.

The Company expects revenues to be generated from (1) the triple net lease entered into with the hog farmer tenant and (2) sale of the dried hog waste.



Business Plan 2020

All Rights Reserved, Viroment Capital LLC 2020
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

VIROMENT CAPITAL’S PROMISSORY NOTE is a financial product paying out a fixed stream of payments at a rate of 8% per annum (up to 12% per annum, depending on the tier of 
investment – See Section 13 of Offering Statement – Ownership and Capital Structure). Payments will be made from the fund’s lockbox held at one of the largest global agribusiness 
companies ($15Bn in revenues per annum). The lockbox is funded by best-in class global agricultural livestock integrators contracted for 15-year terms.

ACCUMULATION PHASE: Will be closed at $750,000 USD.

ANNUITIZATION PHASE: Once the annuitization phase has been reached, the product begins paying out to the annuitant at APR of 8% (up to 12%, depending on the tier of 
investment – See Section 13 of Offering Statement – Ownership and Capital Structure – The Offering – Annual Rate of Return / Interest Rate) until the original investment is returned. 
The minimum time in the fund will be 3 years. Investor payments will be made quarterly, beginning on the last day of the fourth month following the closing date.

COMPANY BIO: Viroment’s proprietary technology solves the challenges of waste sludge disposal. Our treatment system significantly lowers the hauling cost – while reducing 
environmental impact and meeting regulatory standards. Viroment’s innovation paves the way for a redeployment of a validated adjacent industry application.

DISTRIBUTION MODEL / METHODOLOGY: Viroment develops strategic partnerships with best in class region partners in each vertical. These experienced market leaders become 
early adopters and distribution partners for our system in each market responsible for marketing, sales, installations, servicing and tech support. Viroment USA, in turn, supports this 
partner behind the scenes on an as needed basis. Lower Costs. Less Regulation. Sustainable Process.

MEDIA: Viroment has been featured in Forbes, Fortune Magazine, MSNBC, Reuters, China TV, Global Water Intelligence Magazine, South China Morning Post, Japan Times, Caixin 
Global (China), Financial Times, Biz Journals, Yahoo Finance, China Daily & Daily Mail (United Kingdom).

NOTABLE EVENTS: Hurricane Harvey (Houston, Texas)
Viroment deployed several wastewater processing units to assist the City of Houston’s Wastewater Treatment plant in responding to the natural disaster. The emergency response has led 
to a continued partnership and processing at their facilities to this day.

US Commercial Services Trade Mission (Beijing, China)
Viroment executed an $800M partnership agreement with government owned Hangzhou Iron and Steel. The contract signing was witness by both US President Trump and China 
President Xi at the Great Hall of the People in Beijing on November 9, 2017.

THE PROBLEM

Market demand for pork is not being met resulting in a sharp demand by hog growers, called Integrators, for pig growing spaces (hog barns). Pork processing facilities in the region are 
currently operating at 30% potential capacity further indicting the extreme demand for market growth demands.

Integrators do not want to own land or barns preferring to invest in live animal assets. Farmers who own the land do not want to do the labor and typically only have the capacity for one 
site at a time.

OUR SOLUTION

Organize multi-build barn packages attracting best-in-class market corporate partners resulting in long-term corporate lease contracts.
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TECHNICAL ADVANTAGES

New Barn Current / Old Barn
Manure Footprint Reduced > 90% Large Sludge Footprint
Constant Flush Long Term Periodic (6 / 12 month)
Low / No Odor High Odor
No Fresh Water Needed to Flush High Fresh Water Flush Consumption
Less / No Flies Animal Agitation & Pathogen Risks
Promotes Animal Wellness 4% Minimum Death Rate
Promotes Faster Growth No
Manure Marketable Commodity Cost to Dispose Plus Regulatory
Barn Modernization / Optimization Increased Labor Animal Health Costs
Gridded / Planned Locations Random
40+ year life Near or End of Useful Life
Labor Friendly / Attractive Prone to Dissatisfaction /Staff Turnover
Organic Ready No
No Cross-Contamination Sludge Pumper Create a Bio-Security Risk
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FINANCIALS

Cash Flow Each Barn (Year 1)

Cost of Assets / Each $ 2,100,000

Gross Revenue / Year
Lease $ 195,000
Other (Manure 50%) $ 70,345

$ 265,345

Expenses / Year
OPEX (Triple-Net Lease) 0

Debt Service / Taxes $ 168,844
$ -168,844

Net Profit / Barn $ 96,501

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.57

Rollout Schedule 

Barn # June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2020 YE
1 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 56,292
2 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 48,250
3 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 40,209
4 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 8,042 $ 32,167
CF/Mo $ 8,042 $ 16,083 $ 24,125 $ 32,167 $ 32,167 $ 32,167 $ 32,167 $ 176,918

First Five Years Cash Flows

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Cash Flow $ 176,918 $ 386,004 $ 386,004 $ 386,004 $ 386,004
Principal Reduce $ 310,943 $ 368,424 $ 398,063 $ 413,765 $ 430,086

$ 487,851 $ 754,428 $ 784,067 $ 799,768 $ 816,090

Twenty (20) Year Gain for Four (4) Barns (Including Debt Service) $19,000,000

*Financial Assumptions: Debt Service at 3.875%, barn size of 6,500 hog capacity, base lease rate of $30 / pig space triple net, 15-year leases, barn life exceeds 40 years with historical 
supportive data/experience, and amortization of 17 years.
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DOMESTIC AGRICULTURAL MARKETS

Livestock production rankings by state:

Pork Beef
#1 Iowa #1 Texas
#2 North Carolina #2 Nebraska
#3 Minnesota
#4 Illinois
#5 Indiana
#6 Nebraska

In 1982 Nebraska enacted unique legislation barring corporate farm ownership and/or operations. Although this law was recently overturned in 2015, it did establish and promote larger 
family farm growth within the state of Nebraska during that span of time. Several home-grown Nebraska operations have expanded substantially and as an end result, control the 
Nebraska regional market which funnels meat to in-state meat processing facilities.

The resulting pork market (about 80%) in Nebraska is currently controlled by just a handful of organizations or individuals. Similar metrics can be said for Nebraska’s beef market. 
These organizations have operations that span the surrounding states and even heavily into Illinois and beyond. Coincidentally, or perhaps by unintended legislative design, the epicenter 
of these organizations is in NE Nebraska between Lincoln and Omaha.

THE OPPORTUNITY

Partners:

● Well-connected feed mill owner with ownership of 30,000 pig spaces concerned over giving his manure nutrients away for free;

● Major player in the barn builder market deals with land acquisition for discard of nutrients for past and future clients; and

● Sludge/manure dewatering expert with a business development background.

Strategic Partners:

● Top 20 global corporate integrators with 15-yr guaranteed leases; and

● Cooperative with $700M in assets guaranteeing the loans.
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COMPANY PRINCIPLES

Paul Koenig
CEO

Raised on a family “Century Award” farm in central Minnesota USA and later attended the University of Minnesota where he participated in varsity football for the Gophers while 
majoring in business and science.

After college Paul became involved in real estate starting out volunteering for property owners eventually becoming one of the largest private voucher-
based Section 8 HUD housing provider in the upper Midwest. Paul's personal real estate portfolio has included 750+ real estate transactions, new 
construction builds of 100+ new properties in low income neighborhoods and 100+ fully remodeled (complete code compliance properties) multi-family 
properties.

Currently, Paul is the CEO of Viroment, an award-winning clean tech company in the wastewater space. The company’s innovative technology reduces 
wastewater sludge footprints by up to 95% creating clean reuse water and a valuable multiuse bio-cake.

(November 2017) Paul was invited to a Beijing China to participate in the historic US Commercial Services Trade Mission event held at the Great Hall of 
the People in Beijing China. Viroment executed contracts in the amount of $800M with Hangzhou Iron and Steel and $100M with Guanye Guangdong 
Environmental Protection Company Limited; both of which are Chinese Government State Owned Companies. The signing event was personally 
witnessed by United States Secretary Commerce Wilbur Ross, President Donald Trump and President Xi Jinping (China).

Media Link: https://eblnews.com/video/paul-koenig-us-business-delegation-president-trump-china-253693

Paul has been a strong and influencing advocate on both a professional and personal basis. He is widely known to his clients and friends as a resourceful. Paul enjoys coaching youth 
sports, volunteering on community association boards and solving large scale problems.

Russ Vering
Partner

Russ Vering resides in Scribner, NE and operates Central Plains Milling (CPM) in Howells, Nebraska in a partnership with Frontier Cooperative of Lincoln, Nebraska.

CPM manufactures feed for swine, cattle and poultry. CPM’s revenues are in excess of $25M/year with growth projections to reach $50M/year. In 2016 Russ purchased the former 
Husker Coop in Columbus, NE investing $850,000 to update the facility under the CPM brand. CPM owns a proprietary home-grown recipe or blend of feed for its clients in addition to 
traditional feed stock it sells. This unique blend netted a $1,000,000 distribution agreement with feed giant JBS for distribution of the product across the region.

After college Russ worked on his family farm and eventually became owner of the family farm. Russ is personally involved with contract wean-to-finish 
sites in eastern Nebraska. 

Russ is a board member of the Nebraska Pork Producers Council. In his role as a board member Russ has been on several US Trade Missions, played a 
critical role in both charitable events / donations as well as in an advisory position for government oversight and regulatory compliance. Russ attended the 
University of Nebraska on a wrestling scholarship and is married with two daughters.
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Chris Reimers
Partner

Chris is from West Point, Nebraska. Chris attended the University of Nebraska-Lincoln majoring in Agricultural Engineering. Chris was an operations manager at ADM in Sioux City, 
Iowa before he settled in with Settje Agri-Services. In his current role he manages manure marketing & application, agronomy services, and CAFO environmental compliance.

Recently, Chris played a integral role in the Costco “1 Billion Bird Facility” in Nebraska: https://civileats.com/2018/12/11/costcos-100-million-chickens-
will-change-the-future-of-nebraska-farming/. Chris’s responsibilities for this first of its kind project addressed compliance, engineering and groundwork 
for this block chain supply of Costco’s famed “$4.99 for a Four-Pound Chicken” product.

Chris’s current footprint at Settje includes manure marketing that spans across their 8,000 barns built client-base across the Central USA. Chris’s top 
clients control 80% of the regional livestock space.

SUSTAINABILITY

The Viroment dewatering equipment used to process manure in real-time contributed to the project promotes improved animal health and less impact on the local ecosystems including 
humans. Because we are able to reintroduce our filtered water to the closed loop flushing system, we are able to reduce odor, gas emissions, flies, and pathogens.

The process creates to valuable reuse byproducts from the waste sludge:

1. Solids. A valuable bio-cake rich in nutrients with significant market value. This organic fertilizer reduces sludge haul away footprints from hog barn pits and retention ponds by 
approximately 25X reduction transportation costs (fuel, labor, vehicle).

2. Filtered Water. Reusable water is able to be used for animal cooling, washdown or flushing with the balance is able to be safely discharged.

Closed Loop Grow Cycle Process

(Front to back – Paul, Russ & Chris)
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MARKET SUMMARY RADIUS – FEED MILL vs. KILL PLANT 

30 miles Tyson (Madison NE) 2,920,000 hogs
40 miles WholeStone Farms (Fremont NE) 3,833,000 hogs
80 miles Smithfield Foods (Crete NE) 4,015,000 hogs
83 miles Seaboard Triumph Foods (Sioux City, IO) 3,723,000 hogs

210 miles Seaboard Triumph Foods (St. Joseph, MO)
220 miles Prestidge Farms (Eagle Grove, Iowa)

8



SELECTED FACILITY SITES

(30+ close proximity to partner owned feed mills & meat processing)

DEALS (shovel ready with contract)

1. 4 barns @ 6,500 spaces         $8,400,000
2. 20 barns @ 5,500 spaces         $40,000,000
3. 5 barns @ 6,250 spaces         $10,500,000
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PRO FORMA PROJECTIONS

Corporate Integrator projected pace is one barn per week in year one increasing the pace by one barn per month over a 4-year period.

PROJECTIONS - 6500 Barn Series
($2,100,000 / Barn)

2020
Barn # Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 2020 YE

1 8,042 8,042 8,042 8,042 8,042 8,042 8,042 56,292
2 8,042 8,042 8,042 8,042 8,042 8,042 48,250
3 8,042 8,042 8,042 8,042 8,042 40,209
4 8,042 8,042 8,042 8,042 32,167
5 8,042 8,042 8,042 24,125
6 8,042 8,042 16,083
7 8,042 8,042

CF / Mo 0 0 0 0 0 8,042 16,083 24,125 32,167 40,209 48,250 56,292 225,169

2021
Barn # Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 2021 YE

Existing 56,292 56,292 56,292 56,292 56,292 56,292 56,292 56,292 56,292 56,292 56,292 56,292 675,506
8-9 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 193,002

10-11 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 176,918
12-13 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 160,835
14-15 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 144,751
16-17 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 128,668
18-19 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 112,584
20-21 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 96,501
22-23 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 80,417
24-25 16,083 16,083 16,083 16,083 64,334
26-27 16,083 16,083 16,083 48,250
28-29 16,083 16,083 32,167
30-31 16,083 16,083

CF / Mo 72,376 88,459 104,543 120,626 136,710 152,793 168,877 184,960 201,044 217,127 233,210 249,294 1,930,018
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2022
Barn # Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 2022 YE

Existing 249,294 49,294 249,294 249,294 249,294 249,294 249,294 249,294 249,294 249,294 249,294 249,294 2,991,528
32-34 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 289,503
35-37 4,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 265,377
38-40 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 241,252
41-43 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 217,127
44-46 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 193,002
47-49 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 168,877
50-52 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 144,751
53-55 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 120,626
56-58 24,125 24,125 24,125 24,125 96,501
59-61 24,125 24,125 24,125 72,376
62-64 24,125 24,125 48,250
65-67 24,125 24,125

CF / Mo 273,419 297,544 321,670 345,795 369,920 394,045 418,171 442,296 466,421 490,546 514,671 538,797 4,873,295

2023 
Barn # Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 2023 YE

Existing 538,797 538,797 538,797 538,797 538,797 538,797 538,797 538,797 538,797 538,797 538,797 538,797 6,465,560
68-71 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 386,004
72-75 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 353,837
76-79 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 321,670
80-83 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 289,503
84-87 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 257,336
88-91 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 225,169
92-95 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 193,002
96-99 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 160,835

100-103 32,167 32,167 32,167 32,167 128,668
104-107 32,167 32,167 32,167 96,501
108-111 32,167 32,167 64,334
112-115 32,167 32,167
CF / Mo 570,964 603,131 635,298 667,465 699,631 731,798 763,965 796,132 828,299 860,466 892,633 924,800 8,974,583

2024+
Barns Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 2024 YE

115 924,800 924,800 924,800 924,800 924,800 924,800 924,800 924,800 924,800 924,800 924,800 924,800 11,097,603

Year Cumulative CF Year Cumulative CF Year Cumulative CF

2020 225,169 2025 38,198,271 2030 93,686,286
2021 2,155,187 2026 49,295,874 2031 104,783,889
2022 7,028,482 2027 60,393,477 2032 115,881,492
2023 16,003,065 2028 71,491,080 2033 126,979,095
2024 27,100,668 2029 82,588,683 2034 138,076,698

Equity @ 15 years 241,500,000 Number of Barns 115 Barns
15-year Cash Flow 138,076,698 Lease Terms: 15 year
Equity + Cash Flow 379,576,698 Lease Type Triple Net

Cash Flow @ 16+ 22,425,000 Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.572
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INVESTMENT OPPORTUNITY

Viroment Capital, LLC is seeking capital to finance and build pre-leased cash flowing hog barns. Investors will receive annual return of up to 12%. The investor will receive quarterly 
dividend payments with a final balloon payoff at the end of the 3 year note term.
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Exhibit C

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC

SUBSCRIPTION INSTRUCTIONS

A subscription to invest in debt securities offered by Viroment Capital, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”) may be made only by means of the completion, 
delivery and acceptance of the following:

o Subscription Agreement: Complete all requested information in this Subscription Agreement and date and sign the signature page.

DELIVERY OF SUBSCRIPTION DOCUMENTS

Subscribers must submit a completed and signed copy of the Subscription Agreement.

Please note that the Manager of the Company (the “Manager”) reserves the right to request any additional documentation necessary to verify the identity of a prospective investor in the 
Company. Please be aware that your failure to provide such documentation may delay your acceptance by Manager or cause your subscription request to be rejected entirely. The 
Company and Manager shall be held harmless by any such prospective investor against any loss arising as a result of a failure to provide any requested documentation.

PRIVACY

The Company takes precautions to maintain the privacy of personal information concerning the Company’s current and prospective individual investors. For more information in this 
regard, please refer to the Privacy Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A to Subscription Agreement.



VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 
“SECURITIES ACT”), OR UNDER ANY SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION. THIS OFFERING IS 
MADE PURSUANT TO SECTION 4(a)(6) OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND REGULATION CROWDFUNDING THEREUNDER.

A SUBSCRIBER SHOULD BE PREPARED TO BEAR THE ECONOMIC RISK OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE COMPANY FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME 
BECAUSE THE PROMISSORY NOTES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE LAWS OF ANY OTHER JURISDICTION, AND, 
THEREFORE, CANNOT BE SOLD UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. THERE IS 
NO OBLIGATION OF THE COMPANY TO REGISTER THE PROMISSORY NOTES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE LAWS OF ANY OTHER 
JURISDICTION.

INVESTORS ARE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS ON THE AMOUNT THEY MAY INVEST, AS SET OUT IN SECTION 5(F). THE COMPANY IS RELYING ON THE 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES SET FORTH BY EACH SUBSCRIBER IN THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER INFORMATION 
PROVIDED BY SUBSCRIBER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING TO DETERMINE THE APPLICABILITY TO THIS OFFERING OF EXEMPTIONS FROM 
THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT.

THE COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION AND FOR ANY REASON WHATSOEVER TO MODIFY, AMEND AND/OR WITHDRAW ALL 
OR A PORTION OF THE OFFERING AND/OR ACCEPT OR REJECT IN WHOLE OR IN PART ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES OR TO 
ALLOT TO ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR LESS THAN THE AMOUNT OF SECURITIES SUCH INVESTOR DESIRES TO PURCHASE. EXCEPT AS 
OTHERWISE INDICATED THE OFFERING MATERIALS (AS DEFINED HEREIN) SPEAK AS OF THEIR DATE.

THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND SUBSCRIBER QUESTIONNAIRE (this “Agreement”) is entered into by and between the manager (the “Manager”) of Viroment Capital, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”), and the subscriber identified on the signature page hereto (“Subscriber”) in connection with Subscriber’s purchase of the 
principal amount in “Promissory Notes” (the “Promissory Notes”) offered by the Company at a purchase price of $1,000 per Promissory Note.

Subscriber understands that the Company, is conducting an offering (the “Offering”) under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and 
Regulation Crowdfunding promulgated thereunder. This Offering is made pursuant to the Form C, dated on or about [February __, 2020], as amended (the “Form C”), filed by the 
Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and the Exhibits thereto (collectively, the “Offering Materials”). The Company is offering to both accredited and 
non-accredited investors up to 750 Promissory Notes at a price of one thousand dollars and 00/100 ($1,000.00) per Promissory Note (the “Purchase Price”). The minimum amount or 
target amount to be raised in the Offering is two hundred fifty thousand dollars and 00/100 ($250,000) (the “Target Offering Amount”) and the maximum amount to be raised in the 
offering is seven hundred fifty $750,000 (the “Maximum Offering Amount”). If the Offering is oversubscribed beyond the Target Offering Amount, the Company will sell Promissory 
Notes on a basis to be determined by the Company’s management. The Company is offering the Promissory Notes to prospective investors through the Silicon Prairie Online 
crowdfunding portal (the “Portal”). The Portal is registered with the SEC, as a funding portal and is a funding portal member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority. The 
Company will pay the Portal a commission equal to a certain percentage of gross monies raised in the Offering. Investors should carefully review the Offering Materials, which are 
available on the website of the Portal at fp.sppx.io.
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Subscriber hereby subscribes for the Promissory Notes, and Manager and Subscriber hereby agree as follows:

1. Purchase. Subscriber agrees to purchase from the Company, an aggregate principal amount of Promissory Notes as set forth on the signature page hereto. All payments of 
Subscriber’s purchase price to the Company shall be made by check made out to “VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC”, wire transfer or ACH. Promissory Notes will be sold in 
minimum amounts of one thousand dollars and 00/100 ($1,000).

2. Acceptance of Subscription; Subscriber Cancellation.

Subscriber understands and agrees that this subscription is made subject to the following terms and conditions:

(a) Manager shall have the right to review the suitability of any person desiring to purchase Promissory Notes in the Company;

(b) Manager shall have the right, in its sole and absolute discretion, to reject this subscription, in whole or in part;

(c) Manager shall have no obligation to accept subscriptions in the order received;

(d) Subscriber further understands that during and following termination of the Offering, the Company may undertake offerings of other securities;

(e) Subscriber has up to 48 hours before the campaign end date described in the Form C to cancel the purchase and get a full refund; and

(f) Subscriber hereby agrees to the use of electronic signatures for purposes of both this Subscription Agreement and the Operating Agreement.

3. Conditions to Closing. Manager’s obligations hereunder are subject to acceptance by Manager of Subscriber’s subscription for Promissory Notes and to the fulfillment, prior to 
or at the time of closing, of each of the following conditions:

(a) The representations and warranties of Subscriber contained in this Agreement shall be true and correct at the time of closing; and

(b) All proceedings in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby and all documents and instruments incident to such transactions shall be satisfactory in 
substance and form to Manager and the Company, and Manager, the Company shall have received all such counterpart originals or certified or other copies of such 
documents as Manager may request.

4. Subscriber’s Representations. In connection with Subscriber’s purchase of Promissory Notes, Subscriber makes the following representations and warranties on which 
Manager and the Company are entitled to rely:

(a) Subscriber has received, read and understands the Offering Materials, including the section entitled “Risk Factors”. No representations or warranties have been made to 
Subscriber by the Company, Manager or any agent of such persons.

(b) Subscriber is acquiring the Promissory Note solely for Subscriber’s own account and not directly or indirectly for the account of any other person whatsoever (or, if 
Subscriber is acquiring the Promissory Note as a trustee, solely for the account of the trust or trust account named herein) for investment and not with a view to, or for 
sale in connection with, any distribution of the Promissory Note. Subscriber does not have any contract, undertaking or arrangement with any person to sell, transfer or 
grant a participation to any person with respect to the Promissory Note.
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(c) Subscriber has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that Subscriber is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the investment 
evidenced by Subscriber’s purchase of the Promissory Note, and Subscriber is able to bear the economic risk of such investment including the risk of complete loss.

(d) Subscriber has had access to such information concerning the Company as Subscriber deems necessary to enable Subscriber to make an informed decision concerning 
the purchase of the Promissory Note. Subscriber has had access to the managers of Manager and the opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers satisfactory to 
Subscriber from, such managers concerning the offering of Promissory Note in the Company and the Company generally. Subscriber has obtained all additional 
information requested by Subscriber to verify the accuracy of all information furnished in connection with the offering of Promissory Note in the Company.

(e) Subscriber understands that the Promissory Note has not been registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) or any 
securities law of any state of the United States or any other jurisdiction, in each case in reliance on an exemption for private offerings, and Subscriber acknowledges 
that Subscriber is purchasing the Promissory Note without being furnished any offering literature or prospectus other than the Offering Materials.

(f) Subscriber represents that either:

(i) Subscriber’s net worth or annual income is less than $107,000 and that the amount Subscriber is investing pursuant to this Agreement together with all other 
amounts Subscriber is investing in offerings under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act within the previous 12 months is either less than (A) 5% of the lower 
of Subscriber’s annual income or net worth, or (B) $2,200; or

(ii) both Subscriber’s net worth or annual income are more than $107,000 and that the amount Subscriber is investing pursuant to this Agreement together with all 
other amounts Subscriber is investing in offerings under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act within the previous 12 months is less than (A) 10% of the lower 
of Subscriber’s annual income or net worth, and (B) does not exceed $107,000.

(g) Including the amount set forth on the signature page hereto, in the past 12-month period, Subscriber has not exceeded the investment limit as set forth in Rule 100(a)(2) 
of Regulation Crowdfunding.

(h) Subscriber is aware that (i) Subscriber must bear the economic risk of investment in the Promissory Note for an indefinite period of time, possibly until final winding 
up of the Company, (ii) because the Promissory Note has not been registered under the Securities Act, there is currently no public market therefor, (iii) Subscriber may 
not be able to avail itself of the provisions of Rule 144 of the Securities Act with respect to the Promissory Note, and (iv) the Promissory Note cannot be sold unless 
subsequently registered under the Securities Act or an exemption from such registration is available. Subscriber understands that the Company is under no obligation, 
and does not intend, to effect any such registration at any time. Subscriber also understands that sales or transfers of the Promissory Note are further restricted by, as 
applicable, securities laws of other jurisdictions and the states of the United States.

(i) The Promissory Note will not be transferred or disposed of except in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and will not be sold or transferred without 
registration under the Securities Act, or pursuant to an applicable exemption therefrom.
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(j) Subscriber’s full legal name, true and correct address of residence, phone number, electronic mail address, United States taxpayer identification number and other 
contact information are provided herewith.

(k) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby and the performance of the obligations thereunder will not 
conflict with or result in any violation of or default under any provision of any other agreement or instrument to which Subscriber is a party or any license, permit, 
franchise, judgment, order, writ or decree, or any statute, rule or regulation, applicable to Subscriber.

(l) No suit, action, claim, investigation or other proceeding is pending or, to the best of Subscriber’s knowledge, is threatened against Subscriber that questions the validity 
of this Agreement or any action taken or to be taken pursuant to this Agreement.

(m) Subscriber has full power and authority to make the representations referred to in this Agreement, to purchase the Promissory Note pursuant to this Agreement and to 
deliver this Agreement. This Agreement creates valid and binding obligations of Subscriber and are enforceable against Subscriber in accordance with their terms, 
except as enforcement may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, moratorium or other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights, 
and subject to general equity principles and to limitations on availability of equitable relief, including specific performance.

(n) Subscriber acknowledges that Subscriber understands the meaning and legal consequences of the representations and warranties made by Subscriber herein. Such 
representations and warranties are complete and accurate, shall be complete and accurate at the time of closing and may be relied upon by the Company and the 
Manager. Such representations and warranties shall survive delivery of this Agreement. If in any respect such information shall not be complete and accurate prior to 
the time of closing, Subscriber shall give immediate notice of such incomplete or inaccurate information to Manager, specifying which representations or warranties 
are not complete and accurate and the reasons therefor.

(o) Subscriber hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company, Manager and each member, principal, manager, director, officer, advisor or employee thereof 
(each, an “Indemnified Party”) from and against any and all loss, damage or liability due to or arising out of any inaccuracy or breach of any representation or 
warranty of Subscriber or failure of Subscriber to comply with any covenant or agreement set forth herein or in any other document furnished to any Indemnified Party 
specifically supplementing the information in this subscription booklet by Subscriber in connection with the subscription for the Promissory Note. Subscriber shall 
reimburse each Indemnified Party for its legal and other expenses (including the cost of any investigation and preparation) as they are incurred in connection with any 
such claim, action, proceeding or investigation. The reimbursement and indemnification obligations of Subscriber under this paragraph shall survive any closing 
applicable to Subscriber (or, if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to paragraph 2(b) above, such termination) and shall be in addition to any liability which 
Subscriber may otherwise have and shall be binding and inure to the benefit of any successors, assigns, heirs, estates, executors, administrators and personal 
representatives of the Indemnified Parties.

(p) Subscriber confirms that Subscriber has been advised to consult with Subscriber’s attorney regarding legal matters concerning the Company and to consult with 
independent tax advisers regarding the tax consequences of investing in the Company. Subscriber acknowledges that he, she or it understands that any anticipated 
United States federal or state income tax benefits may not be available and, further, may be adversely affected through adoption of new laws or regulations or 
amendments to existing laws or regulations. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that the Company is providing no warranty or assurance regarding the ultimate 
availability of any tax benefits to Subscriber by reason of Subscriber’s investment in the Company.
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(q) Subscriber understands that information relating to Subscriber shall appear on the records of the Company. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that other Members 
may receive such information as permitted by the LLC Agreement or as required by applicable laws and may share such information with their advisors.

(r) Subscriber understands and agrees that Manager may cause the Company to make an election under Section 754 of the Code or an election to be treated as an “electing 
investment partnership” for purposes of Section 743 of the Code. If a Company elects to be treated as an electing investment partnership, Subscriber shall cooperate 
with the Company and its Manager to maintain that status and shall not take any action that would be inconsistent with such election. Upon request, Subscriber shall 
provide Manager with any information necessary to allow the Company to comply with (a) its obligations to make tax basis adjustments under Sections 734 or 743 of 
the Code and (b) its obligations as an electing investment partnership.

5. Withholding. Manager may be required to withhold a certain portion of the taxable income and gain allocated or distributed to each Subscriber unless Subscriber provides 
documentation confirming that such Subscriber is not subject to withholding, or is subject to a reduced rate of withholding. If Subscriber is a United States Person, please 
complete IRS Form W-9 and provide a copy to the Manager. Such Subscriber agrees to notify Manager within 60 days if Subscriber ceases to be a United States Person.

6. Investor Qualifications.

Subscriber represents and warrants as follows (Answer Part (a), (b) or (c), as applicable. Please check all applicable items):

(a) Accredited Investor - Individuals. I am an INDIVIDUAL and:

☐ i. I have a net worth, or a joint net worth together with my spouse, in excess of $1,000,000, excluding the value of my primary residence.

☐ ii. I had an individual income in excess of $200,000 in each of the prior two years and reasonably expect an income in excess of $200,000 in the current year.

☐ iii. I had joint income with my spouse in excess of $300,000 in each of the prior two years and reasonably expect joint income in excess of $300,000 in the 
current year.

☐ iv. I am a director or executive officer of VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC.

(b) Accredited Investor - Entities. The undersigned is an ENTITY and:

☐ i. The undersigned hereby certifies that all of the beneficial equity owners of the undersigned qualify as accredited individual investors by meeting one of the 
tests under items (a)(i) through (a)(iv) above. Please indicate the name of each equity owner and the applicable test from (a) above:

☐ ii. The undersigned is a bank or savings and loan association as defined in Sections 3(a)(2) and 3(a)(5)(A), respectively, of the Securities Act either in its 
individual or fiduciary capacity.

☐ iii. The undersigned is an insurance company as defined in Section 2(13) of the Securities Act.
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☐ iv. The undersigned is an investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or a business development company as defined therein, 
in Section 2(a)(48).

☐ v. The undersigned is a Small Business Investment Company licensed by the U.S. Small Business Administration under Section 301(c) or (d) of the Small 
Business Investment Act of 1958.

☐ vi. The undersigned is an employee benefit plan within the meaning of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and one or more of 
the following is true (check one or more, as applicable):

☐ (1) the investment decision is made by a plan fiduciary, as defined therein, in Section 3(21), which is either a bank, savings and loan association, 
insurance company, or registered investment adviser;

☐ (2) the employee benefit plan has total assets in excess of $5,000,000; or

☐ (3) the plan is a self-directed plan with investment decisions made solely by persons who are “accredited investors” as defined under therein.

☐ vii. The undersigned is a private business development company as defined in Section 202(a)(22) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.

☐ viii. The undersigned has total assets in excess of $5,000,000, was not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring and one or more of the following is true 
(check one or more, as applicable):

☐ (1) an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

☐ (2) a corporation;

☐ (3) a Massachusetts or similar business trust;

☐ (4) a partnership; or

☐ (5) a limited liability company.

☐ ix. The undersigned is a trust with total assets exceeding $5,000,000, which is not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring and whose purpose is directed 
by a person who has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that he or she is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the 
investment in the Promissory Notes.

(c) Non-Accredited Investors.

☐ The undersigned cannot make any of the foregoing representations and is therefore not an accredited investor.

7. Survival of Agreements, Representations and Warranties. All agreements, representations and warranties contained herein or made in writing by or on behalf of Subscriber, 
the Company or Manager in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall survive the execution of this Agreement, any investigation at any time made 
by Subscriber, the Company or Manager or on behalf of any of them and the sale and purchase of the Promissory Note and payment therefor and the dissolution and termination 
of the Company.
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8. Legends. Subscriber consents to the placement of any legend required or reasonably advisable, as determined by the Company’s legal counsel, by applicable law.

9. Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sent by Federal Express, DHL or other recognized international 
courier service or by facsimile or electronic transmission and shall be effective the earliest of (a) actual receipt, or (b) on the third business day after dispatch by Federal 
Express, DHL or other recognized international courier service, or (c) the next business day after such notice shall have been given by facsimile transmission with electronic 
answerback confirmation or electronic transmission. A “business day” shall mean any weekday (i.e., Monday through Friday) during which banks are generally open in both the 
U.S. Until otherwise specified by written notice, the addresses for any such notice shall be:

If to the Company, to:
Viroment Capital, LLC
c/o Viroment USA, LLC
33 South Sixth Street, Suite 4750
Minneapolis, MN 55402

If to a Subscriber, to such address as is set forth in Subscriber’s signature page to this agreement

10. Counterparts, Execution and Delivery. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together 
shall constitute one and the same instrument. A facsimile or other reproduction of this Agreement may be executed by Subscriber and/or Manager, and an executed copy of this 
Agreement may be delivered by Subscriber and/or Manager by facsimile, electronic signature or similar electronic transmission device pursuant to which the signature(s) and 
responses can be seen, and such execution and delivery shall be considered valid, binding and effective for all purposes. At the request of any party hereto, Subscriber and 
Manager agree to execute an original of this Agreement as well as any facsimile or other reproduction hereof.

11. Amendments. Neither this Agreement nor any term hereof may be changed, waived, discharged or terminated orally, but only with the written consent of Subscriber and 
Manager.

12. Assignment. This Agreement is not transferable or assignable by Subscriber.

13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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SIGNATURE PAGE FOR INDIVIDUALS

Dated: Dated:

Signature Signature of Second Individual, if applicable

Name (Typed or Printed) Name (Typed or Printed)

Social Security Number Social Security Number

Telephone Number Telephone Number

Residence Street Address Residence Street Address

City, State & Zip Code City, State & Zip Code

Mailing Address
(only if different than above)

Mailing Address
(only if different than above)

City, State & Zip Code City, State & Zip Code

Email Address Email Address

Principal Subscription Amount ($):

Entity Subscriber Type of Ownership:

The subscribed for notes are to be registered in the following form of ownership (check one):

☐ Individual Ownership

☐ Joint Tenants with Right of Survivorship (both parties must sign). Briefly describe the relationship between the parties (e.g., married).

☐ Tenants in Common. Briefly describe the relationship between the parties (e.g., married).

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT]
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SIGNATURE PAGE FOR TRUSTS AND ENTITIES

Dated:_____________________

Name of Entity (Typed or Printed) Telephone Number

Signature of Authorized Person Entity’s Tax Identification Number

Name & Title (Typed or Printed of Signatory) Contact Person (if different from Signatory)

Principal Executive Office Address Mailing Address
(if different from principal executive office)

City, State & Zip Code City, State & Zip Code

Email address Email address

Principal Subscription
Amount ($):_______________________

Entity Subscriber Type of Ownership:

The subscribed for notes are to be registered in the following form of ownership (check one):

☐ Partnership

☐ Limited Liability Company

☐ corporation

☐ Trust or Estate (Describe, and enclose evidence of authority

☐ IRA Trust Account

☐ Other (Describe)

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT]
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ACCEPTANCE

This Subscription Agreement is accepted by VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC on _____________________

As to: the principal amount in dollars and number of Promissory Notes set forth on Subscriber’s signature page.

VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC

By:
Name:  
Title:

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT]
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SUBSCRIBER INFORMATION
TO RECEIVE PAYMENTS ON PROMISSORY NOTES

Subscriber Information

Name Email

Mailing Address City, State, Zip Code

Country Phone Number

Wire Instructions for Distributions

Please provide wire instructions for the transfer of any payments due from the Company. These instructions must be provided at account inception. Subscriber may change these wire 
instructions but may be required to provide an appropriate signature guarantee by a qualified financial institution (note that a signature guarantee is different than a notarized signature).

Bank
Location
9-Digit ABA
SWIFT
Beneficiary Bank Name:
Beneficiary Bank Account #:
Beneficiary Account Name:
Beneficiary Account #:
For further credit to (if applicable):  
Telephone Number of Bank:
Facsimile Number of Bank:
Name of Banking Officer:
Reference:
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EXHIBIT A

Privacy Policy

The Manager is committed to protecting your privacy and maintaining the confidentiality and security of your personal information, and in connection therewith, this Privacy Policy is 
observed by Manager. This Privacy Policy explains the manner in which Manager collects, utilizes and maintains nonpublic personal information about potential subscribers 
(collectively, “Subscribers”) in Viroment Capital, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”), as required under Federal Law. This Privacy Policy only applies to 
products and services provided by Manager to individuals (including regarding investments in the Company) and which are used for personal, family, or household purposes (not 
business purposes).

Collection of Subscriber Information

Manager may collect personal information about its Subscribers from the following sources:

1. Subscription forms, account forms, and other information provided by Subscriber in writing, in person, by telephone, electronically or by any other means. This information 
includes name, address, employment information, and financial and investment qualifications;

2. Transactions within the Company, including account balances, investments, distributions and fees;

3. Other interactions with Manager’s affiliates (for example, discussions with our staff and affiliated broker-dealer); and

4. Verification services and consumer reporting agencies, including a Subscriber’s creditworthiness or credit history.

Disclosure of Nonpublic Personal Information

Manager may share nonpublic personal information about investors or potential investors in the Company with affiliates, as permitted by law. Manager does not disclose nonpublic 
personal information about investors or potential investors in the Company to nonaffiliated third parties, except as permitted by law (for example, to service providers who provide 
services to Subscriber or Subscriber’s account).

Manager may share nonpublic personal information, without a Subscriber’s consent, with affiliated and nonaffiliated parties in the following situations, among others:

1. To respond to a subpoena or court order, judicial process or regulatory inquiry;

2. In connection with a proposed or actual sale, merger, or transfer of all or a portion of its business;

3. To protect or defend against fraud, unauthorized transactions (such as money laundering), law suits, claims or other liabilities;

4. To service providers of Manager in connection with the administration and operations of Manager, the Company and other Manager products and services, which may include 
brokers, attorneys, accountants, auditors, administrators or other professionals;

5. To assist Manager in offering Manager-affiliated products and services to its Subscribers;

6. To process or complete transactions requested by a Subscriber; and

7. For any proper purpose as contemplated by or permitted under the Company’s offering, governing or organizing documents.

13



Former Subscribers

The same Privacy Policy applies to former Subscribers.

Protection of Subscriber Information

Manager maintains physical, electronic and procedural safeguards that comply with federal standards to protect customer information. Manager restricts access to the personal and 
account information of Subscribers to those employees who need to know that information in the course of their job responsibilities.

Further Information

Manager reserves the right to change this Privacy Policy at any time. The examples contained within this Privacy Policy are illustrations and are not intended to be exclusive. This 
Privacy Policy complies with Federal Law regarding privacy. You may have additional rights under other foreign or domestic laws that may apply to you.
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Exhibit D

PROMISSORY NOTE

THIS PROMISSORY NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”) AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR 
SALE, SOLD, PLEDGED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED UNLESS (I) A REGISTRATION STATEMENT COVERING SUCH SHARES 
IS EFFECTIVE UNDER THE ACT AND IS QUALIFIED UNDER APPLICABLE STATE AND FOREIGN LAW OR (II) THE TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM THE 
REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE ACT AND THE QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS UNDER APPLICABLE STATE AND FOREIGN LAW.

VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC
PROMISSORY NOTE

Promissory Note #____

$__________________________ __________________________, 2020

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned (“Maker”) promises to pay to the order of (“Maker”) at Holder’s designated address, the sum ____________________ and 
No/100 Dollars ($___________) in installments and with interest from the date hereof as provided below.

Interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance hereof at an annual rate equal to ____%. Accrued interest shall be due and payable each time that an installment of principal is due 
and payable.

The principal balance of this promissory note shall be due and payable in (____) equal and consecutive installments of _____________________ and No/100 Dollars 
(______________________) each, with the initial installment being due on the _____ day of ___________, 2020, and subsequent installments being due and payable on each annual 
anniversary date of this promissory note thereafter until ______________, 20__ when the entire unpaid balance of principal and accrued interest shall become due and payable in full. 
Payments shall be applied first against accrued interest and the balance against the unpaid principal balance.

Maker shall have the right to repay the principal balance hereunder in whole or in part at any time, without premium or penalty; such prepayment shall be applied first against 
accrued interest, if any, and the balance shall be applied against unpaid principal installments in the reverse order of their maturities.

This promissory note is issued under the terms and provisions of that Subscription Agreement Memorandum dated February _____, 2020.

If notice of default is given to the Maker of any non-payment of any of the above installments of principal or interest, and the Maker has not cured such default within ten (10) 
days of such notice’s receipt, then the Holder of this promissory note may, without prior notice to the undersigned, elect to declare the unpaid balance of this promissory note, including 
interest hereon, to be immediately due and payable.

Except as expressly provided hereinabove, the Maker, and every endorser hereof, hereby waive all demands, notices and other formalities in connection with the payment, 
collection and enforcement of this note. The liability of the Maker, and any endorser hereof, shall be unconditional and shall not in any manner be affected by any indulgence whatsoever 
granted or consented to by the Holder, including, but not limited to, any extension of time, renewal, waiver or other modification. Any failure of the Holder to exercise any right 
hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of the right to exercise the same or any other right at any time and from time to time thereafter.

[Signature Page Follows]



The undersigned hereby agrees to pay, in the event of default hereunder, the costs of collection including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

This promissory note is governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.

Dated this ____ day of ____________________, 2020.

MAKER:  VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC

By:
Name: 
Title:

[Signature Page to Promissory Note]



Exhibit E

OPERATING AGREEMENT

VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT

Dated as of February __, 2020

THE UNITS REPRESENTED BY THIS LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS 
AMENDED, OR UNDER ANY OTHER APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS. SUCH UNITS MAY NOT BE SOLD, ASSIGNED, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF AT 
ANY TIME WITHOUT EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT AND LAWS OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM, AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE OTHER 
SUBSTANTIAL RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERABILITY SET FORTH HEREIN. 



VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT

THIS LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT, dated as of February _____, 2020 is entered into by and among Viroment Capital, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company (the “Company”), and each of the Members set forth on Schedule A attached hereto. Certain capitalized terms used herein are defined in ARTICLE I.

R E C I T A L S

WHEREAS, the Company was formed as a limited liability company under the laws of the State of Delaware on January 27, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the Members wish to provide for the management, operation and governance of, and the relative voting and economic interests in, the Company following the 
issuance of the Interests as described above;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I.
CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the following meanings:

“Act” means the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, 6 Del. L. §18-101, et seq., as it may be amended from time to time, and any successor to the Act.

“Additional Member” means a Person admitted to the Company as a Member pursuant to Section 10.2.

“Adjusted Capital Account Deficit” means with respect to any Capital Account as of the end of any Taxable Year, the amount by which the balance in such Capital Account is 
less than zero. For this purpose, such Person’s Capital Account balance shall be (i) reduced for any items described in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), (5), and (6), 
and (ii) increased for any amount such Person is obligated to contribute or is treated as being obligated to contribute to the Company pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)
(2)(ii)(c) (relating to partner liabilities to a partnership) or Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(g)(l) and Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(i) (relating to Minimum Gain).

“Affiliate” of any particular Person means any other Person controlling, controlled by, or under common control with such particular Person, where “control” means the 
possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct the management and policies of a Person whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise.

“Agreement” means this Limited Liability Company Agreement, as amended or modified from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof.

“Assignee” means a Person to whom an Interest has been Transferred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the other agreements contemplated hereby, but who 
has not become a Member pursuant to ARTICLE IX.
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“Book Value” means, with respect to any Company property, the Company’s adjusted basis for federal income tax purposes, adjusted from time to time to reflect the 
adjustments required or permitted by Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(d) through (h); provided, that the Book Value of any asset contributed by a Member shall be its Fair 
Market Value as determined at contribution and the Book Value of any asset distributed to a Member in-kind shall be adjusted to equal its Fair Market Value as of the date of 
distribution.

“Business Day” means a day, not including a Saturday or Sunday, during which banks located in Minneapolis, Minnesota are required to be open.

“Capital Account” means the capital account maintained for a Member pursuant to Section 3.2.

“Capital Contributions” means any cash, cash equivalents, promissory obligations, or the Fair Market Value of other property that a Member contributes or is deemed to have 
contributed to the Company, net of any liabilities the Company is considered to assume or take subject to, or under, Section 752 of the Code, with respect to any Unit.

“Certificate” means the Company’s Certificate of Formation as filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware.

“Code” means the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Company” has the meaning set forth in the caption of this Agreement.

“Confidential Information” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.5(a).

“Distribution” means each distribution made by the Company to a Member, whether in cash, property or securities of the Company and whether by liquidating distribution, 
redemption, repurchase, or otherwise; provided, that none of the following shall be a Distribution: (i) any repurchase by the Company of any securities of the Company in connection 
with the termination of employment of any employee of the Company, (ii) any recapitalization or exchange of securities of the Company, and any subdivision (by Unit split or 
otherwise) or any combination (by reverse Unit split or otherwise) of any outstanding Units, or (iii) any repurchase of Units pursuant to any right of first refusal or similar repurchase 
right in favor of the Company.

“Fair Market Value” means, with respect to any asset or equity interest, its Fair Market Value determined according to ARTICLE XIII.

“Family Group” means, as to any Person, (i) such Person’s Family Members, (ii) a trust under which distribution of Units may be made only to such Person and or any Family 
Member of such Person, (iii) a charitable remainder trust, the income from which will be paid to such Person or his Family Members during his life, (iv) a partnership, limited liability 
company or other entity wholly owned, directly or indirectly, by such Person or such Person’s Family Members, and (v) such Person’s estate, executors, administrators, testamentary 
trustees, legatees or beneficiaries.

“Family Members” means, as to any natural Person, such Person’s spouse, parents, siblings, descendants (including adoptive relationships and stepchildren) and the spouses of 
each such Persons.

“Fiscal Year” means the Company’s annual accounting period established pursuant to Section 7.2.

“GAAP” means United States generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied.

“Governmental Entity” means the United States of America or any other nation, any state or other political subdivision thereof, or any entity exercising executive, legislative, 
judicial, regulatory or administrative functions of government or any agency or department or subdivision of any governmental authority, including the United States federal government 
or any state or local government.
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“Indebtedness” means at a particular time, without duplication, (i) any indebtedness for borrowed money or issued in substitution for or exchange of indebtedness for borrowed 
money, (ii) any indebtedness evidenced by any note, bond, debenture or other debt security, (iii) any indebtedness for the deferred purchase price of property or services with respect to 
which a Person is liable, contingently or otherwise, as obligor or otherwise (other than trade payables and other current liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business which are 
not more than 120 days past due), (iv) any commitment by which a Person assures a creditor against loss (including contingent reimbursement obligations with respect to letters of 
credit), and (v) any credit or loan agreement or facility or other agreement, instrument or document evidencing, creating or relating to any of the foregoing.

“Interest” means the interest of a Member (and Assignee) in Profits, Losses, and Distributions.

“IRS” means the United States Internal Revenue Service.

“Liens” means any mortgage, pledge, security interest, encumbrance, lien, or charge of any kind (including, but not limited to, any conditional sale or other title retention 
agreement or lease in the nature thereof), any sale of receivables with recourse against the Company or any Affiliate thereof, any authorized filing or agreement to file a financing 
statement as debtor under the Uniform Commercial Code or any similar statute other than to reflect ownership by a third party of property leased to the Company or any Affiliate under a 
lease which is not in the nature of a conditional sale or title retention agreement, or any subordination arrangement in favor of another Person (other than any subordination arising in the 
ordinary course of business).

“Losses” means items of Company loss and deduction determined according to Section 3.2.

“Majority in Interest” means Members holding a majority of the outstanding Units.

“Manager” means the manager of the Company appointed in accordance with Section 5.1, who, for purposes of the Act, will be deemed a “manager” (as defined in the Act) but 
will be subject to the rights, obligations, limitations and duties set forth in this Agreement.

“Member” means each of the Persons listed on Schedule A attached hereto, and any Person admitted to the Company as a Substituted Member or Additional Member; but only 
for so long as such Person is shown on the Company’s books and records as the owner of one or more Units.

“Member Minimum Gain” has the meaning set forth for “partner nonrecourse debt minimum gain” in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(2).

“Minimum Gain” means the partnership minimum gain determined pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.704 2(d).

“Officers” means each individual designated as an officer of the Company to whom authority and duties have been delegated pursuant to Section 5.7, subject to any resolution 
of the Manager appointing such individual as an officer or relating to such appointment.

“Partnership Representative” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8.3.

“Percentage Interests” shall mean, with respect to a Member, a fraction (expressed as a percentage), (x) the numerator of which is the number of Units held by such Member, 
and (y) the denominator of which the aggregate number of Units held by all Members.
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“Permitted Transferee” means (i) with respect to a Member who is a natural person, to a member or members of his or her Family Group, and (ii) with respect to a Member 
who is an entity, to its Affiliates or, in the event of the winding up of such Member, by a pro rata distribution to its equity holders in accordance with its constituent documents.

“Person” means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a limited liability company, an association, a joint stock company, a trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated 
organization, any other business entity, or a Governmental Entity.

“Profits” means items of Company income and gain determined according to Section 3.2.

“Regulatory Allocations” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3(d).

“Requisite Members” means a Majority in Interest of the Members.

“Sale of the Company” means any (i) transaction or series of similar transactions (including by way of merger, consolidation, recapitalization, reorganization, sale of securities, 
sale, lease, transfer or other disposition of assets, or otherwise) pursuant to which Members of the Company immediately preceding such transaction own less than a majority of the 
voting power of the outstanding Interests of the Company or shares or interests of the surviving or acquiring entity, or (ii) a sale, lease, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially 
all of the assets of the Company.

“Securities” means notes, stocks, bonds, debentures, evidences of indebtedness, certificates of interest or participation in any profit-sharing agreement, partnership interests, 
beneficial interests in trusts, collateral trust certificates, pre-organization certificates or subscriptions, transferable shares, investment contracts, voting trust certificates, certificates of 
deposit for securities, certificates of equity interests, notional principal contracts and certificates of interest or participation in, temporary or interim certificates for, receipts for or 
warrants or rights or options to subscribe to or purchase or sell any of the foregoing, and any other items commonly referred to as securities.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and applicable rules and regulations thereunder, and any successor to such statute, rules, or regulations. Any 
reference herein to a specific section, rule, or regulation of the Securities Act shall be deemed to include any corresponding provisions of future law.

“Substituted Member” means a Person that is admitted as a Member to the Company pursuant to Section 10.1.

“Tax” or “Taxes” means any federal, state, local, or foreign income, gross receipts, franchise, estimated, alternative minimum, add on minimum, sales, use, transfer, 
registration, value added, excise, natural resources, severance, stamp, occupation, premium, windfall profit, environmental, customs, duties, real property, personal property, capital 
stock, social security, unemployment, disability, payroll, license, employee, or other withholding, or other tax, of any kind whatsoever, including any interest, penalties, or additions to 
tax or additional amounts in respect of the foregoing.

“Taxable Year” means the Company’s Fiscal Year unless the Manager determines otherwise in compliance with applicable laws.

“Transfer” means any sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, mortgage, exchange, hypothecation, grant of a security interest or other direct or indirect disposition or encumbrance 
of an interest (including by operation of law) or the rights thereof. The terms “Transferee,” “Transferred,” and other forms of the word “Transfer” shall have correlative meanings.
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“Treasury Regulations” means the income tax regulations promulgated under the Code.

“Unit” means a unit of Interest of a Member or an Assignee in the Company representing a fractional part of the interests in the Profits, Losses and Distributions of the 
Company held by all Members and Assignees and shall have the rights, powers, and duties set forth in this Agreement.

ARTICLE II.
ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS

2.1 Formation. The Company was organized as a Delaware limited liability company by filing the Certificate with the Secretary of State of Delaware pursuant to the Act on 
January 27, 2020. The Members hereby agree to execute, file and record all such other certificates and documents, including amendments to the Certificate, and to do such other acts as 
may be appropriate to comply with all requirements for the formation, continuation and operation of a Delaware limited liability company, the ownership of property, and the conduct of 
business under the laws of the State of Delaware and any other jurisdiction in which the Company may own property or conduct business.

2.2 Limited Liability Company Agreement. This Agreement is intended to serve as the Company’s “limited liability company agreement,” as such term is defined in the Act. 
The Members hereby agree that during the term of the Company set forth in Section 2.6 the rights, powers and obligations of the Members with respect to the Company will be 
determined in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and, subject to the express terms of this Agreement, the Act.

2.3 Name. The name of the Company shall be “Viroment Capital, LLC.” The Manager, in its sole discretion, may change the name of the Company at any time and from time 
to time. Notification of any such change shall be given to all Members. The Company’s business may be conducted under its name and/or any other name or names deemed advisable by 
the Manager.

2.4 Purpose. The purpose and business of the Company shall be to engage in any lawful acts or activities for which limited liability companies may be organized under the Act 
and to engage in all activities necessary or incidental to the foregoing.

2.5 Principal Office; Registered Office. The principal office of the Company shall be located at such place as the Manager may from time to time designate, and all business 
and activities of the Company shall be deemed to have occurred at its principal office. The Company may maintain offices at such other place or places as the Manager deems advisable. 
Notification of any such change shall be given to all Members. The registered office of the Company required by the Act to be maintained in the State of Delaware shall be the office of 
the initial registered agent named in the Certificate or such other office (which need not be a place of business of the Company) as the Manager may designate from time to time in the 
manner provided by law. The registered agent of the Company in the State of Delaware shall be the initial registered agent named in the Certificate or such other Person or Persons as the 
Manager may designate from time to time in the manner provided by law.

2.6 Term. The term of the Company commenced upon the filing of the Certificate in accordance with the Act and shall continue in existence until termination and dissolution 
thereof in accordance with the provisions of ARTICLE XII.

2.7 No State Law Partnership. The Members intend that the Company not be a partnership (including, but not limited to, a limited partnership) or joint venture, and that no 
Member be a partner or joint venturer of any other Member by virtue of this Agreement (except for tax purposes as set forth in the next succeeding sentence of this Section 2.7), and 
neither this Agreement nor any other document entered into by the Company or any Member relating to the subject matter hereof shall be construed to suggest otherwise. The Members 
intend that the Company shall be treated as a partnership for federal and, if applicable, state or local income tax purposes, and that each Member and the Company shall file all tax 
returns and shall otherwise take all tax and financial reporting positions in a manner consistent with such treatment; provided, however, that the Manager may in its sole discretion 
change the tax treatment of the Company, including to be taxed as a corporation.
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ARTICLE III.
UNITS; CAPITAL ACCOUNTS

3.1 Members; Capital Contributions.

(a) Issuance of Units. Upon the execution of this Agreement by the Members, each Member has made an initial Capital Contribution and is deemed to own the number of 
Units set forth opposite such Member’s name on Schedule A attached hereto. The Company may issue fractional Units. The ownership by a Member of Units shall entitle such Member 
to allocations of Profits and Losses and Distributions of cash and other property as set forth in ARTICLE IV hereof. The ownership of Units of this Agreement is as set forth on 
Schedule A attached hereto.

(b) Capital Account of Members. Each Member will have a Capital Account equal to the Capital Contribution paid by such Member in accordance with Section 3.1(a). The 
Company and each Member shall file all tax returns, including any schedules thereto, in a manner consistent with such Capital Accounts. Each Person listed on Schedule A upon his, her 
or its execution of this Agreement or a counterpart thereto is hereby admitted to the Company as a Member of the Company. Each Member’s Interest in the Company, including such 
Member’s interest in Profits, Losses and Distributions of the Company and the right to vote on certain matters, if any, as provided in this Agreement, shall be represented by the Units 
owned by such Member.

(c) Additional Capital Contributions. No Member shall be required to contribute any capital to the Company, and no Member shall have a personal liability for any 
obligation of the Company.

3.2 Capital Accounts.

(a) The Company shall maintain a separate Capital Account for each Member according to the rules of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv). For this purpose, the 
Company may (in the discretion of the Manager), upon the occurrence of the events specified in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(f) increase or decrease the Capital 
Accounts in accordance with the rules of such regulation and Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(g) and (h)(2) to reflect a revaluation of Company property, which 
adjustment shall be made in a manner consistent with Proposed Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(s)). Without limiting the foregoing, each Member’s Capital Account shall 
be adjusted:

(i) by adding any additional Capital Contributions made by such Member in consideration for the issuance of Units;

(ii) by deducting any amounts paid to such Member in connection with the redemption or other repurchase by the Company of Units;

(iii) by adding any Profits allocated to such Member and subtracting any Losses allocated to such Member;

(iv) by deducting any cash or the Fair Market Value of other assets distributed to such Member by the Company on Units;
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(v) by any other adjustments in accordance with the other capital account maintenance rules of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv).

(b) For purposes of computing the amount of any item of Company income, gain, loss, or deduction to be allocated pursuant to ARTICLE IV and to be reflected in the 
Capital Accounts, the determination, recognition, and classification of any such item shall be the same as its determination, recognition and classification for federal income tax purposes 
(including any method of depreciation, cost recovery or amortization used for this purpose); provided, that:

(i) The computation of all items of income, gain, loss and deduction shall include those items described in Code Section 705(a)(1)(B) or Code Section 705(a)(2)(B) and 
Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(i), without regard to the fact that such items are not includable in gross income or are not deductible for federal income tax 
purposes.

(ii) If the Book Value of any Company property is adjusted pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(e) or (f), the amount of such adjustment shall be 
taken into account as gain or loss from the disposition of such property.

(iii) Items of income, gain, loss or deduction attributable to the disposition of Company property having a Book Value that differs from its adjusted basis for tax 
purposes shall be computed by reference to the Book Value of such property.

(iv) Items of depreciation, amortization and other cost recovery deductions with respect to Company property having a Book Value that differs from its adjusted basis 
for tax purposes shall be computed by reference to the property’s Book Value in accordance with Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(g).

(v) To the extent an adjustment to the adjusted tax basis of any Company asset pursuant to Code Sections 732(d), 734(b) or 743(b) is required, pursuant to Treasury 
Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(m), to be taken into account in determining Capital Accounts, the amount of such adjustment to the Capital Accounts shall be treated as an 
item of gain (if the adjustment increases the basis of the asset) or loss (if the adjustment decreases such basis).

(vi) Where Section 704(c) of the Code applies to Company property or where Company property is permitted to be revalued pursuant to paragraph (b)(2)(iv)(f) of 
Section 1.704-1 of the Treasury Regulations, each Member’s Capital Account shall be adjusted in accordance with paragraph (b)(2)(iv)(f) and (b)(2)(iv)(g) of Section 1.704-1 
of the Treasury Regulations.

3.3 Negative Capital Accounts. No Member shall be required to pay to any other Member, the Company or any other Person any deficit or negative balance which may exist 
from time to time in such Member’s Capital Account (including upon and after dissolution of the Company).

3.4 No Withdrawal. No Person shall be entitled to withdraw any part of such Person’s Capital Contributions or Capital Account or to receive any Distribution from the 
Company, except as expressly provided herein or in the other agreements referred to herein.

3.5 Loans From Members. Loans by Members to the Company shall not be considered Capital Contributions. If any Member shall loan funds to the Company, the making of 
such loans shall not result in any increase in the amount of the Capital Account of such Member. The amount of any such loans shall be a debt of the Company to such Member and shall 
be payable or collectible in accordance with the terms and conditions upon which such loans are made.
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ARTICLE IV.
DISTRIBUTIONS AND ALLOCATIONS

4.1 Distributions.

(a) Distribution Policy. Subject to the terms of this Section 4.1, the Company shall make Distributions at any time or from time to time as approved by the Manager.

(b) Distributions. Any Distributions shall be distributed to the holders of the Units ratably based on their Percentage Interests.

(c) Limitation on Distributions. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the Company shall not make any distribution to Members if 
such distribution would violate the Act or other applicable law.

(d) Tax Distributions. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary but subject to the Act, the Company will endeavor to distribute to the Members cash 
Distributions from the Company (after taking into account any other Distributions pursuant to this Section 4.1 received by them in respect of such fiscal year) in amounts sufficient to 
enable the Members to discharge any federal, state and local tax liability (excluding penalties) arising as a result of the allocations of taxable income to such Members, determined by 
assuming the applicability of the highest combined effective marginal federal, state and local income tax rates applicable to an individual resident in Atlanta, Georgia (or, if higher, 
applicable to corporations doing business in Atlanta, Georgia). The amount of such tax liability shall be calculated taking into account (i) the amount of net cumulative tax loss 
previously allocated to the Members in prior fiscal years not previously considered and having served to reduce taxable income for the purpose of making distributions under this 
Section 4.1(d), (ii) the character of any income or gain and the income tax rates applicable thereto, (iii) any limitations on the ability to fully deduct items of loss and deduction for 
federal, state or local income tax purposes (including, without limitation, and such limitations imposed under Sections 67 or 68 of the Code) and (iv) any liability for Medicare 
contributions tax imposed under Section 1411 of the Code. The calculation shall be made on the assumption that taxable income or tax loss from the Company with respect to any 
allocation of taxable income or tax loss is the Member’s only taxable income or tax loss. Any Distributions to be made pursuant to this Section 4.1(d) shall be allocated among the 
Members in proportion to their respective assumed tax liability rather than in accordance with Section 4.1(b), and shall be considered an advance against the next future Distributions in 
accordance with Section 4.1(a) and Section 4.1(b), as applicable, to each such Member and shall offset such next future Distributions.

(e) Persons Receiving Distributions. Each Distribution shall be made to the Persons shown on the Company’s books and records as Members as of the date of such 
Distribution; provided, however, that any transferor and transferee of Units may mutually agree as to which of them should receive payment of any Distribution under Section 4.1.

4.2 Allocations. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.3, Profits and Losses for any Fiscal Year shall be allocated among the Members in such a manner that, as of the end 
of such Fiscal Year, the Capital Account of each Member, after taking into account such allocation as well as allocations pursuant to Sections 4.3(a) and 4.3(b), shall be equal to (a) an 
amount to which such Member would be entitled if the Company were to liquidate the assets of the Company for an amount equal to their Book Value and distribute the proceeds of 
liquidation pursuant to Section 12.2, minus (b) the sum of such Member’s share of (i) Minimum Gain (as determined in accordance with Treasury Regulations Sections 1.704-2(d) and 
(g)(3) and (ii) Member Minimum Gain (as determined in accordance with Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)). Except as provided in Section 4.3, for each Fiscal Year, allocations 
of each item of gain and income among Profits will be made proportionately among the Members pursuant to their total allocations of Profits, and allocations of each item of loss and 
deduction will be made proportionately among the Members pursuant to their total allocations of Losses.
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4.3 Special Allocations.

(a) Losses attributable to partner nonrecourse debt (as defined in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(b)(4)) shall be allocated in the manner required by Treasury 
Regulations Section 1.704-2(i). If there is a net decrease during a Fiscal Year in partner nonrecourse debt minimum gain (as defined in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(3)), 
Profits for such Fiscal year (and, if necessary, for subsequent Fiscal Years) shall be allocated to the Members in the amounts and of such character as determined according to, and 
subject to the exceptions contained in, Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(4).

(b) If there is a net decrease in Minimum Gain during any Fiscal Year, each Member shall be allocated Profits for such Fiscal Year (and, if necessary, for subsequent Fiscal 
Years) in the amounts and of such character as determined according to, and subject to the exceptions contained in, Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(f). This Section 4.3(b) is 
intended to be a minimum gain chargeback provision that complies with the requirements of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(f), and shall be interpreted in a manner consistent 
therewith.

(c) If any Member that unexpectedly receives an adjustment, allocation, or distribution described in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), (5) and (6) has an 
Adjusted Capital Account Deficit as of the end of any Taxable Year, computed after the application of Section 4.3(c) but before the application of any other provision of this ARTICLE 
IV, then Profits for such Taxable Year shall be allocated to such Member in proportion to, and to the extent of, such Adjusted Capital Account Deficit. This Section 4.3(c) is intended to 
be a qualified income offset provision as described in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)(d) and shall be interpreted in a manner consistent therewith.

(d) The allocations set forth in Sections 4.313.4.3(a) - (c) (the “Regulatory Allocations’”) are intended to comply with certain requirements of Sections 1.704-1(b) and 
1.704-2 of the Treasury Regulations. The Regulatory Allocations may not be consistent with the manner in which the Members intend to allocate Profit and Loss of the Company or 
make Company distributions. Accordingly, notwithstanding the other provisions of this ARTICLE IV, but subject to the Regulatory Allocations, income, gain, deduction, and loss shall 
be reallocated among the Members so as to eliminate the effect of the Regulatory Allocations and thereby cause the respective Capital Accounts of the Members to be in the amounts (or 
as close thereto as possible) they would have been if Profit and Loss (and such other items of income, gain, deduction, and loss) had been allocated without reference to the Regulatory 
Allocations. In general, the Members anticipate that this will be accomplished by specially allocating other Profit and Loss (and such other items of income, gain, deduction, and loss) 
among the Members so that the net amount of the Regulatory Allocations and such special allocations to each such Member is zero.

(e) In the event it is finally determined that any Member realized taxable income from compensation for services in connection with the issuance of Units to such Member in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement where the Units were intended to constitute profits interests for income tax purposes, the Company shall specifically allocate to such 
Member the corresponding Company compensation deduction, if consistent with the Code and Treasury Regulations.

4.4 Tax Allocations.

(a) The income, gains, losses, deductions and credits of the Company will be allocated, for federal, state and local income tax purposes, among the Members in accordance 
with the allocation of such income, gains, losses, deductions and credits among the Members for computing their Capital Accounts; except that, if any such allocation is not permitted by 
the Code or other applicable law, then the Company’s subsequent income, gains, losses, deductions and credits will be allocated among the Members so as to reflect as nearly as possible 
the allocation set forth herein in computing their Capital Accounts.
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(b) Items of Company taxable income, gain, loss and deduction with respect to any property contributed to the capital of the Company shall be allocated among the 
Members in accordance with Code Section 704(c) so as to take account of any variation between the adjusted basis of such property to the Company for federal income tax purposes and 
its Book Value pursuant to an acceptable method under the Treasury Regulations.

(c) If the Book Value of any Company asset is adjusted pursuant to the requirements of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(e) or (f) subsequent allocations of 
items of taxable income, gain, loss and deduction with respect to such asset shall take account of any variation between the adjusted basis of such asset for federal income tax purposes 
and its Book Value in the same manner as under Code Section 704(c).

(d) Allocations of tax credits, tax credit recapture and any items related thereto shall be allocated to the Members according to their interests in such items as determined by 
the Manager taking into account the principles of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(4)(ii).

(e) Allocations pursuant to this Section 4.4 are solely for purposes of federal, state and local taxes and shall not affect, or in any way be taken into account in computing, any 
Member’s Capital Account or Unit of Profits, Losses, Distributions or other Company items pursuant to any provision of this Agreement.

4.5 Indemnification and Reimbursement for Payments on Behalf of a Member. If the Company is required by law to make any payment that is specifically attributable to a 
Member or a Member’s status as such (including federal withholding taxes, state personal property taxes, and state unincorporated business taxes), including without limitation in 
connection with any sale of a Member’s interest in the Company in whole or part, then such Member shall indemnify the Company in full for the entire amount paid (including interest, 
penalties and related expenses). The Company shall have the right to withhold or deduct any Taxes it is required by law to withhold or deduct from any Distributions or items of Profits 
or taxable income payable or allocable to a Member, and at its option, the Company may treat any amounts withheld or deducted by the Company or paid by the Company on behalf of a 
Member pursuant to this Section 4.5 as Distributions to such Member pursuant to Section 4.1(b). The Company may pursue and enforce all rights and remedies it may have against each 
Member under this Section 4.5, including instituting a lawsuit to collect such indemnification and contribution with interest calculated at a rate equal to 10% per annum, compounded as 
of the last day of each year (but not in excess of the highest rate per annum permitted by law). No obligations of a Member under this Section 4.5 and no actions taken by the Company 
pursuant to this Section 4.5 shall have any effect on any Member’s ownership percentage of the Company.

ARTICLE V.
MANAGEMENT

5.1 Management by the Manager. The business and affairs of the Company shall be managed by the Manager. Subject to the provisions of Section 5.2, the Manager shall have 
full and complete discretion to manage and control the business and affairs of the Company, to make all decisions affecting the business and affairs of the Company and to take all such 
actions as it deems necessary or appropriate to accomplish the purposes of the Company set forth in Section 2.4. The actions of the Manager taken in accordance with the provisions of 
this Agreement shall bind the Company. No other Member of the Company shall have any authority or right to act on behalf of or bind the Company, unless otherwise provided herein or 
unless specifically authorized by the Manager pursuant to a resolution expressly authorizing such action which resolution is duly adopted by the Manager. The initial Manager of the 
Company shall be Paul Koenig. The Manager shall have express authority to make any election under Code Sections 161(k) or 181.
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5.2 Actions Requiring Approval of Members. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Manager shall not cause or permit the Company to, without approval of the Requisite 
Members:

(a) amend, modify or waive the Certificate of Formation or this Agreement; provided  that the Manager may, without the consent of the other Members, amend Schedule A 
following any new issuance, redemption, repurchase or transfer of Units in accordance with this Agreement;

(b) make any material change to the nature of the business conducted by the Company;

(c) issue additional Units or admit additional Members to the Company;

(d) incur any Indebtedness in excess of $100,000.00 (other than Indebtedness incurred in connection with the issuance of promissory notes through the Company’s 
Regulation Crowdfunding offering), pledge or grant liens on any assets or guarantee, assume, endorse or otherwise become responsible for the obligations of any other Person, except to 
the extent approved or authorized in the Budget; enter into or effect any transaction or series of related transactions involving the purchase, lease, license, exchange or other acquisition 
(including by merger, consolidation, acquisition of stock or acquisition of assets) by the Company of any assets and/or equity interests of any Person, other than in the ordinary course of 
business consistent with past practice;

(e) enter into or effect any transaction or series of related transactions involving the sale, lease, license, exchange or other disposition (including by merger, consolidation, 
sale of stock or sale of assets) by the Company of any assets, other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(f) establish a subsidiary or enter into any joint venture or similar business arrangement;

(g) settle any lawsuit, action, dispute or other proceeding or otherwise assume any liability with a value in excess of $100,000.00 or agree to the provision of any equitable 
relief by the Company;

(h) initiate or consummate an initial public offering or make a public offering and sale of the Units or any other securities;

(i) make any investments in any other Person in excess of $250,000.00; or

(j) dissolve, wind-up or liquidate the Company or initiate a bankruptcy proceeding involving the Company.

5.3 Removal of Manager. The Manager may be removed or replaced at any time, with or without cause, by the Requisite Members. Following such removal or replacement, a 
successor Manager shall be elected by the Requisite Members. The removal of the Manager shall not affect its rights as a Member and shall not constitute a dissociation of such 
Member.

5.4 Resignation of Manager. The Manager may resign at any time by giving at least 30 days’ prior written notice to the Company. The Company’s acceptance of a resignation 
shall not be necessary to make it effective. The resignation of the Manager shall not affect its rights as a Member and shall not constitute a dissociation of such Member.

5.5 Action Without Meeting. Any matter that is to be voted on, consented to or approved by Members may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote 
if consented to, in writing or by electronic transmission, by a Member or Members having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such 
action at a meeting at which all members entitled to vote thereon were present and voted. A record shall be maintained by the Manager of each such action taken by written consent of a 
Member or Members.
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5.6 Third Party Reliance. Any Person dealing with the Company, other than a Member, may rely on the authority of any Officer in taking any action in the name of the 
Company without inquiry into the provisions of this Agreement or compliance herewith, regardless of whether that action actually is taken in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement.

5.7 Officers.

(a) Designation and Appointment. The Manager may (but need not), from time to time, designate and appoint one or more persons as an Officer of the Company. No Officer 
need be a resident of the State of Delaware, a Manager or Member. Any Officers so designated shall have such authority and perform such duties as the Manager may, from time to time 
delegate to them in writing. The Manager may assign titles to particular Officers. Each Officer shall hold office until such Officer’s successor shall be duly designated and shall qualify 
or until such Officer’s death or until such Officer shall resign or shall have been removed in the manner hereinafter provided. Any number of offices may be held by the same individual. 
The salaries or other compensation, if any, of the Officers and agents of the Company shall be fixed from time to time by the Manager.

(b) Resignation. Any Officer (subject to any contract rights available to the Company, if applicable) may resign as such at any time. Such resignation shall be made in 
writing and shall take effect at the time specified therein, or if no time be specified, at the time of its receipt by the Manager. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to 
make it effective, unless expressly so provided in the resignation. Any Officer may be removed as such, either with or without cause, by the Manager whenever in his judgment the best 
interests of the Company shall be served thereby; provided, however, that such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the individual so removed. Designation 
of an Officer shall not of itself create contract rights. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the Company may be filled by the Manager.

(c) Duties of Officers; Generally. The Officers, in the performance of their duties as such, shall owe to the Company and the Members duties of loyalty and due care of the 
type and to the extent owed by the officers of a corporation to such corporation and its stockholders under the laws of the State of Delaware.

5.8 Limitation of Liability.

(a) Waiver of Liability. Except as otherwise provided herein or in any agreement entered into by such Person and the Company and to the maximum extent permitted by the 
Act, no present or former Manager or Officer nor any Affiliate, employee, agent or representative of any such Person (each, a “Released Person”) shall be liable to the Company or to 
any Member for any act or omission performed or omitted by a Released Person in such capacity; provided, that except as otherwise provided herein, such limitation of liability shall not 
apply to the extent the act or omission was attributable to such Released Person’s willful misconduct or bad faith or constitutes a violation of the implied contractual covenant of good 
faith and fair dealing, in each case as determined by a final judgment, order or decree of an arbitrator or a court of competent jurisdiction (which is not appealable or with respect to 
which the time for appeal therefrom has expired and no appeal has been perfected). Each Released Person shall be entitled to rely upon the advice of legal counsel, independent public 
accountants and other experts, including financial advisors, and any act of or failure to act by such Released Person in good faith reliance on such advice shall in no event subject such 
Released Person to liability to the Company or any Member.

(b) Manager Discretion. Whenever in this Agreement or any other agreement contemplated herein or to which the Company is a party the Manager is permitted or required 
to take any action or to make a decision or determination, the Manager shall take such action or make such decision or determination in its sole discretion, unless another standard is 
expressly set forth herein or therein. Whenever in this Agreement or any other agreement contemplated herein the Manager is permitted or required to take any action or to make a 
decision or determination in its “sole discretion” or “discretion,” with “complete discretion” or under a grant of similar authority or latitude, the Manager shall be entitled to consider 
such interests and factors as the Manager desires (including, without limitation, the interests of the Manager or its Affiliates).
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(c) Good Faith and Other Standards. Whenever in this Agreement or any other agreement contemplated herein or to which the Company is a party the Manager is permitted 
or required to take any action or to make a decision or determination in its “good faith”, the Manager shall act under such express standard and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, 
shall not be subject to any other or different standards except as imposed by this Agreement or any other agreement to which the Company is a party.

(d) Limitation of Duties; Conflict of Interest. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, the Company and each Member hereby waives any claim or cause of 
action against the Manager and each Member and their respective Affiliates, employees, agents and representatives for any breach of any fiduciary duty to the Company or its Members 
by any such Person, including, without limitation, as may result from a conflict of interest between the Company or its Members and such Person or otherwise; provided, that except as 
otherwise provided herein, such limitation of liability shall not apply to the extent the act or omission was attributable to such Person’s willful misconduct or bad faith or constitutes a 
violation of the implied contractual covenant of good faith and fair dealing, in each case as determined by a final judgment, order or decree of an arbitrator or a court of competent 
jurisdiction (which is not appealable or with respect to which the time for appeal therefrom has expired and no appeal has been perfected). Each Member acknowledges and agrees that 
in the event of any such conflict of interest, each such Person may, in the absence of bad faith, act in the best interests of such Person or its Affiliates, employees, agents and 
representatives (subject to the limitations set forth above). None of the Manager or the Members (other than any Member in its capacity as an Officer or as an employee of the Company) 
shall be obligated to recommend or take any action in its capacity as the Manager or Member that prefers the interests of the Company or its Members over the interests of such Person 
or its Affiliates, employees, agents or representatives, and each of the Company and each Member hereby waives the fiduciary duty, if any, of such Person to the Company and/or its 
Members, including, without limitation, in the event of any such conflict of interest or otherwise; provided, that with respect to actions or omissions by the Manager, such waiver shall 
not apply to the extent the act or omission was attributable to the Manager’s willful misconduct or bad faith or a violation of the implied contractual covenant of good faith and fair 
dealing, in each case as determined by a final judgment, order or decree of an arbitrator or a court of competent jurisdiction (which is not appealable or with respect to which the time for 
appeal therefrom has expired and no appeal has been perfected).

(e) Effect on Employment Agreements. This Section 5.8 shall not in any way affect, limit or modify any Person’s liabilities, obligations, duties or responsibilities under any 
employment agreement, consulting agreement, management agreement, confidentiality agreement, non-competition agreement, non-solicitation agreement or any similar agreement with 
the Company.

5.9 Indemnification.

(a) Generally. Subject to Section 4.5, the Company hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless any Person (each an “Indemnified Person”) to the fullest extent permitted 
under the Act, as the same now exists or may hereafter be amended, substituted or replaced (but, in the case of any such amendment, substitution or replacement only to the extent that 
such amendment, substitution or replacement permits the Company to provide broader indemnification rights than the Company is providing immediately prior to such amendment, 
substitution or replacement), against all expenses, liabilities and losses (including attorney fees, judgments, fines, excise taxes or penalties) reasonably incurred or suffered by such 
Person (or one or more of such Person’s Affiliates) by reason of the fact that such Person is or was a Member or is or was serving as the Manager or as an Officer, principal, employee, 
agent or representative of the Company; provided, that no Indemnified Person shall be indemnified for any expenses, liabilities and losses suffered that are attributable to actions or 
omissions by an Indemnified Person or its Affiliates to the extent the act or omission was attributable to such Indemnified Person’s or its Affiliates’ (excluding, for purposes hereof, the 
Company’s) willful misconduct or bad faith or constitutes a violation of the implied contractual covenant of good faith and fair dealing, in each case as determined by a final judgment, 
order or decree of an arbitrator or a court of competent jurisdiction (which is not appealable or with respect to which the time for appeal therefrom has expired and no appeal has been 
perfected) or for any present or future breaches of any representations, warranties or covenants by such Indemnified Person or its Affiliates’ (excluding, for purposes hereof, the 
Company’s), employees, agents or representatives contained herein or in any other agreement with the Company; provided, further, that no Person shall be entitled to indemnification 
hereunder with respect to a suit or proceeding initiated by such Person or with respect to a proceeding between such Person on the one hand and the Company on the other.
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(b) Advance Payment of Expenses. Expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, incurred by any present or former Manager in defending a suit or 
proceeding (but not a proceeding initiated by such Indemnified Person, other than a suit or proceeding to enforce such Indemnified Person’s rights under this Section 5.9) for which 
indemnification is available under this Section 5.9 shall be paid by the Company in advance of the final disposition of such proceeding, including any appeal therefrom, upon receipt by 
the Manager of an undertaking by or on behalf of such Manager to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that such Indemnified Person is not entitled to be indemnified 
by the Company. Expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, incurred by any Indemnified Person other than a Manager in defending a suit or proceeding (but not a 
proceeding initiated by such Indemnified Person, other than a suit or proceeding to enforce such Indemnified Person’s rights under this Section 5.9) for which indemnification is 
available under this Section 5.9 may be paid by the Company in advance of the final disposition of such proceeding, including any appeal therefrom, upon approval of the Manager and 
receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such Indemnified Person to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that such Indemnified Person is not entitled to be 
indemnified by the Company.

(c) Nonexclusivity of Rights. The right to indemnification and the advancement of expenses conferred in this Section 5.9 shall not be exclusive of any other right which any 
Person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute, agreement, law or otherwise.

(d) Insurance. The Company may maintain, at its expense, directors’ and officers’ insurance in amounts determined by the Manager to protect any Indemnified Person 
against any expense, liability or loss described in Section 13.5.9(a)(a) above whether or not the Company would have the power to indemnify such Indemnified Person against such 
expense, liability or loss under the provisions of this Section 5.9.

(e) Limitation. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary (including in this Section 5.9), any indemnity by the Company relating to the matters covered in 
this Section 5.9 shall be provided out of and to the extent of Company assets only, and no Member (unless such Member otherwise agrees in writing or is found in a final decision by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to have personal liability on account thereof) shall have personal liability on account thereof or shall be required to make additional Capital Contributions 
to help satisfy such indemnity of the Company (except as expressly provided herein).

(f) Savings Clause. If this Section 5.9 or any portion hereof shall be invalidated on any ground by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the Company shall nevertheless 
indemnify and hold harmless each Indemnified Person pursuant to this Section 5.9 to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law and to the fullest extent permitted by any applicable 
portion of this Section 5.9 that shall not have been invalidated.
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ARTICLE VI.
CERTAIN RIGHTS, COVENANTS AND OBLIGATIONS

6.1 Certain Affirmative Covenants. The Company covenants with the Members to:

(a) pay and discharge when payable all taxes, assessments and governmental charges imposed upon its properties or upon the income or profits therefrom (in each case 
before the same becomes delinquent and before penalties accrue thereon) and all claims for labor, materials or supplies, unless and to the extent that the same are being contested in good 
faith and by appropriate proceedings and adequate reserves (as determined in accordance with GAAP) have been established on its books and financial statements with respect thereto;

(b) comply, in all material respects, with all applicable laws, rules and regulations of all Governmental Entities; and

(c) maintain true books and records of account in which full and correct entries will be made of all its business transactions pursuant to a system of accounting established 
and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied (except as noted therein) and will set aside on its books all such proper accruals and 
reserves as shall be required under generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.

6.2 Limitation of Liability. Except as otherwise provided by the Act, the debts, obligations and liabilities of the Company, whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise, shall be 
solely the debts, obligations and liabilities of the Company, and no Member (including the Manager) shall be obligated personally for any such debt, obligation or liability of the 
Company solely by reason of being a Member or acting as a Member or Manager of the Company, other than such Member’s obligation to make Capital Contributions to the Company 
pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, a Member’s liability (in its capacity as such) for debts, liabilities and losses of the 
Company shall be such Member’s share of the Company’s assets; provided, that a Member shall be required to return to the Company any Distribution made to it in clear and manifest 
accounting or similar error. The immediately preceding sentence shall constitute a compromise to which all Members have consented within the meaning of the Act. Notwithstanding 
anything contained herein to the contrary, the failure of the Company to observe any formalities or requirements relating to the exercise of its powers or management of its business and 
affairs under this Agreement or the Act shall not be grounds for imposing personal liability on a Member for liabilities of the Company, except to the extent constituting fraud, gross 
negligence or willful misconduct by such Members.

6.3 Lack of Authority. No Member in his, her or its capacity as such (other than the Manager or an authorized Officer of the Company) has the authority or power to act for or 
on behalf of the Company in any manner, to do any act that would be (or could be construed as) binding on the Company, in any manner or way, or to make any expenditures on behalf 
of the Company, unless such specific authority and power has been expressly granted to and not revoked from such Member by the Manager, and the Members hereby consent to the 
exercise by the Manager of the powers conferred on such Person by law and this Agreement.

6.4 No Right of Partition. No Member shall have the right to seek or obtain partition by court decree or operation of law of any Company property, or the right to own or use 
particular or individual assets of the Company.
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6.5 Confidentiality.

(a) Each Member recognizes and acknowledges that it has and may in the future receive certain confidential and proprietary information and trade secrets of the Company 
(the “Confidential Information”). Except as otherwise expressly consented to by the Manager in writing, each Member (on behalf of itself and, to the extent that such Member would be 
responsible for the acts of the following Persons under principles of agency law, its managers, directors, officers, shareholders, partners, employees, agents and members) agrees that it 
will not, during or after the term of this Agreement, whether directly or indirectly through an Affiliate or otherwise, take commercial or proprietary advantage of or profit from any 
Confidential Information or disclose Confidential Information to any Person for any reason or purpose whatsoever, except (i) to the Manager, Officers, Members, representatives, agents 
and employees of the Company and as otherwise may be proper in the course of performing such Member’s obligations, or enforcing such Member’s rights, under this Agreement and 
the agreements expressly contemplated hereby; (ii) to any bona fide prospective purchaser of the equity or assets of such Member or its Affiliates or the Units held by such Member, or 
prospective merger partner of such Member or its Affiliates; provided, that such purchaser or merger partner agrees to be bound by the provisions of this Section 6.5 or other 
confidentiality agreement approved by the Manager; or (iii) as is required to be disclosed by order of a court of competent jurisdiction, administrative body or Governmental Entity, or 
by subpoena, summons or legal process, or by law, rule or regulation; provided, that the Member required to make such disclosure pursuant to clause (iii) above shall provide to the 
Company prompt notice of such disclosure to enable the Company to seek an appropriate protective order or confidential treatment. For purposes of this Section 6.5, the term 
“Confidential Information” shall not include any information which (x) such Person learns from a source other than the, or any of their respective representatives, employees, agents or 
other service providers, and in each case who is not known by such Person to be bound by a confidentiality obligation, (y) is publicly available, or (z) is disclosed in a prospectus or 
other documents for dissemination to the public.

(b) Nothing in this Section 6.5 shall in any way limit or otherwise modify any confidentiality covenants entered into by the Members pursuant to any other agreement 
entered into with the Company.

ARTICLE VII.
BOOKS, RECORDS, ACCOUNTING AND REPORTS

7.1 Records and Accounting. The Company shall keep, or cause to be kept, appropriate books and records with respect to the Company’s business, including all books and 
records necessary to provide any information, lists, and copies of documents required to be provided pursuant to Section 7.3 or pursuant to applicable laws. All matters concerning (i) the 
determination of the relative amount of allocations and distributions among the Members pursuant to ARTICLE III and ARTICLE IV, and (ii) accounting procedures and 
determinations, and other determinations not specifically and expressly provided for by the terms of this Agreement, shall be determined by the Manager, whose determination shall be 
final and conclusive as to all of the Members absent manifest clerical error.

7.2 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year (the “Fiscal Year”) of the Company shall constitute the 12-month period ending on December 31 of each calendar year, or such other annual 
accounting period as may be established by the Manager.

7.3 Reports.

(a) The Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to each Member within 120 days after the end of each Fiscal Year financial statements of the Company, which may 
be audited if required by applicable law. The electronic posting of such financial statements on the EDGAR system of the U.S. Securities & Exchange Commission, if such posting is 
required and actually made, shall be deemed to satisfy the requirement of this Section 7.3(a).

(b) The Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to each Member with reasonable promptness, such information and financial data concerning the Company as any 
Member shall from time to time reasonably request; provided, that notwithstanding the foregoing, unless otherwise required by law, the Company shall not be required to provide such 
information to Persons who are, or who are employed or engaged by, competitors of the Company (as determined by the Manager in his reasonable discretion).
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(c) The Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to deliver or cause to be delivered, within 90 days after the end of each Fiscal Year, to each Person who was a 
Member at any time during such Fiscal Year all information necessary for the preparation of such Person’s United States federal and state income tax returns.

(d) The Company shall provide any such other information relating to the financial condition, business, prospects or corporate affairs of the Company that the Members may 
from time to time reasonably request; provided, however, that the Company shall not be obligated under this Section 7.3(d) to provide information (i) that the Company reasonably 
determines in good faith to be a trade secret, or (ii) the disclosure of which would adversely affect the attorney-client privilege between the Company and its counsel.

(e) The provisions of Section 6.5 shall, to the extent applicable, govern the disclosure of any information pursuant to this Section 7.3.]

7.4 Inspection Rights. Upon reasonable notice from any Member, the Company shall, and shall cause the Manager, Officers and employees to, afford each Member and its 
representatives reasonable access during normal business hours to (i) the Company’s properties, offices, plants and other facilities, (ii) the corporate, financial and similar records, 
reports and documents of the, including, without limitation, all books and records, minutes of proceedings, internal management documents, reports of operations, reports of adverse 
developments, copies of any management letters and communications with Members or the Manager, and to permit each Member and its representatives to examine such documents and 
make copies thereof, and (iii) the Manager and the Company’s Officers, senior employees and public accountants, to afford each Member and its representatives the opportunity to 
discuss and advise on the affairs, finances and accounts of the Company with the Manager and such Officers, senior employees and public accountants (and the Company hereby 
authorizes said accountants to discuss with such Member and its representatives such affairs, finances and accounts).

7.5 Transmission of Communications. Each Person that owns or controls Units on behalf of, or for the benefit of, another Person or Persons shall be responsible for conveying 
any report, notice or other communication received from the Manager to such other Person or Persons.

7.6 Company Funds. The Manager and Officers may not commingle the Company’s funds with the funds of the Manager or any Member or Officer.

ARTICLE VIII.
TAX MATTERS

8.1 Tax Returns. The Company shall arrange for the preparation and filing of all tax returns required to be filed by the Company. Each Member shall furnish to the Company 
all pertinent information in its possession relating to Company operations that is necessary to enable the Company’s income tax returns to be prepared and filed.

8.2 Tax Elections. If there is a distribution of Company property as described in Code Section 734 or if there is a transfer of a Company interest as described in Code 
Section 743 then, upon the request of any transferee Member, the Company shall file an election pursuant to Code Section 754 for the taxable year that includes the date of the 
distribution or transfer, in accordance with the procedures set forth in the applicable Treasury Regulations to adjust the basis of Company properties. Upon the request of the Company, 
each Member shall provide the Company with all the information not then possessed by the Company necessary to give effect to any election under Code Section 754. The Company 
shall make any other tax elections which the Manager may deem appropriate and in the best interests of the Members, except where the Manager is expressly authorized to make a tax 
election, in which case the Company may make such other election as determined by the Manager.
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8.3 Partnership Representative. The officer serving in the capacity of chief financial officer, chief accounting officer or treasurer of the Company, or such other Person so 
designated by the Manager, shall be the “partnership representative” of the Company within the meaning of Section 6223(a) of the Code (the “Partnership Representative”) as included 
in the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015, as such, shall be authorized and required to represent the Company (at the Company’s expense) in connection with all examinations of the 
Company’s affairs by tax authorities, including resulting administrative and judicial proceedings, and to expend the Company’s funds for professional services and reasonably incurred 
in connection therewith. Each Member agrees to cooperate with the Company and to do or refrain from doing any or all things reasonably requested by the Company with respect to the 
conduct of such proceedings.

Notwithstanding the authority granted to the Partnership Representative hereunder, all non-ministerial decisions regarding tax elections (except where the election is expressly 
authorized to be made by the Manager hereby), audit, tax litigation, settlement and other tax matters shall be subject to the prior written approval of the Manager. For example, but not 
by way of limitation, the Partnership Representative shall not take any position or action with the IRS without the prior written approval of the Manager, including but not limited to, any 
decision (i) to enter into any settlement or other agreement with the IRS or any tax other authority that purports to bind any Member other than the Partnership Representative; (ii) to file 
a request for an administrative adjustment with the IRS or file a petition for judicial review with respect to any such request, or (iii) to extend the statute of limitations for assessing or 
computing any tax liability against the Company (or the amount or character of any Company tax items. The Partnership Representative shall furnish to the Members a copy of all 
notices or other written communications received by the Partnership Representative or the Company from the IRS or any other taxing authorities promptly after receipt of such 
communication. The Partnership Representative shall notify the Members of all communications it has had with the IRS or any other taxing authorities and shall keep the Members 
informed of all matters which may come to its attention in its capacity as Partnership Representative by giving the Members written notice thereof within five days after the Partnership 
Representative becomes informed of any such matter or within such shorter period as may be required by the appropriate statutory or regulatory provisions. In the event of any 
Company-level proceeding instituted by the IRS pursuant to Sections 6221 through 6233 of the Code, the Partnership Representative shall consult with the Manager regarding the nature 
and content of all action and defense to be taken by the Company in response to such proceeding. The Partnership Representative also shall consult with the Manager regarding the 
nature and content of any proceeding pursuant to Sections 6221 through 6233 of the Code instituted by or on behalf of the Company (including the decision to institute proceedings, 
whether administrative or judicial, and whether in response to a previous IRS proceeding against the Company or otherwise). Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, it is 
agreed that to the extent available, the Partnership Representative shall cause the Company to make, and the Company shall make, the election contemplated by Section 6221(b). In 
addition, the Manager shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to make an election to change the tax treatment of the Company, including to elect to have the Company taxed as a 
corporation.

ARTICLE IX.
TRANSFERS OF INTERESTS

9.1 Transfers by Members.

(a) Transfers of Units shall not be effective unless all of the following conditions are satisfied:

(i) The Transfer shall comply with all applicable laws, including any applicable securities laws.
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(ii) The Transfer shall not affect the Company’s existence or qualification as a limited liability company under the Act.

(iii) The Transfer shall not cause the Company to be classified as other than a partnership for United States federal income tax purposes.

(iv) The Transfer shall comply with the provisions of Section 9.1(b) and Section 13.9.1(c) hereof.

(b) In addition, no Member shall Transfer, or offer or agree to Transfer, all or any part of any interest of such Person’s Units without (i) the prior written consent of the 
Requisite Members; and (ii) compliance with this Agreement (including this Section 9.1); provided, that Transfers by a Member to his, her or its Permitted Transferees shall not require 
compliance with the preceding sentence.

(c) Each Transferee of Units or other interest in the Company shall, as a condition precedent to such Transfer, execute a counterpart to this Agreement pursuant to which 
such Transferee shall agree to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement.

9.2 Effect of Assignment.

(a) Any Member who shall assign any Units or other Interest in the Company shall cease to be a Member of the Company with respect to such Units or other Interest and 
shall no longer have any rights or privileges of a Member with respect to such Units or other Interest.

(b) Any Person who acquires in any manner whatsoever any Units or other Interest in the Company, irrespective of whether such Person has accepted and adopted in writing 
the terms and provisions of this Agreement, shall be deemed by the acceptance of the benefits of the acquisition thereof to have agreed to be subject to and bound by all of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement that any predecessor in such Units or other Interest in the Company of such Person was subject to or by which such predecessor was bound.

9.3 Transfer Fees and Expenses. The Transferor and Transferee of any Units or other Interest in the Company shall be jointly and severally obligated to reimburse the 
Company for all reasonable expenses (including attorneys’ fees and expenses) of any Transfer or proposed Transfer, whether or not consummated.

9.4 Void Transfers. Any Transfer by any Member of any Units or other Interest in the Company in contravention of this Agreement (including, but not limited to, the failure of 
the Transferee to execute a counterpart in accordance with Section 13.9.1(c)) shall be void and ineffectual and shall not bind or be recognized by the Company or any other party. No 
purported assignee shall have any right to any profits, losses or distributions of the Company.

9.5 First Refusal Rights.

(a) Offer. Prior to any Member making a Transfer of any Units (other than in connection with a Sale of the Company), such Member desiring to make such Transfer (the 
“Transferring Member”) shall deliver a written notice (the “Offer Notice”) to the other Members (each, an “Offer Notice Recipient”) and shall offer to sell such Units (the “Offered 
Units”) to the Offer Notice Recipients, on terms and conditions, including price, not less favorable to the Offer Notice Recipients than those by which the Transferring Member proposes 
to Transfer such Offered Units. The Offer Notice shall disclose in reasonable detail the identity of the prospective Transferee(s), the number of Offered Units to be Transferred and the 
material terms and conditions of the proposed Transfer. The Transferring Member shall not consummate any Transfer until 30 days after the Offer Notice has been given to the Offer 
Notice Recipients, unless the parties to the Transfer have been finally determined pursuant to this Section 9.5 prior to the expiration of such 30-day period. (The date of the first to occur 
of (x) the expiration of such 30-day period after delivery of the Offer Notice or (y) such final determination is referred to herein as the “Authorization Date”).
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(b) Offer Notice Recipients’ Election. Each Offer Notice Recipient may elect to purchase all or any portion of the Offered Units by delivering a written notice of such 
election to the Transferring Member and the Company within 15 days after the Offer Notice has been given to the Offer Notice Recipients. Each Offer Notice Recipient shall be entitled 
to purchase that fraction of the Units equal to such Offer Notice Recipient’s ROFR Percentage. If a Offer Notice Recipient purchases less than the number of Offered Units it is entitled 
to purchase under this Section 9.5(b), the Company shall give prompt notice to those Offer Notice Recipients that purchased the number of Offered Units they were entitled to purchase 
and each such Offer Notice Recipient shall have five days to notify the Transferring Member and the Company of any additional Offered Units it desires to purchase. The remaining 
Offered Units shall be allocated pro rata among those Offer Notice Recipients desiring to purchase such Offered Units. If the Offer Notice Recipients do not (alone or together) elect to 
purchase all of the Offered Units specified in the Offer Notice, the Transferring Member may Transfer any Offered Units not otherwise purchased by the Offer Notice Recipients 
pursuant to this Section 9.5(b) at a price and on terms no more favorable to the Transferee(s) thereof than specified in the Offer Notice during the 30-day period immediately following 
the Authorization Date. As used herein, “ROFR Percentage” means a Member’s Percentage Interest.

(c) Exceptions. The provisions of this Section 9.5 will not apply with respect to a Sale of the Company.

(d) No right of transfer. Nothing in this Section 9.5 shall obviate or render inapplicable the Transfer restrictions described in Section 9.1 hereof or be read to imply any right 
of Transfer that does not satisfy the requirements of Section 9.1.

ARTICLE X.
ADMISSION OF MEMBERS

10.1 Substituted Members. In connection with the Transfer of Units of a Member permitted under the terms of this Agreement, the Transferee shall become a Substituted 
Member on the later of (a) the effective date of such Transfer, and (b) the date on which the Manager approves such Transferee as a Substituted Member, and such admission shall be 
shown on the books and records of the Company; provided, however, that no Transferee shall become a Substituted Member until such Transferee furnishes to the Company (a) a letter 
of acceptance, in form satisfactory to the Manager, of all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the power of attorney granted in Section 14.1, and (b) such other 
documents or instruments as may be deemed necessary or appropriate by the Manager to effect such Person’s admission as a Member.

10.2 Additional Members. A Person may be admitted to the Company as an Additional Member only as contemplated under, and in compliance with, the terms of this 
Agreement, including furnishing to the Company (a) a letter of acceptance, in form satisfactory to the Manager, of all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the power of 
attorney granted in Section 14.1, and (b) such other documents or instruments as may be necessary or appropriate to effect such Person’s admission as a Member. Such admission shall 
become effective on the date on which the Manager determine in its sole discretion that such conditions have been satisfied and, and any such admission shall thereupon be shown on the 
books and records of the Company.

ARTICLE XI.
WITHDRAWAL OF MEMBERS

11.1 Withdrawal and Resignation of Members. No Member shall have the power or right to withdraw or otherwise resign from the Company prior to the dissolution and 
winding up of the Company pursuant to ARTICLE XII. Upon a Transfer of all of a Member’s Units in a Transfer permitted by this Agreement, such Member shall cease to be a 
Member. Notwithstanding that payment on account of a withdrawal may be made after the effective time of such withdrawal, any completely withdrawing Member will not be 
considered a Member for any purpose after the effective time of such complete withdrawal, and, in the case of a partial withdrawal, such Member’s Capital Account (and corresponding 
voting and other rights) shall be reduced for all other purposes hereunder upon the effective time of such partial withdrawal.
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ARTICLE XII.
DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION

12.1 Dissolution. The Company shall not be dissolved by the admission of Additional Members or Substituted Members, or by the death, retirement, expulsion, bankruptcy or 
dissolution of a Member. The Company shall, subject to Section 5.2, dissolve, and its affairs shall be wound up upon the first to occur of the following:

(a) at any time upon the approval of the Manager;

(b) a reasonable period of time (taking into account, among other matters, the need to determine, pay or discharge, or make adequate provision for the payment or discharge 
of, contingent liabilities) after the consummation of transaction or series of related transactions that constitute a Sale of the Company.

The Members expressly acknowledge and agree that no Member shall be permitted to seek or initiate any claim or proceeding for judicial dissolution of the Company pursuant to the 
Act, and that the sole remedy for a claim by a Member that it is not reasonably practicable to carry on the business of the Company shall be binding arbitration in accordance with 
Section 14.10. Except as otherwise set forth in this ARTICLE XII, the Company is intended to have perpetual existence. The death, retirement, resignation, expulsion, bankruptcy or 
dissolution of a Member or the occurrence of any other event that terminates the continued membership of a Member in the Company shall not cause a dissolution of the Company and 
the Company shall continue in existence subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

12.2 Liquidation and Termination. On the dissolution of the Company, the Manager shall act as liquidator or may appoint one or more representatives, Members or other 
Persons as liquidator(s). The liquidators shall proceed diligently to wind up the affairs of the Company and make final distributions as provided herein and in the Act. The costs of 
liquidation shall be borne as a Company expense. Until final distribution, the liquidators shall continue to operate Company properties with all of the power and authority of the 
Manager. The steps to be accomplished by the liquidators are as follows:

(a) First, the liquidators shall pay, satisfy or discharge from Company funds all of the debts, liabilities and obligations of the Company (including, without limitation, all 
expenses incurred in liquidation) or otherwise make adequate provision for payment and discharge thereof (including, without limitation, the establishment of a cash fund for contingent 
liabilities in such amount and for such term as the liquidators may reasonably determine).

(b) Thereafter, the liquidators shall promptly distribute the Company’s remaining assets to the holders of Units in accordance with Section 4.113.4.1(b) .

The distribution of cash and/or property to a Member in accordance with the provisions of this Section 12.2 constitutes a complete return to the Member of its Capital Contributions and 
a complete distribution to the Member of its interest in the Company and all Company property.

12.3 Cancellation of Certificate. On completion of the distribution of Company assets as provided herein, the Company shall be terminated (and the Company shall not be 
terminated prior to such time), and the Manager (or such other Person or Persons as the Act may require or permit) shall file a certificate of dissolution or termination with the Secretary 
of State of Delaware, cancel any other filings made pursuant to this Agreement that are or should be canceled, and take such other actions as may be necessary to terminate the 
Company. The Company shall be deemed to continue in existence for all purposes of this Agreement until it is terminated pursuant to this Section 12.3.
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12.4 Reasonable Time for Winding Up. A reasonable time shall be allowed for the orderly winding up of the business and affairs of the Company and the liquidation of its 
assets pursuant to Section 12.2 in order to minimize any losses otherwise attendant upon such winding up.

12.5 Return of Capital. The liquidators shall not be personally liable for the return of Capital Contributions or any portion thereof to the Members (it being understood that any 
such return shall be made solely from Company assets).

ARTICLE XIII.
VALUATION

13.1 Valuation of Units. The “Fair Market Value” of each Unit shall be the fair value of each such Unit determined in good faith by the Manager as of the date of valuation.

13.2 Valuation of Other Assets. The “Fair Market Value” of all non-cash assets shall mean the fair value for such assets as between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an 
arm’s-length transaction occurring on the date of valuation as determined by in good faith by the Manager, taking into account all relevant factors determinative of value (and giving 
effect to any transfer taxes payable or discounts in connection with such sale).

ARTICLE XIV.
GENERAL PROVISIONS

14.1 Power of Attorney and Irrevocable Proxy.

(a) Each Member hereby constitutes and appoints the Manager and the liquidators, with full power of substitution, as his true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact, with full 
power and authority in his or its name, place and stead, to execute, swear to, acknowledge, deliver, file, and record in the appropriate public offices (i) this Agreement, all certificates, 
and other instruments and all amendments (in the manner set forth herein) thereof in accordance with the terms hereof which the Manager deems appropriate or necessary to form, 
qualify, or continue the qualification of, the Company as a limited liability company in the State of Delaware and in all other jurisdictions in which the Company may conduct business 
or own property; (ii) all instruments which the Manager deems appropriate or necessary to reflect any amendment, change, modification, or restatement of this Agreement in accordance 
with its terms; (iii) all conveyances and other instruments or documents which the Manager deems appropriate or necessary to reflect the dissolution and liquidation of the Company 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, including a certificate of cancellation; and (iv) all instruments relating to the admission or substitution of any Member pursuant to ARTICLE X.

(b) The proxy and power of attorney granted by each Member pursuant to this Section 14.1 is coupled with an interest and is given to secure the performance of such 
Member’s obligations under this Agreement. Each such proxy and power of attorney shall be irrevocable for the term of this Agreement, and shall survive the death, disability, 
incapacity, dissolution, bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation or termination of any Member, as the case may be, and the Transfer of all or any portion of such Member’s Interest and shall 
extend to such Member’s heirs, successors, assigns, and personal representatives.

14.2 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended, modified or waived by a written instrument approved and executed by (i) the Manager and (ii) the Members. In the event 
of any amendment or modification to this Agreement, the Company shall promptly provide each Member with a copy of any such amendment or modification.
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14.3 Title to Company Assets. The Company’s assets shall be deemed to be owned by the Company as an entity, and no Member, individually or collectively, shall have any 
ownership interest in such Company assets or any portion thereof. Legal title to any or all Company assets may be held in the name of the Company or one or more nominees, as the 
Manager may determine. The Manager hereby declares and warrants that any Company assets for which legal title is held in its name or the name of any nominee shall be held in trust 
by the Manager or such nominee for the use and benefit of the Company in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. All Company assets shall be recorded as the property of 
the Company on its books and records, irrespective of the name in which legal title to such Company assets is held.

14.4 Remedies. Each Member and the Company shall have all rights and remedies set forth in this Agreement and all rights and remedies which such Person has been granted at 
any time under any other agreement or contract and all of the rights which such Person has under any law. Any Person having any rights under any provision of this Agreement or any 
other agreements contemplated hereby shall be entitled to enforce such rights specifically (without posting a bond or other security), to recover damages by reason of any breach of any 
provision of this Agreement and to exercise all other rights granted by law.

14.5 Successors and Assigns. All covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, legal representatives and permitted assigns, whether so expressed or not.

14.6 Severability. This Agreement is intended to be performed in accordance with, and only to the extent permitted by, all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations. 
Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement will be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and in such 
a way as to, as closely as possible, achieve the intended economic effect of such provision and this Agreement as a whole, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, 
illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any applicable law, ordinance, rule or regulation in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will not affect any other 
provision or the effectiveness or validity of any provision in any other jurisdiction, and such provision will be ineffective only to the extent of such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability, without invalidating, or effecting the legality or validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement.

14.7 Counterparts; Binding Agreement. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more separate counterparts, any one of which need not contain the 
signatures of more than one party, but each of which will, when so executed and delivered via facsimile or other electronic delivery, shall be deemed an original and all of which 
together shall constitute one and the same agreement binding on all the parties hereto. This Agreement and all of the provisions hereof shall be binding upon and effective as to each 
Person who (a) executes this Agreement in the appropriate space provided in the signature pages hereto notwithstanding the fact that other Persons who have not executed this 
Agreement may be listed on the signature pages hereto, and (b) may from time to time become a party to this Agreement by executing a counterpart of or joinder to this Agreement.

14.8 Descriptive Headings; Interpretation. The descriptive headings of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and do not constitute a substantive part of 
this Agreement. Whenever required by the context, any pronoun used in this Agreement shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine or neuter forms, and the singular form of 
nouns, pronouns and verbs shall include the plural and vice versa. The use of the word “including” in this Agreement shall be by way of example rather than by limitation and shall be 
read as though the words “without limitation” immediately followed each use of such word in this Agreement. Reference to any agreement, document, or instrument means such 
agreement, document, or instrument as amended or otherwise modified from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof, and, if applicable, hereof. Without limiting the generality 
of the immediately preceding sentence, no amendment or other modification to any agreement, document or instrument that requires the consent of any Person pursuant to the terms of 
this Agreement or any other agreement will be given effect hereunder unless such Person has consented in writing to such amendment or modification. Wherever required by the context, 
references to a Fiscal Year shall refer to a portion thereof. The use of the words “or,” “either” and “any” shall not be exclusive. The parties hereto have participated jointly in the 
negotiation and drafting of this Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties 
hereto, and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreement. Wherever a conflict 
exists between this Agreement and any other agreement, this Agreement shall control but solely to the extent of such conflict.
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14.9 Applicable Law; Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Delaware, without giving effect to any 
choice of law or conflict of law rules or provisions (whether of the State of Delaware or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than 
the State of Delaware.

14.10 Submission to Jurisdiction. The parties hereby agree that any suit, action or proceeding seeking to enforce any provision of, or based on any matter arising out of or in 
connection with, this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, whether in contract, tort or otherwise, shall be brought in the United States District Court for the District of 
Delaware or in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (or, if such court lacks subject matter jurisdiction, in the Superior Court of the State of Delaware), so long as one of such 
courts shall have subject-matter jurisdiction over such suit, action or proceeding, and that any case of action arising out of this Agreement shall be deemed to have arisen from a 
transaction of business in the State of Delaware. Each of the parties hereby irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction of such courts (and of the appropriate appellate courts therefrom) in 
any such suit, action or proceeding and irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any objection that it may now or hereafter have to the laying of the venue of any such 
suit, action or proceeding in any such court or that any such suit, action or proceeding that is brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient form. Service of process, 
summons, notice or other document by registered mail to the address set forth in Section 14.11 shall be effective service of process for any suit, action or other proceeding brought in any 
such court.

14.11 Addresses and Notices. All notices, demands or other communications to be given or delivered under or by reason of the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be deemed to have been given or made (a) when delivered personally to the recipient, (b) one Business Day after delivery to a reputable express courier service (charges 
prepaid), (c) five Business Days after being sent to the recipient by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, or (d) on the Business Day emailed to the 
recipient if emailed before 5:00 p.m. Pacific time, and otherwise on the next Business Day. Such notices, demands and other communications shall be sent to the address for such 
recipient set forth in the Company’s books and records, or to such other address or to the attention of such other person as the recipient party has specified by prior written notice to the 
sending party.

14.12 Creditors. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be for the benefit of or enforceable by any creditors of the Company, and no creditor who makes a loan to the 
Company may have or acquire (except pursuant to the terms of a separate agreement executed by the Company in favor of such creditor) at any time as a result of making the loan any 
direct or indirect interest in Company Profits, Losses, Distributions, capital or property other than as a secured creditor.

14.13 No Waiver. No failure by any party to insist upon the strict performance of any covenant, duty, agreement or condition of this Agreement or to exercise any right or 
remedy consequent upon a breach thereof shall constitute a waiver of any such breach or any other covenant, duty, agreement or condition.

14.14 Offset. Whenever the Company is to pay any sum to any Member or any Affiliate or related person thereof, any amounts that such Member or such Affiliate or related 
person owes to the Company may be deducted from that sum before payment. Whenever a Member or any Affiliate or related person thereof is to pay any sum to the Company, any 
amounts that the Company owes to such Member or such Affiliate or related person may be deducted from the sum before payment.
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14.15 Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including any schedules or exhibits hereto), those documents expressly referred to herein, and the other documents of even date 
herewith embody the complete agreement and understanding among the parties and supersede and preempt any prior understandings, agreements or representations by or among the 
parties, written or oral, which may have related to the subject matter hereof in any way.

14.16 Delivery by Facsimile or Portable Document Format. This Agreement, the agreements referred to herein, and each other agreement or instrument entered into in 
connection herewith or therewith or contemplated hereby or thereby, and any amendments hereto or thereto, to the extent signed and delivered by means of a facsimile or electronic 
transmission in portable document format (.pdf), shall be treated in all manner and respects as an original agreement or instrument and shall be considered to have the same binding legal 
effect as if it were the original signed version thereof delivered in person. At the request of any party hereto or to any such agreement or instrument, each other party hereto or thereto 
shall re-execute original forms thereof and deliver them to all other parties. No party hereto or to any such agreement or instrument shall raise the use of a facsimile machine or .pdf to 
deliver a signature or the fact that any signature or agreement or instrument was transmitted or communicated through the use of a facsimile or .pdf as a defense to the formation or 
enforceability of a contract and each such party forever waives any such defense.

14.17 Survival. Sections 4.5, 5.2, 5.2(a) , 6.2 and 6.5 and this ARTICLE XIV shall survive and continue in full force in accordance with its terms notwithstanding any 
termination of this Agreement or the dissolution of the Company. All terms and conditions of this Agreement and obligations of the Members under this Agreement which should by 
their nature survive a Sale of the Company, including Section 6.5, shall so survive.

[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first written above by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.

Company:

VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC

By:
Name:  
Title:

Members:

VIROMENT USA, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

Russ Vering

Chris Reimers

[Signature Page to Operating Agreement]
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SCHEDULE A

MEMBERS SCHEDULE

Member Name and Address Units
Percentage 

Interest
VIROMENT USA, LLC 500 50%
[ADDRESS]

Russ Vering 250 25%
[ADDRESS]

Chris Reimers 250 25%
[ADDRESS]

Total: 1,000 100%

28



Exhibit F

OFFERING PAGE ON INTERMEDIARY’S PORTAL



Exhibit G

PORTAL AGREEMENT, CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT
AND ESCROW AGREEMENT

This Portal Agreement (the “Agreement”), is made and entered into on February 12th, 2020 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Silicon Prairie Online LLC (“SPO” or “Vendor”) and 
Viroment Capital LLC (“Customer”). Each party to this Agreement may be referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, SPO provides a crowdfunding investment software platform which Customer will access under authorization from Vendor; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire that SPO make such platform and related services available to Customer under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

Definitions

As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meaning:

a. “Content” means the visual information, documents, software, products, and services contained or made available to Customer in the course of using the Service (as defined 
hereinafter).

b. “Customer User Account” means the account maintained by Customer’s users which includes any related login credentials and certain Customer Data provided or submitted 
by Customer’s users in the course of using the Service.

c. “Customer Data” means any data, information, or material provided or submitted by Customer or by third-party users in the course of using the Service.

d. “Intellectual Property Rights” means any unpatented inventions, patent applications, patents, design rights, copyrights, trademarks, service marks, trade names, domain name 
rights, mask work rights, know-how and other trade secret rights, and all other intellectual property rights, derivatives thereof, and forms of protection of a similar nature 
anywhere in the world.

e. “SPO Technology” means all of SPO’s proprietary technology (including software, hardware, products, processes, algorithms, user interfaces, know-how, techniques, designs, 
and other tangible or intangible technical material or information) made available to Customer by SPO in providing the Service.

f. “Service(s)” means SPO’s crowdfunding investment platform (the “Software Platform”), developed, operated, hosted, and maintained by SPO, or ancillary online or offline 
products and services provided to Customer by SPO, to which Customer is being granted access under this Agreement, including the SPO Technology and the Content. The 
Services are further described in the documentation set forth in Appendix B.

g. “User(s)” means Customer employees, representatives, consultants, contractors, agents, or prospective investors who are authorized to use the Service and have been supplied 
user identifications and passwords by Customer (or by SPO at Customer’s request).

Provision of Services

a. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement (including any appendices), during the term of this Agreement, SPO agrees to provide the Services and provide 
authorization to Customer and its Users with access and rights to use the Services subject to the fees set forth on Appendix A, attached hereto.



b. Appendix A may be modified by the mutual written consent of the parties, in a form expressly amending such Appendices, to expand, limit or otherwise modify the scope the 
Services provided hereunder.

c. SPO will not provide any front-end web hosting services on the Customer’s website, but shall provide installation, maintenance, support, and other related hosting services to 
Customer as part of the Services and to be hosted on a subdomain of the Customer’s website.

d. Neither the execution of this Agreement nor anything in it shall obligate SPO to furnish any services beyond those described within this Agreement.

Access to Software Platform and Restrictions

a. SPO hereby authorizes Customer to access and use the Service, solely for Customer’s own business purposes, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. All rights 
not expressly granted to Customer are reserved by SPO.

b. Customer may not access the Service for purposes of obtaining competitive advantages, including, but not limited to, monitoring its availability, performance or functionality, or 
for any other benchmarking or competitive purposes.

Customer Responsibilities

a. Customer is responsible for all activity occurring under Customer’s User Accounts and shall abide by all applicable local, state, national, and foreign, laws, treaties and 
regulations in connection with Customer’s use of the Service, including those related to data security and privacy, international communications, and the transmission of 
technical or personal data.

b. Customer shall: (i) notify SPO immediately of any unauthorized use of any password or account or any other known or suspected breach of security; (ii) report to SPO 
immediately and use reasonable efforts to stop immediately any copying or distribution of Content that is known or suspected by Customer or Customer Users; and (iii) not 
impersonate another SPO user or provide false identity information to gain access to or use the Service.

c. Customer shall not (i) license, sublicense, sell, resell, transfer, assign, distribute, or otherwise commercially exploit or make available to any third party the Service or the 
Content in any way; (ii) modify or make derivative works based upon the Service or the Content; (iii) “frame” or “mirror” any Content on any other server or wireless or 
Internet-based device; or (iv) reverse engineer or access the Service in order to (a) build a competitive product or service, (b) build a product using similar ideas, features, 
functions or graphics of the Service, or (c) copy any ideas, features, functions or graphics of the Service.

d. Customer shall not: (i) send spam or otherwise duplicative or unsolicited messages in violation of applicable laws; (ii) send or store infringing, obscene, threatening, libelous, or 
otherwise unlawful or tortuous material, including material harmful to children or violative of third party privacy rights; (iii) send or store material containing software viruses, 
worms, Trojan horses, or other harmful computer code, files, scripts, agents, or programs; (iv) interfere with or disrupt the integrity or performance of the Service or the data 
contained therein; or (v) attempt to gain unauthorized access to the Service or its related systems or networks.

e. In connection with Customer’s use of the Services on Customer’s own front-end website, Customer’s front-end materials, web pages, media, and graphics used in connection 
with the Services shall prominently indicate that Vendor is providing the back-end Services by using the phrasing “POWERED BY SILICON PRAIRIE ONLINE” alongside the 
SPO logo, in a manner to be approved by Vendor prior to Customer’s use of the Services with any third parties.

Account Information and Customer Data

a. Customer, not SPO, shall have sole responsibility for the accuracy, quality, integrity, legality, reliability, appropriateness, and intellectual property ownership or right to use of 
all Customer Data, and SPO shall not be responsible or liable for the deletion, correction, corruption, destruction, damage, loss or failure to store any Customer Data. In the event 
this Agreement is terminated (other than by reason of Customer’s breach), SPO will make available to Customer a file of the Customer Data within thirty (30) days of 
termination if Customer so requests at the time of termination.
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b. SPO reserves the right to withhold, remove, and/or discard Customer Data without notice for any breach, including, without limitation, Customer’s non-payment. Upon 
termination for cause, Customer’s right to access or use Customer Data immediately ceases, and SPO shall have no obligation to maintain or forward any Customer Data.

Intellectual Property Ownership

a. SPO (and its affiliated entities, where applicable) shall retain all right, title, and interest, including all related Intellectual Property Rights, in and to the SPO Technology, the 
Content and the Service and any suggestions, ideas, enhancement requests, feedback, recommendations, or other information provided by Customer or any other party relating to 
the Service.

b. This Agreement is not a sale or license and does not convey to Customer any rights of ownership in or related to the Service, the SPO Technology or the Intellectual Property 
Rights owned by SPO. SPO’s name, SPO’s logo, and the product names associated with the Service are trademarks of SPO or third parties, and no right or license is granted to 
use them.

Third Party Goods and Services

a. Customer may enter into correspondence with, and utilize the services from, third party service providers whose services are embedded into, or linked from, our Service offering. 
Any such activity, and any terms, conditions, warranties, or representations associated with such activity, is solely between Customer and the applicable third party. SPO shall 
have no liability, obligation, or responsibility for any such correspondence, purchase, or utilization between Customer and any such third party. SPO does not endorse any sites 
on the Internet that are linked through the Service. In no event shall SPO be responsible for any content, products, or other materials on or available from such sites.

b. Customer acknowledges that certain third party providers of ancillary software, hardware, or services may require Customer’s agreement to additional or different license or 
other terms prior to Customer’s use of or access to such software, hardware or services.

Term and Termination

a. This Agreement is effective as of the Effective Date and will remain in effect until terminated by SPO or Customer within 30 days’ notice.

b. SPO may terminate Customer’s access to all or any part of the Services at any time, with or without cause, with or without notice, with immediate effect.

c. Any breach of Customer’s payment obligations or unauthorized use of the SPO Technology or Service will be deemed a material breach of this Agreement. SPO, in its sole 
discretion, may terminate Customer’s password, account or use of the Service if Customer breaches or otherwise fails to comply with this Agreement.

Payment of Fees

a. Customer shall make payment to SPO for the Services at the rates and terms agreed to in Appendix A of this Agreement.

b. All payment obligations are non-cancelable and all amounts paid are nonrefundable. Customer shall provide SPO with valid credit card, cash, check, crypto-currency or other 
approved payment information as a condition to signing up for the Service.

c. SPO will issue an invoice to Customer as set forth in Appendix A. SPO’s fees are exclusive of all taxes, levies, or duties imposed by taxing authorities, and Customer shall be 
responsible for payment of all such taxes, levies, or duties, excluding only U.S. (federal or state) taxes based solely on SPO’s income.
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d. Customer agrees to provide SPO with complete and accurate billing and contact information. This information includes Customer’s legal company name, street address, email 
address, and name and telephone number of an authorized billing contact. Customer agrees to update this information within thirty (30) days of any change to it. If the contact 
information Customer has provided is false or fraudulent, SPO reserves the right to terminate or suspend Customer’s access to the Service in addition to any other legal 
remedies.

e. If Customer believes its invoice is incorrect, Customer must contact SPO in writing within sixty (60) days of the invoice date of the invoice containing the amount in question to 
be eligible to receive an adjustment or credit.

Nonpayment and Suspension

a. In addition to any other rights granted to SPO herein, SPO reserves the right to suspend or terminate this Agreement and Customer’s access to the Service if Customer fails to 
timely pay Vendor as set forth in this Agreement. Customer will continue to be charged during any period of suspension. If Customer or SPO terminates this Agreement, 
Customer will be obligated to pay all remaining amounts owed to SPO in accordance with Sections 8 and 9 above.

b. SPO reserves the right to impose additional fees in the event Customer is suspended and thereafter requests reinstated access to the Service.

Representations and Warranties, Indemnification, and Disclaimers

a. Each party represents and warrants that it has the legal power and authority to enter into this Agreement. SPO represents and warrants that it will provide the Service in a manner 
consistent with general industry standards reasonably applicable to the provision thereof and that the Service will perform substantially in accordance with Appendix B under 
normal use and circumstances.

b. Customer represents and warrants that Customer has not falsely identified Customer nor provided any false information to gain access to the Service and that Customer’s billing 
information is correct.

c. Customer shall indemnify, defend, and hold SPO and its parent organizations, subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, governors, employees, attorneys, and agents harmless from and 
against any and all claims, costs, damages, losses, liabilities, and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and costs) arising out of or in connection with: (i) a claim alleging that use 
of the Customer Data infringes the rights of, or has caused harm to, a third party; (ii) a claim, which if true, would constitute a violation by Customer of Customer’s 
representations and warranties; or (iii) a claim arising from the breach by Customer or Customer Users of this Agreement, provided in any such case that SPO (a) gives written 
notice of the claim promptly to Customer; (b) gives Customer sole control of the defense and settlement of the claim (provided that Customer may not settle or defend any claim 
unless Customer unconditionally releases SPO of all liability and such settlement does not affect SPO’s business or Service); (c) provides to Customer all available information 
and assistance; and (d) has not compromised or settled such claim.

d. SPO shall indemnify, defend, and hold Customer and Customer’s parent organizations, subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, directors, governors, managers, employees, attorneys, and 
agents harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, damages, losses, liabilities, and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and costs) arising out of or in connection with: (i) 
a claim alleging that the Service directly infringes a copyright, patent issued as of the Effective Date, or a trademark of a third party; (ii) a claim, which if true, would constitute a 
violation by SPO of its representations or warranties; or (iii) a claim arising from breach of this Agreement by SPO; provided that Customer (a) promptly gives written notice of 
the claim to SPO; (b) gives SPO sole control of the defense and settlement of the claim (provided that SPO may not settle or defend any claim unless it unconditionally releases 
Customer of all liability); (c) provides to SPO all available information and assistance; and (d) has not compromised or settled such claim. SPO shall have no indemnification 
obligation, and Customer shall indemnify SPO pursuant to this Agreement, for claims arising from any infringement arising from the combination of the Service with any of 
Customer products, service, hardware or business process(s).
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e. SPO MAKES NO OTHER REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY, OR GUARANTY AS TO THE RELIABILITY, TIMELINESS, QUALITY, SUITABILITY, TRUTH, 
AVAILABILITY, ACCURACY, OR COMPLETENESS OF THE SERVICE OR ANY CONTENT. SPO DOES NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT (A) THE USE OF 
THE SERVICE WILL BE SECURE, TIMELY, UNINTERRUPTED, OR ERROR-FREE OR OPERATE IN COMBINATION WITH ANY OTHER HARDWARE, 
SOFTWARE, SYSTEM, OR DATA; (B) THE SERVICE WILL MEET CUSTOMER’S REQUIREMENTS OR EXPECTATIONS; (C) ANY STORED DATA WILL BE 
ACCURATE OR RELIABLE; (D) THE QUALITY OF ANY PRODUCTS, SERVICES, INFORMATION, OR OTHER MATERIAL PURCHASED OR OBTAINED BY 
CUSTOMER THROUGH THE SERVICE WILL MEET CUSTOMER’S REQUIREMENTS OR EXPECTATIONS; (E) ERRORS OR DEFECTS WILL BE CORRECTED; 
OR (F) THE SERVICE OR THE SERVER(S) THAT MAKE THE SERVICE AVAILABLE ARE FREE OF VIRUSES OR OTHER HARMFUL COMPONENTS. THE 
SERVICE AND ALL CONTENT IS PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER STRICTLY ON AN “AS IS” BASIS. ALL CONDITIONS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES, 
WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR NON-INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS, ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW BY SPO.

f. SPO’S SERVICES MAY BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS, DELAYS, AND OTHER PROBLEMS INHERENT IN THE USE OF THE INTERNET AND ELECTRONIC 
COMMUNICATIONS. SPO IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DELAYS, DELIVERY FAILURES, OR OTHER DAMAGE RESULTING FROM SUCH PROBLEMS.

Limitation of Liability

a. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY’S AGGREGATE LIABILITY EXCEED THE AMOUNTS ACTUALLY PAID BY AND/OR DUE FROM CUSTOMER IN THE 
TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE EVENT GIVING RISE TO SUCH CLAIM. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE 
TO ANYONE FOR ANY INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR OTHER DAMAGES OF ANY TYPE OR KIND 
(INCLUDING LOSS OF DATA, REVENUE, PROFITS, USE, OR OTHER ECONOMIC ADVANTAGE) ARISING OUT OF, OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH 
THIS SERVICE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE USE OR INABILITY TO USE THE SERVICE, OR FOR ANY CONTENT OBTAINED FROM OR 
THROUGH THE SERVICE, ANY INTERRUPTION, INACCURACY, ERROR, OR OMISSION, REGARDLESS OF CAUSE IN THE CONTENT, EVEN IF THE PARTY 
FROM WHICH DAMAGES ARE BEING SOUGHT HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

b. Certain states and/or jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion of implied warranties or limitation of liability for incidental, consequential, or certain other types of damages, so the 
exclusions set forth above may not apply to Customer.

Local Laws and Export Control; Securities Compliance

SPO makes no representation that the Service is appropriate or available for use in other locations. Customer is solely responsible for compliance with all applicable laws, including all 
securities state and federal securities laws, and without limitation export and import regulations of other countries.

Notice

SPO may give notice by means of a general notice on the Service, email to Customer address on record in SPO’s account information, or by written communication sent by first class 
mail or pre-paid post to Customer address on record in SPO’s account information. Such notice shall be deemed to have been given upon the expiration of 48 hours after mailing or 
posting (if sent by first class mail or pre-paid post) or 12 hours after sending (if sent by email). Customer may give notice to SPO (such notice shall be deemed given when received by 
SPO) at any time by any of the following: letter delivered by nationally recognized overnight delivery service or first class postage prepaid mail to SPO at the following address:

Silicon Prairie Portal & Exchange LLC
Attn: David V Duccini

475 Cleveland Ave Suite 315
St. Paul, MN 55104
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Modification to Terms

SPO reserves the right to modify the terms and conditions of this Agreement or its policies relating to the Service at any time, effective upon the posting of an updated version of this 
Agreement on the Service. Customer is responsible for regularly reviewing this Agreement. Continued use of the Service following a period of thirty (30) days after any such changes 
shall constitute Customer’s consent to such changes.

Assignment; Change in Control

This Agreement may not be assigned by Customer without the prior written approval of SPO, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, but may be assigned without Customer’s 
consent by SPO to (i) a parent or subsidiary, (ii) an acquirer of assets, or (iii) a successor by merger. Any purported assignment in violation of this section shall be void. Any actual or 
proposed change in control of Customer that results or would result in a direct competitor of SPO directly or indirectly owning or controlling 50 percent or more of Customer shall 
entitle SPO to terminate this Agreement for cause immediately upon written notice.

General

1. This Agreement shall be governed by Minnesota law and controlling U.S. federal law, without regard to the choice or conflicts of law provisions of any jurisdiction, and any 
disputes, actions, claims, or causes of action arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Service shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and 
federal courts located in Hennepin County, State of Minnesota.

2. No text or information set forth on any other purchase order, preprinted form, or document shall add to or vary the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If any provision of 
this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, then such provision(s) shall be construed, as nearly as possible, to reflect the 
intentions of the invalid or unenforceable provision(s), with all other provisions remaining in full force and effect. No joint venture, partnership, employment, or agency 
relationship exists between Customer and SPO as a result of this agreement or use of the Service. The failure of SPO to enforce any right or provision in this Agreement shall not 
constitute a waiver of such right or provision unless acknowledged and agreed to by SPO in writing. This Agreement comprises the entire agreement between Customer and SPO 
and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous negotiations, discussions or agreements, whether written or oral, between the parties regarding the subject matter contained herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Portal Agreement as of the Effective Date.

SILICON PRAIRIE ONLINE (“SPO”):

BY: /s/ David V Duccini
Name: David V Duccini
Title: Founder and CEO

CUSTOMER: Viroment Capital, LLC

By:
Name: Paul Koenig
Title: CEO
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APPENDIX A
Schedule of Fees

Customer use of portal:

Signup: $1,500 
Commission: 4 % Cash
Equity:

Commission will be paid out concurrently with all disbursements once campaign has reached its stated minimum target and as investors execute subscription agreements.
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APPENDIX B
Description / Documentation of Services

REG-CF Portal Hosting Package, Investor Residency Verification, Investment Tracking, and all other services as may be necessary.
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APPENDIX C
FBO Account Authorization Letter

Viroment Capital LLC (“Customer”) hereby Authorizes Silicon Prairie Holdings, Inc. (“SPO”) to initiate the creation of a bank account (the “FBO Account”) for the benefit of Customer 
at Sunrise Banks (“Bank”), pursuant to that certain Third Party Sender ACH Agreement between SPO and Bank dated July 21, 2017, in order to collect amounts contributed from 
investors to Customer to be held in escrow for the benefit of Customer. This authorization shall remain in full force and effect until SPO has received written notification from Customer 
of its termination in such time and in such manner as to afford SPO a reasonable opportunity to act on such notification.

ASSIGNMENT: Customer hereby assigns to SPO its rights and management of the FBO Account during the term of the engagement, which is defined as commencing from the effective 
date of the Offering with the Securities Exchange Commission (“SEC”) via FORM-C and concluding at the final close of its Offering. Customer expressly authorizes SPO to add its 
name to such agreement as an FBO. SPO will be granted “read-only” access to the escrow account for the sole purpose of monitoring deposits and reconciling them with investment 
commitments made on the funding portal.

AMENDMENTS: This portal agreement supersedes the Sunrise Bank Escrow agreement signed by Customer, namely Sections 4 & 5.

DISBURSEMENT: Customer understands that no funds can be disbursed at the sole direction of SPO via the Escrow Agent until all conditions have been satisfied:

1 The Customer raises its stated minimum amount as documented in its offering documents and at least 21 days have elapsed since offering was published on the SPO funding 
portal, and

2 The Customer has accepted signed subscription agreements, including via e-signature, from each of its investors.

SPO will aid in the collection of signed subscription agreements and verify receipt prior to the disbursements of any funds from the escrow account. Signed subscription agreements can 
be obtained through the portal using e-signatures. Customer will be responsible for placing a digital signature on file with SPO to be used for the sole and express purpose of 
countersigning subscription agreements on Customer’s behalf.

Customer understands that all funds disbursed will be subject to transfer via an approved payment method, including but not limited to ACH, bank draft or wire transfer and will be 
subject to any fees required per method, to be deducted from funds held in escrow.

RESCIND: Customer understands that investors have the right to rescind their investment pledges up to 48 hours prior to the close of the offering and receive a full refund of all funds 
without fee. SPO will direct Escrow Agent to return funds.

RETURNS: Customer understands that SPO will direct the Escrow Agent to return funds to investors when:

1 Investment commitments are cancelled per qualifying events under regulation crowdfunding

2 Customer does not complete offering

CHARGEBACKS: Customer understands that investors who fund their escrow pledges via ACH can refute such transactions (“CHARGEBACK”) for up to 60 days. In the event an 
investor initiates an ACH chargeback, Customer understands funds in the equivalent amount may be held back until the matter is cured at Customer’s expense.

RELEASE. Customer hereby further agrees to release, indemnify and hold harmless SPO as administrator of the FBO Account from any claim or demand arising out of the 
administration of the FBO Account.
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COMPLIANCE AND RECORD-KEEPING

Customer agrees:

(i) To be bound by the Rules of the National Automated Clearing House Association (“Rules”);

(ii) To assume the obligations and make the representation and warranties of an “Originator,” a “Third Party Service Provider” and/or a “Third Party Sender,” as the case may be 
and as such terms are defined under the Rules;

(iii) To receive and maintain proper authorization from the “Receiver” for each “Entry” initiated on behalf of the Customer, as such terms are defined under the Rules;

(iv) To be exposed to a limit and be subject to procedures for Third Party Sender to review and adjust the exposure limit periodically; and

(v) To allow Third Party Sender to conduct regular audits of the Customer.
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Consulting Services Agreement

Client: Viroment LLC

Thank you for choosing Prime Crowdfunding to advise and implement the marketing and promotion of your crowdfunding raise.

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on this date, December 26th, 2019 by and between Prime Crowdfunding (The Company) and Viroment (The Client) a limited liability company, 
with a mailing address of 11303 Harness Draw, Woodbury MN 55129 , and; Paul Koenig, CEO known collectively as “the client”

The Client and The Company agree as follows:

1. Services Overview

The services can be divided into two parts, the pre-campaign planning and strategy phase and the launch, marketing and promotion phase. Both types of services are detailed below:

As part of the the pre-campaign planning and stratgey phase, the company will provide:

1) Initial Assessment and Marketing Plan Development (10-12 hours)
2) Campaign and Document Development and Compliance (10-12 hours)
3) Launch Preparation and Final Review (14-18 hours)

As part of the launch, marketing and promotion phase, the company will provide:

1) Campaign Launch and Investor Lead Generation
2) Social Media and directeMail Marketing
3) Active Raise Coaching and ongoing Campaign evaluation
4) Deal Marketing and Advocacy and Support (My RED Social Network)

11



2. Client Requirements

Client agrees to provide the following items (Additional details in the campaign onboarding document):

1) Business plan... Executive Summary
2) Company financials and projections
3) Offering documents (PPM) and legal review
4) Accounting and financial review (if required)
5) All currently available digital marketing assets

3. Compensation and Payment

A. Consulting Fee: For the Services described in Section 1, Client will pay $6,000 in marketing consulting fees. $4,000 of the marketing Fees are due upon execution of this 
agreement. An additional $2,000 is due when the client reaches its minimum raise goal. Payment can be made by check or electronic transfer:

Electronic Payment Information: Wells Fargo
Account: 360 Agent LLC        Account #: 3383685017 Routing #: 121000248

B. Success Fee: Earned by the company for the successful fundraising (meeting minimum raise goal), Client will pay to The Company a success fee of 2% of the total amount 
raised. The 2% will be due from the client when the “minimum raise goal” has been met and the funds have been received by the client.

4. Agreement Term

This Agreement will commence on the effective date first set forth above and will continue for a minimum period of 180 days, and then will continue on a month to month basis 
unless otherwise terminated by The Company or Client or unless otherwise agreed to by The Company and the Client.

5. Termination

This agreement may not be terminated prior to 180 days after the date shown above by either party. In the event that the Client desires to terminate the Services hereunder, the Client 
must submit a written request to The Company at least seven (7) days prior to the desired date of termination. Written requests to terminate may be made by mail or e-mail. If Client 
chooses to terminate this agreement in writing, all monies owed to The Company will be due immediately and will be automatically charged to the Client’s payment method on file. 
Under no circumstances will The Company give refunds of the amount paid for the Services hereunder.
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6. Ownership of Materials

The Client shall retain the creative rights to all original materials, data and similar items, produced by The Company hereunder in connection with the Services under this agreement. 
All services and software used by The Company shall at all times be the sole property of The Company and under no circumstances shall Client have any interest in or rights to the 
title to such materials, or software. Client acknowledges that The Company may use and modify existing materials for Client’s benefit.

7. Proprietary Information and Use of Materials

A. Except as provided elsewhere in this Agreement, all information disclosed by one Party to the other Party, shall be deemed to be confidential and proprietary (“Proprietary 
Information”). Such Proprietary Information includes, without limitation, information regarding marketing, sales programs, sales volume, sales conversion rates, sales methods 
and processes, sales proposals, products, services, vendors, customer lists, training manuals, sales scripts, telemarketing scripts, names of investors, and customer information, 
operating procedures, pricing policies, strategic plans, intellectual property, information about a Party’s employees and other confidential or Proprietary Information belonging to 
or related to a Party’s affairs.

B. Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit or limit the receiving Party’s use of information that
can be demonstrated as: (a) previously known to the receiving Party, (b) independently developed by the receiving Party, (c) acquired from a third party not under similar 
nondisclosure obligations to the disclosing Party, or (d) acquired through the public domain through no breach by the receiving Party of this Agreement.

C. License. Client grants The Company a limited, nontransferable, nonexclusive license to copy, use, store, set up, publicly display, publicly perform and transmit any trade names, 
trademarks, service marks, copyrights, content, text, images, software, functionality, page and other design and layout, media and other materials therein and solely in connection 
with creation of the Campaign and direct response marketing in accordance with this Agreement. The Client may, at any time, revoke this license granted to The Company.

D. Portfolio Release. Client agrees that The Company has the right to use materials created pursuant to this Agreement for The Company’s portfolio, samples, self-promotion 
including advertising for The Company’s business including without limitation Facebook or Instagram, or any other social media platform. In the event Client wishes to exclude 
some specific materials from the release under this paragraph, or to limit the time period of such release, The Company and Client may agree in writing to such limitation.
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8. Additional Services

All services outside the scope of this Agreement that are requested by the Client and which The Company agrees to perform will be billed at a rate of [$150] per hour. Client will be 
notified and must approve in writing (email is sufficient) additional services before they will be performed, although The Company may not necessarily be able to inform Client in 
advance of the total cost of such additional services. Client will also be given opportunity to purchase additional services at package rates, when deemed appropriate by The 
Company.

9. Limitation of Liability

The Client shall not be liable for any incidental, consequential, indirect or special damages, or for any loss of profits or business interruptions caused or alleged to have been caused 
by the performance or nonperformance of the Services. Client agrees that, in the event The Company is determined to be liable for any such loss, Client’s sole remedy against The 
Company is limited to a refund of payments made by Client for said Services, less expenses paid to subcontractors or to third parties. The Company is not responsible for errors 
which result from faulty or incomplete information supplied to The Company by Client. Client also agrees to not seek damages in excess of the contractually agreed upon limitations 
directly or indirectly through suits by or against other parties.

10. No Guarantee

The Company does not warrant or guarantee any specific level of performance or results. Example of results obtained for other clients of The Company may be used as a marketing 
tool and shown to Client for demonstrative purposes only and should not be construed by Client as indicating any promised results or level of results. The Company shall, however, 
be required to provide quality hours of work in accordance under the schedule listed in paragraph 1 entitles “Services Overview.”

11. Communications

Client agrees the communication is to be via email only, the email address to use is bruce@primecrowdfunding.com.

12. Entire Agreement

This Agreement is the final, complete and exclusive Agreement of the Parties. No modification of or amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and signed by 
each of the Parties.
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13. Severability.

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, such provision shall be fully severable, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced 
as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of this Agreement, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

14. Headings.

The headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be used to limit or construe the contents of this Agreement.

15. Interpretation and Enforcement.

The parties understand and agree that the construction and interpretation of this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota In the event that either party must 
initiate legal action to enforce this Agreement, the Parties agree that the proper venue for such action shall be the courts of the State of Minnesota.

By their signatures below, the parties hereby understand and agree to all terms of this Agreement.

Client (Viroment) The Company (Prime Crowdfunding)

Name: Paul Koenig Name:

Title: Chief Manager Title:

Signature:  /s/ Paul Koenig Signature:

Date: 12-26-19 Date:
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SUBSCRIPTION ESCROW AGREEMENT

THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT, dated as of [                 ] (this “Agreement”), is entered into by and between Viroment Capital, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the 
“Company”) and Sunrise Banks, National Association as Escrow Agent hereunder (“Escrow Agent”).

RECITALS

A. The Company is offering a minimum of 250 (the “Minimum Number”) of its Promissory Notes (“Securities”) and a maximum (the “Maximum Number”) of 750 of its Securities 
to subscribers (the “Subscriber(s)”) at a purchase price of $1,000 per Security (the “Offering”);

B. The Offering is intended to be exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, by virtue of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A and Regulation Crowdfunding 
(§227.100 et seq.), promulgated thereunder (collectively, the “Offering Exemptions”); and

C. In compliance with the requirements of the Offering Exemptions, the Company has engaged Silicon Prairie Portal as a portal operator (the “Portal Operator”) in connection with 
the Offering to provide an Internet website meeting the requirements of the Offering Exemptions (the “Portal”) and the Company is providing for the escrow of subscription 
payments (the “Subscription Payments”) received through the Portal in an escrow account (the “Escrow Account”) until certain conditions have been met and the Company and 
Escrow Agent desire to enter into an agreement with respect thereto.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and covenants set forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereto, for themselves, their respective successors and assigns, hereby agree as follows:

1 Definitions.

The following terms shall have the following meanings when used herein:

“Escrow Funds” shall mean the funds deposited in escrow with Escrow Agent pursuant to this Agreement.

“Final Escrow Closing Date” shall mean no earlier than July 1, 2020, unless prior to such date, the Company provides written notice to Escrow Agent of the extension of the Final 
Escrow Closing Date in accordance with the Offering Documents and applicable federal and state laws to a date no later than [                ], in which case the Final Escrow Closing Date 
shall mean the extended date established by such extension. In the case of each such extension, the Company shall provide Escrow Agent with a written certification of the duly 
approved extended Final Escrow Closing Date that is signed on behalf of the Company by a duly authorized person so designated on Exhibit B hereto.

“Notice of Escrow Closing” shall mean a written certification in the form of Exhibit C hereto that is signed on behalf of the Company by a duly authorized person so designated on 
Exhibit B hereto, stating that the following conditions to closing on the Escrow Funds have been satisfied on or before the Final Escrow Closing Date:

(i) the Company shall have received and accepted subscriptions for the Minimum Number of Securities in the Offering; and

(ii) the Company is not subject to any stop order or other legal order prohibiting the Offering or the acceptance of the Subscription Payments.

“Notice of Failure of Escrow Closing” shall mean a written certification in the form of Exhibit D attached hereto that is signed on behalf of the Company by a duly authorized person so 
designated on Exhibit B hereto, stating that:

(i) the conditions to closing on the Subscription Payments being held in escrow have not been satisfied on or before the Final Escrow Closing Date;

(ii) there has not been and will not be an escrow closing on the Subscription Payments; and

(iii) directing Escrow Agent to return all Subscription Payments being held in the Escrow Account to the Subscribers.

“Offering Documents” shall mean the offering documents that have or will be provided to the Subscribers by the Company or the Portal Operator as required by the Offering 
Exemptions.

“Subscription Accounting” shall mean an accounting in spreadsheet format, prepared by the Company, indicating as of a particular date: (1) the unique identification number assigned to 
a Subscriber as part of the process of registration with the Portal, (2) the amount of the Subscription Payment(s) for the subscribed Securities, (3) the method of payment and date of 
deposit into the Escrow Account of the Subscription Payment relating thereto, including ACH information, and notations of any ACH return claims, (4) any withdrawal of any such 
subscription and by the Subscriber (if permitted), and (5) any rejection, cancellation or termination of any such subscription.
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2 Appointment of and Acceptance by Escrow Agent; Effectiveness of Agreement.

The Company hereby appoints Escrow Agent to serve as escrow agent hereunder, and Escrow Agent hereby accepts such appointment and agrees to act as Escrow Agent in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the earlier execution and delivery of this Agreement or anything in this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement shall only become 
effective and binding on the parties as of the date that (a) the Company pays the fees of Escrow Agent under Section 11 hereunder; and (b) the effective period of the Offering shall have 
begun under the Offering Exemption and the Company shall have confirmed in writing the first day of such effective period to Escrow Agent.

3 Deposits into Escrow.

a. The Offering shall be conducted exclusively through the Portal. The Company shall at all times comply with the requirements of the Offering Exemptions in the conduct of the 
Offering, including the offer and sale of Securities, the provision of the Offering Documents to Subscribers, the collection of Subscription Payments, and the timing, form and 
content of instructions to Escrow Agent hereunder. The Company, and not Escrow Agent, shall be responsible for determining whether the Company has received subscriptions 
for the Minimum Number of Securities in the Offering, whether the aggregate amount of Securities purchased by a Subscriber will cause such Subscriber to exceed the 
investment limits of the Offering Exemptions, the residency or any other qualification of any Subscriber, and all other matters relating to the conduct of the Offering in 
compliance with the Offering Exemptions.

b. The Company shall direct and shall ensure that the Portal shall direct all Subscribers to deliver all Subscription Payments directly to Escrow Agent for deposit into the Escrow 
Account. From time to time and upon request by Escrow Agent, the Company shall provide a Subscription Accounting to Escrow Agent. Unless otherwise agreed to by Escrow 
Agent, in no event shall any Subscriber be permitted to make any Subscription Payment by credit card payment and Escrow Agent shall only accept ACH credits or such other 
forms of electronic payment as may be permitted by Escrow Agent in its sole discretion. Subscription Payments shall be delivered to the Escrow Account in accordance with the 
instructions provided by Escrow Agent on or about the date of this Agreement. The Company shall ensure that the Portal functionality includes the ACH payment processing 
solution designated by Escrow Agent.

ALL FUNDS SO DEPOSITED SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE SUBSCRIBERS ACCORDING TO THEIR RESPECTIVE INTERESTS AND SHALL NOT BE 
SUBJECT TO ANY LIEN OR CHARGE BY ESCROW AGENT OR BY JUDGMENT OR CREDITOR’S CLAIMS AGAINST THE COMPANY OR THE PLATFORM 
OPERATOR UNTIL RELEASED TO THE COMPANY IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 4 HEREOF. IN NO EVENT SHALL ANY OF THE ESCROW FUNDS BE 
COMMINGLED WITH DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS OF ESCROW AGENT OR OTHERWISE TREATED AS A DEPOSIT ACCOUNT OF ESCROW AGENT OR REFLECTED 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ESCROW AGENT.

c. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the Company understands and agrees that all Subscription Payments received by Escrow Agent hereunder 
are subject to collection requirements of presentment and final payment, and that the funds represented thereby cannot be drawn upon or disbursed until such time as final 
payment has been made and is no longer subject to dishonor. Upon receipt, Escrow Agent shall process each Subscription Payment it receives for collection, and the proceeds 
thereof shall be held as part of the Escrow Funds and disbursed in accordance with Sections 4 and 5 hereof. If, upon presentment for payment, any Subscription Payment is 
dishonored, Escrow Agent shall notify the Company of such dishonor.

d. Escrow Agent shall provide the Company with online access to view information relating to the Escrow Account.

4 Disbursement of Funds to the Company.

a. Escrow Closing. Upon or within five (5) business days of the receipt of a Notice of Escrow Closing from the Company, a Subscription Accounting and such other certificates, 
notices or other documents as Escrow Agent shall reasonably require, Escrow Agent shall disburse to the Company the Escrow Funds then held by Escrow Agent (after 
deducting amounts paid or payable to Escrow Agent pursuant to Section 10 and Section 11 hereof and deducting amounts under Section 4(c) hereof).

b. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein provided, Escrow Agent shall be entitled to rely conclusively and without inquiry on any documents furnished to Escrow Agent 
by the Company which purport to be those documents contemplated by Section 4(a). Without limiting the foregoing, Escrow Agent shall have no duty or responsibility to review 
or seek to determine the truth, accuracy or sufficiency of any such documents. Escrow Agent shall have no duty to review any subscription agreement or Subscription 
Accounting, it being the understanding and agreement of the parties hereto that Escrow Agent shall disburse the Escrow Funds upon receipt of documents Escrow Agent 
believes, without any duty of further inquiry, to conform to the requirements set forth in Section 4(a).
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c. All disbursements to the Company pursuant to Section 4 shall be by wire transfer pursuant to wire instructions provided by the Company on or about the date hereof. All 
disbursements of Escrow Funds to the Company under Section 4 shall be made in U.S. Dollars and subject to the fees and claims of Escrow Agent and the Indemnified Parties 
(as defined below) pursuant to Section 10 and Section 11. In furtherance and not in limitation of the foregoing, from the disbursement to the Company under Section 4(a) hereof, 
Escrow Agent shall not disburse and shall hold in the Escrow Account all funds credited to the Escrow Account in the 60 days immediately prior to the delivery of the Notice of 
Escrow Closing and not otherwise returned to satisfy claims (including under Section 10(b) hereof) until the first business day following 61 days after delivery of the Notice of 
Escrow Closing.

d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Escrow Agent shall not disburse any Escrow Funds to the Company pursuant to Section 4(a) if Escrow Agent shall have received from the 
Company a Notice of Failure of Escrow Closing.

5 Return of Funds to Subscribers.

a. Failure to Reach Escrow Closing. If, by the date that is five (5) business days after the Final Escrow Closing Date, Escrow Agent shall not have received a Notice of Escrow 
Closing, then Escrow Agent shall (i) notify the Company in writing that the conditions set forth in Section 4(a) have not been satisfied, and (ii) as soon as practicable but no later 
than five (5) days following the Final Escrow Closing Date, return the Escrow Funds then held by Escrow Agent to the Subscribers in the same manner and to the same account 
from which the Escrow Funds originated or in a manner otherwise as determined by Escrow Agent, with each Subscriber receiving the amount of the Subscription Payment 
received from such Subscriber then held in the Escrow Account, without interest or deduction. If Escrow Agent shall at any time have received a Notice of Failure of Escrow 
Closing, Escrow Agent shall likewise return the Escrow Funds as described in Section 5(a)(ii). The Subscription Payment returned to each Subscriber shall be made in U.S. 
Dollars and be free and clear of any and all claims of the Company, the Portal Operator, or any of its respective creditors, including but not limited to, any and all fees and claims 
of Escrow Agent and the Indemnified Parties pursuant to Section 10 and Section 11.

b. Rejection or Cancellation of Any Subscription. As soon as practicable but no later than five (5) business days after receipt by Escrow Agent of written notice from the Company 
that the Company has rejected or intends to reject a Subscriber’s subscription (which shall be rejected in whole and not in part) or written notice from the Company that a 
Subscriber has cancelled or that the Company has cancelled such Subscriber’s subscription (which may be cancelled in whole and not in part), Escrow Agent shall return to the 
applicable Subscriber the amount of the Subscription Payment received from such Subscriber then held in the Escrow Account or which thereafter clears the banking system.

c. Abandonment or Termination of Offering; Insolvency of the Company or the Portal Operator. As soon as practicable but no later than five (5) business days after receipt by 
Escrow Agent of (i) notice from the Company that the Offering is being abandoned or terminated, or (ii) notice of the Company’s or the Portal Operator’s insolvency or 
bankruptcy, or the institution of bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, foreclosure, receivership, or liquidation proceedings by or against the Company or the Portal Operator 
and, if against the Company or the Portal Operator, such proceedings have, in the case of bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or liquidation, continued without termination 
for at least thirty (30) days and, in the case of foreclosure or receivership, continued without termination for at least thirty (30) days, then Escrow Agent shall, subject to 
applicable court orders, if any, return the Escrow Funds then held by Escrow Agent to the Subscribers the amount of the Subscription Payments received from such Subscribers 
then held in the Escrow Account, without interest or deduction. The Subscription Payment returned to each Subscriber shall be made in U.S. Dollars and be free and clear of any 
and all claims of the Company, the Portal Operator or any of their respective creditors, including but not limited to, any and all fees and claims of Escrow Agent and the 
Indemnified Parties pursuant to Section 10 and Section 11.

d. In connection with a return of Subscription Payments to Subscribers pursuant to this Section 5, the Company shall provide Escrow Agent with a Subscription Accounting and 
such other certificates, notices or other documents as Escrow Agent shall reasonably require. Under no circumstances in connection with Escrow Agent’s return of funds to 
Subscribers pursuant to this Section 5 shall a Subscriber receive from Escrow Agent less than the amount of all Subscription Payments made by the Subscriber.
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6 Suspension of Performance or Disbursement Into Court.

If, at any time, there shall exist any dispute between or among the Company, the Portal Operator, Escrow Agent, any Subscriber or any other person with respect to the holding or 
disposition of any portion of the Escrow Funds or any other obligations of Escrow Agent hereunder, or if at any time Escrow Agent is unable to determine, to Escrow Agent’s reasonable 
satisfaction, the proper disposition of any portion of the Escrow Funds or Escrow Agent’s proper actions with respect to its obligations hereunder, or if the Company has not within thirty 
(30) days of the furnishing by Escrow Agent of a notice of resignation pursuant to Section 8 hereof appointed a successor escrow agent to act hereunder, then Escrow Agent may, in its 
sole discretion, consult legal counsel selected by it and take either or both of the following actions:

a. suspend the performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement until such dispute or uncertainty shall be resolved to the sole satisfaction of Escrow Agent or until a 
successor escrow agent shall have been appointed (as the case may be); or

b. petition (by means of an interpleader action or any other appropriate method) any court of competent jurisdiction in Ramsey County, Minnesota or in any venue convenient to 
Escrow Agent, for instructions with respect to such dispute or uncertainty, and to the extent required or permitted by law, pay into such court all Escrow Funds without deduction 
for holding and disposition in accordance with the instructions of such court and Escrow Agent shall thereupon be discharged from all further duties under this Agreement.

Escrow Agent shall have no liability to the Company, the Portal Operator, any Subscriber or any other person with respect to any such suspension of performance or disbursement into 
court, specifically including any liability or claimed liability that may arise, or be alleged to have arisen, out of or as a result of any delay in the disbursement of funds held in the Escrow 
Funds or any delay in or with respect to any other action required or requested of Escrow Agent.

7 Investment of Funds.

Escrow Agent shall hold the Escrow Funds in a non-interest bearing demand deposit account maintained by Escrow Agent. The Escrow Funds shall not be invested in any other 
securities or accounts, including, without limitation, corporate equity or debt securities, repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, commercial papers, or municipal securities. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein provided, Escrow Agent shall have no duty by reason of this Agreement to prepare or file any Federal or state tax report or return with 
respect to the Escrow Account.

8 Resignation of Escrow Agent.

Escrow Agent may resign from the performance of its duties hereunder at any time by giving thirty (30) days’ prior notice to the Company. If, as of the effective date of such resignation, 
the Company has not appointed a successor escrow agent that has agreed in writing to such appointment, Escrow Agent shall return all Escrow Funds to Subscribers in accordance with 
Section 5(a)(ii). If, as of the effective date of such resignation, the Company has appointed a successor escrow agent that has agreed in writing to such appointment, Escrow Agent shall 
deliver to the Company and such successor escrow agent a full accounting of all Escrow Funds received, held and disbursed by Escrow Agent hereunder and shall deliver all Escrow 
Funds to the successor escrow agent. Upon the effectiveness of Escrow Agent’s resignation, Escrow Agent shall be discharged from its duties and obligations under this Agreement, but 
shall not be discharged from any liability hereunder for actions taken as Escrow Agent hereunder prior to such resignation. After any Escrow Agent’s resignation, the provisions of this 
Agreement shall continue to apply as to any actions taken or omitted to be taken by it while it was Escrow Agent under this Agreement, provided that any and all claims of Escrow 
Agent and the Indemnified Parties pursuant to Section 10 shall survive the termination of this Agreement or Escrow Agent’s resignation. Any corporation or association into which 
Escrow Agent may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated, or any corporation or association to which all or substantially all of the escrow business of Escrow 
Agent’s corporate trust line of business may be transferred, shall be Escrow Agent under this Agreement without further act.
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9 Duty and Liability of Escrow Agent.

Escrow Agent undertakes to perform only such duties as are expressly set forth herein and no duties shall be implied. The sole duty of Escrow Agent, other than as herein specified, shall 
be to receive the Escrow Funds and hold them subject to release, in accordance herewith. Escrow Agent shall have no duty to inquire or determine as to whether any person is complying 
with requirements of this Agreement or any applicable laws or regulations, including but not limited to federal or state securities laws, in connection with the Offering, including the 
depositing in the Escrow Account the Subscription Payments or the release of Escrow Funds pursuant to Section 4 or Section 5. Escrow Agent may conclusively rely upon and shall be 
protected in acting upon any statement, certificate, notice, request, consent, order or other document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party 
or parties, not only as to its due execution and the validity (including the authority of the person signing or presenting the same) and effectiveness of its provisions, but also as to the 
truth, sufficiency and acceptability of any information therein contained. Escrow Agent shall have no duty or liability to verify any such statement, certificate, notice, request, consent, 
order or other document, and its sole responsibility shall be to act only as expressly set forth in this Agreement and shall not be charged with knowledge or notice of any fact or 
circumstance not specifically set forth herein or provided to it pursuant to the express provisions hereof. Escrow Agent shall not be responsible for the sufficiency or accuracy of the 
form of, or the execution, validity, value or genuineness of, any document or property received, held or delivered by it hereunder, or of any signature or endorsement thereon, or for any 
lack of endorsement thereon, or for any description therein; nor shall Escrow Agent be responsible or liable to the other parties hereto or to anyone else in any respect on account of the 
identity, authority or rights of the persons executing or delivering or purporting to execute or deliver any document or property or this Agreement. Escrow Agent shall have no 
responsibility with respect to the use or application of any Escrow Funds released by Escrow Agent pursuant to the provisions hereof. Escrow Agent shall have no duty to solicit any 
Subscription Payment which may be due to be paid into the Escrow Account or to confirm or verify the accuracy or correctness of any amounts delivered into the Escrow Account or the 
calculation of the Minimum Number or the Maximum Number. Escrow Agent shall be under no obligation to institute or defend any action, suit or proceeding in connection with this 
Agreement, provided that, if it does so institute or defend any such action, suit or proceeding, it shall first be indemnified to its satisfaction. Escrow Agent shall have no duty to enforce 
any obligation of any person to make any payment or delivery, or to direct or cause any payment or delivery to be made, or to enforce any obligation of any person to perform any other 
act. Escrow Agent shall be under no liability to the other parties hereto or to anyone else by reason of any failure on the part of any party hereto or any maker, guarantor, endorser or 
other signatory of any document or any other person to perform such person’s obligations under any such document. Escrow Agent shall have no liability with respect to the transfer or 
distribution of any funds by Escrow Agent pursuant to wiring or transfer instructions provided to Escrow Agent by the Company or the Portal Operator or set forth in any Subscription 
Agreement. Except for this Agreement (including any instructions given to Escrow Agent pursuant this Agreement), Escrow Agent shall not be obligated to recognize any agreement 
between, among or with any or all of the persons referred to herein, notwithstanding that references thereto may be made herein and whether or not it has knowledge thereof. Escrow 
Agent may consult counsel selected by it in respect of any question arising under this Agreement and Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted in good faith upon 
advice of such counsel. The Company shall promptly pay, upon demand, the reasonable fees and expenses of any such counsel. In no event shall Escrow Agent be liable for incidental, 
indirect, special, consequential or punitive damages (including, but not limited to lost profits), even if Escrow Agent has been advised of the likelihood of such loss or damage and 
regardless of the form of action. Escrow Agent shall not be responsible for delays or failures in performance resulting from acts beyond its control, including without limitation acts of 
God, strikes, lockouts, riots, acts of war or terror, epidemics, governmental regulations superimposed after the fact, fire, communication line failures, computer viruses, power failures, 
earthquakes or other disasters. Escrow Agent is authorized, in its sole discretion, to comply with final orders issued or process entered by any court with respect to the Escrow Funds, 
without determination by Escrow Agent of such court’s jurisdiction in the matter. If any portion of the Escrow Funds is at any time attached, garnished or levied upon under any court 
order, or in case the payment, assignment, transfer, conveyance or delivery of any such property shall be stayed or enjoined by any court order, or in case any order, judgment or decree 
shall be made or entered by any court affecting such property or any part thereof, then and in any such event, Escrow Agent is authorized, in its sole discretion, to rely upon and comply 
with any such order, writ, judgment or decree which it is advised by legal counsel selected by it is binding upon it without the need for appeal or other action; and if Escrow Agent 
complies with any such order, writ, judgment or decree, it shall not be liable to any of the parties hereto or to any other person or entity by reason of such compliance even though such 
order, writ, judgment or decree may be subsequently reversed, modified, annulled, set aside or vacated unless such compliance is commenced following any appeal, order, injunction or 
other proceeding which stays the requirement of compliance with any such order, writ, judgment or decree. Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted by it in good 
faith except to the extent that a court of competent jurisdiction determines in a final non-appealable decision that Escrow Agent’s gross negligence or willful misconduct was the direct 
cause of any loss to the Company.

10 Indemnification of Escrow Agent; Limitation on Liability of the Company.

a. From and at all times after the date of this Agreement, the Company shall indemnify and hold harmless Escrow Agent and each director, officer, employee, attorney, agent, 
parent, subsidiary and affiliate, and any director, officer, employee, attorney or agent of any such parent or subsidiary or affiliate of Escrow Agent (collectively, the “Indemnified 
Parties”) from and against any and all actions, claims (whether or not valid), losses, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses of any kind or nature whatsoever, including without 
limitation reasonable attorneys’fees, costs and expenses, incurred by or asserted against any of the Indemnified Parties, whether direct, indirect or consequential, as a result of or 
arising from or in any way relating to any claim, demand, suit, action or proceeding (including any inquiry or investigation) by any person, including without limitation the 
Company and the Portal Operator, whether threatened or initiated, asserting a claim for any legal or equitable remedy against any person (whether or not an Indemnified Party) 
under any statute or regulation, including, but not limited to, any federal or state securities laws, or under any common law or equitable cause or otherwise, arising from or in 
connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, performance or failure of performance of this Agreement or any transactions contemplated herein, whether or not any 
such Indemnified Party is a party to any such suit, action or proceeding or the target of any such inquiry or investigation; provided, however, that no Indemnified Party shall have 
the right to be indemnified hereunder for any liability finally determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, subject to no further appeal, to have resulted solely from the gross 
negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified Party. The Company further agrees to indemnify each of the Indemnified Parties for all costs, including without limitation 
reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by such Indemnified Parties in connection with the enforcement of the Company’s indemnification obligations hereunder. Each Indemnified 
Party shall, in its sole discretion, have the right to select and employ separate counsel with respect to any action or claim brought or asserted against it, and the reasonable fees of 
such counsel shall be paid upon demand by the Company. The obligations of the Company under this Section 10 shall survive any termination of this Agreement and the 
resignation of Escrow Agent.
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b. In the event that Escrow Agent distributes Escrow Funds to the Company pursuant to this Agreement, and any Subscriber later has a claim to the return of funds which were 
distributed (including any ACH return claim), then, in addition to any other indemnification obligation of this Section 10, the Company shall indemnify Escrow Agent for any and 
all funds that Escrow Agent returns to the Subscribers in connection with such claim and any and all costs associated with returning those funds.

11 Fees and Expenses of Escrow Agent.

Escrow Agent shall be entitled to compensation as described in Exhibit A attached hereto, at such time or times as set forth therein, for the services provided by Escrow Agent 
hereunder. The obligations of the Company under this Section 11 shall survive any termination of this Agreement and the resignation of Escrow Agent. The fees agreed upon for 
services rendered hereunder are intended as full compensation for Escrow Agent’s services as contemplated by this Agreement; provided, however, that in the event Escrow Agent 
renders any material service not contemplated in this Agreement or there is any assignment of interest in the subject matter of this Agreement, or any material modification hereof, or if 
any material controversy arises hereunder, or Escrow Agent is made a party to any litigation pertaining to this Agreement, or the subject matter hereof, then Escrow Agent shall be 
reasonably compensated for such extraordinary services and reimbursed for all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, occasioned by any delay, controversy, litigation 
or event, and the same shall be recoverable from the Company. No fees and costs and expenses payable to Escrow Agent or an Indemnified Party under this Agreement shall be 
deducted, withheld or set off against the Escrow Funds, except upon disbursement of Escrow Funds to the Company pursuant to Section 4(a).

12 Representations and Warranties.

The Company makes the following representations and warranties to Escrow Agent:

a. It is duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the state of its incorporation or organization and has full power and authority to execute and deliver 
this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder.

b. This Agreement has been duly approved by all necessary action required for its part, has been executed by its duly authorized persons, and constitutes its valid and binding 
agreement, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

c. The execution, delivery, and performance by it of this Agreement will not violate, conflict with, or cause a default under its governing instruments, any applicable law or 
regulation, any court order or administrative ruling or decree to which it is a party or any of its property is subject, or any agreement, contract, indenture or other binding 
arrangement, including without limitation with respect to the Offering, to which it is a party or any of its property is subject.

d. It hereby acknowledges that the status of Escrow Agent is that of agent only for the limited purposes set forth herein, and hereby represents and covenants that no representations 
or implications shall be made that Escrow Agent has investigated the desirability or advisability of investment in the Securities or has approved, endorsed or passed upon the 
merits of the investments therein (and the Offering Documents shall contain a statement to that effect) and that the name of Escrow Agent has not and shall not be used in any 
manner in connection with the offer or sale of the Securities other than to state that Escrow Agent has agreed to serve as agent for the limited purposes set forth herein.

e. Each of the persons designated on Exhibit B hereto have been duly appointed to act as its respective authorized representatives hereunder and, individually and as authorized 
representatives, have full power and authority to execute and deliver any written notice, instruction or direction to amend, modify or waive any provision of this Agreement and to 
take any and all other actions including giving or confirming funds transfer instructions under this Agreement, all without further consent or direction from, or notice to, it or any 
other party provided that any change in designation of such authorized representatives shall be provided by written notice delivered to each party to this Agreement.

f. Other than the Subscribers, no party other than the parties hereto has, or shall have, any lien, claim or security interest in the Escrow Funds or any part thereof. No financing 
statement under the Uniform Commercial Code is on file in any jurisdiction claiming a security interest in or describing (whether specifically or generally) the Escrow Funds or 
any part thereof.

g. It possesses such valid and current licenses, certificates, authorizations or permits issued by the appropriate state, federal or foreign regulatory agencies or bodies necessary to 
conduct its business, to enter into and perform this Agreement, and in respect of the Offering; it has not received any notice of proceedings relating to the revocation or 
modification of, or non-compliance with, any such license, certificate, authorization or permit.

h. All of its representations and warranties contained herein are true and complete as of the date hereof and will be true and complete at the time of any disbursement of Escrow 
Funds.
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13 Security Advice Waiver.

The Company acknowledges that to the extent regulations of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency or other applicable regulatory entity grant it the right to receive brokerage 
confirmations for certain security transactions as they occur, the Company specifically waives receipt of such confirmations to the extent permitted by law. Escrow Agent will furnish 
the Company periodic cash transaction statements that include detail for all transactions made by Escrow Agent.

14 Identifying Information.

To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, Federal law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify, and record information that 
identifies each person who opens an account. For a non-individual person such as a business entity, a charity, a trust, or other legal entity, Escrow Agent requires documentation to verify 
its formation and existence as a legal entity. Escrow Agent may ask to see financial statements, licenses, identification and authorization documents from individuals claiming authority 
to represent the entity or other relevant documentation. The Company acknowledges that a portion of the identifying information set forth herein is being requested by Escrow Agent in 
connection with the USA Patriot Act, Pub.L.107- 56 (the “Act”), and the Company agrees to provide any additional information requested by Escrow Agent in connection with the Act 
or any similar legislation or regulation to which Escrow Agent is subject, in a timely manner. The Company represents and warrants that all identifying information provided to Escrow 
Agent, including any federal or state taxpayer identification number, is true and complete on the date hereof and will be true and complete at the time of any disbursement of Escrow 
Funds. The Company shall provide to Escrow Agent as requested such information relating to the Subscribers as may reasonably be required by Escrow Agent in connection with the 
Act or any similar legislation or regulation to which Escrow Agent is subject, in a timely manner.

15 Tax Reporting.

Escrow Agent shall have no responsibility for the tax consequences of this Agreement and hereby advises each party to consult with independent counsel concerning any tax 
ramifications. The Company shall prepare and file all required tax filings with the IRS and any other applicable taxing authority. Further, the Company agrees to (i) assume all 
obligations imposed now or hereafter by any applicable tax law or regulation with respect to payments or performance under this Agreement, (ii) request information from Escrow Agent 
in writing with respect to withholding and other taxes, assessments or other governmental charges, all of which shall be the responsibility of the Company, and advise Escrow Agent in 
writing with respect to any certifications and governmental reporting that may be required under any applicable laws or regulations, and (iii) indemnify and hold Escrow Agent harmless 
pursuant to Section 10 hereof from any liability or obligation on account of taxes, assessments, additions for late payment, interest, penalties, expenses and other governmental charges 
that may be assessed or asserted against Escrow Agent.

16 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.

In the event that any party hereto commences a lawsuit or other proceeding relating to or arising from this Agreement, the parties hereto agree that the courts in Ramsey County, 
Minnesota courts shall have sole and exclusive jurisdiction and shall be proper venue for any such lawsuit or judicial proceeding and the parties hereto waive any objection to such 
venue. The parties hereto consent to and agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the courts specified herein and agree to accept service or process to vest personal jurisdiction over them in 
any of these courts. 17 Notice.

Any notice and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been validly served, given or delivered five (5) days after deposit in the United States 
mails, by certified mail with return receipt requested and postage prepaid, when delivered personally, one (1) day after delivery to any overnight courier, or when transmitted by 
facsimile transmission facilities, and addressed to the party to be notified as follows:

If to the Company at:

[__________]

If to Escrow Agent:

Sunrise Banks, National Association 2300
Como Avenue Saint Paul, MN 55108
Fax: (651) 259-6808

Attention: Crowdfunding Escrow Services or to such other address as a party may designate for itself by like notice.
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18 Amendment or Waiver.

This Agreement may be amended, changed, waived, discharged or terminated only by a writing signed by the Company and Escrow Agent. No delay or omission by any party in 
exercising any right with respect hereto shall operate as a waiver. A waiver on any one occasion shall not be construed as a bar to, or waiver of, any right or remedy on any future 
occasion. This Agreement may not be assigned by any party without the prior written consent of the other parties.

19 Severability.

To the extent any provision of this Agreement is prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without 
invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions of this Agreement.

20 Governing Law.

This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Minnesota without giving effect to the conflict of laws principles thereof.

21 Entire Agreement.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties relating to the acceptance, collection, holding, investment and disbursement of the Escrow Funds and sets forth in 
their entirety the obligations and duties of Escrow Agent with respect to the Escrow Funds. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any other 
person any right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.

22 Binding Effect.

All of the terms of this Agreement, as amended from time to time, shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the respective successors and assigns of the 
Company and Escrow Agent.

23 Execution in Counterparts.

This Agreement and any written notice may be executed in two or more counterparts, which, when so executed, shall constitute one and the same agreement or notice.

24 Termination.

Upon the first to occur of the disbursement of all amounts in the Escrow Account pursuant to Section 4 or 5 hereof or deposit of all amounts in the Escrow Account into court pursuant to 
Section 6 hereof, this Agreement shall terminate and Escrow Agent shall have no further responsibilities whatsoever with respect to this Agreement or the Escrow Funds.
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25 Publicity.

No party will (a) use any other party’s proprietary indicia, trademarks, service marks, trade names, logos, symbols, or brand names, or (b) otherwise refer to or identify any other party in 
advertising, publicity releases, or promotional or marketing publications, or correspondence to third parties without, in each case, securing the prior written consent of such other party.

26 WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY.

EACH PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT THAT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY ON ANY CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM, SETOFF, 
DEMAND, ACTION OR CAUSE OF ACTION (1) ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR (2) IN ANY WAY IN CONNECTION WITH OR 
PERTAINING OR RELATED TO OR INCIDENTAL TO ANY DEALINGS OF THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR 
THE EXERCISE OF ANY SUCH PARTY’S RIGHTS AND REMEDIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR THE CONDUCT OR THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES TO 
THIS AGREEMENT, IN ALL OF THE FOREGOING CASES WHETHER NOW EXISTING OR HEREAFTER ARISING AND WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT OR 
OTHERWISE. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT EACH HAS REVIEWED OR HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
REVIEW THIS WAIVER WITH ITS RESPECTIVE LEGAL COUNSEL, AND THAT IT KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ITS JURY TRIAL RIGHTS 
FOLLOWING CONSULTATION WITH SUCH LEGAL COUNSEL. IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE FILED AS A CONSENT BY ALL 
PARTIES TO A TRIAL BY THE COURT.

[Signature page follows.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed and effective as of the date first above written.

COMPANY:

VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

ESCROW AGENT:

Sunrise Banks, National Association

By: /s/ Jason Scott
Name: Jason Scott
Its: VP - Regional Market Manager
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Financial statements of:

VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC
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Suite 1600
100 Washington Avenue South 
Minneapolis, MN 55401-2192

P 612.332.5500 F 612.332.1529
www.sdkcpa.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT

To the Members
Viroment Capital, LLC
Woodbury, MN

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Viroment Capital, LLC, which comprise the balance sheet as of February 7, 2020, and the statement of operations and cash 
flows for the period from January 27, 2020 (date of inception) to February 7, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical 
procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of Company management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression 
of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review 
Services Committee of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting 
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to these financial statements for it to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

February 10, 2020

Service      Dedication      Knowledge



VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC BALANCE SHEET
(See Independent Accountant’s Review Report) FEBRUARY 7, 2020

Assets:
Cash $ 200
Finance costs in-process 18,000

Total assets $ 18,200

Liabilities and members’ deficit:
Accrued expenses $ 14,000
Due to related party 5,000

Total liabilities 19,000

Members’ deficit (800)

Total liabilities and members’ deficit $ 18,200

See notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND MEMBERS’ DEFICIT
VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC PERIOD FROM JANUARY 27, 2020 (DATE OF INCEPTION)
(See Independent Accountant’s Review Report) TO FEBRUARY 7, 2020

Expenses, general and administrative & net loss $ (1,000)

Members’ equity, beginning -

Member capital contributions during the period 200

Members’ deficit, ending $ (800)

See notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC PERIOD FROM JANUARY 27, 2020 (DATE OF INCEPTION)
(See Independent Accountant’s Review Report) TO FEBRUARY 7, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (1,000)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash from operating activities:

Expense paid by related party 1,000

Net cash provided by operating activities -

Cash flows provided by financing activities, member contributions 200

Net change in cash 200

Cash, beginning

Cash, ending $ 200

Supplemental disclosure of non cash financing activities:
Finance costs in-process:

Accrued $ 14,000
Paid by related party  $ 4,000

See notes to financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VIROMENT CAPITAL, LLC PERIOD FROM JANUARY 27, 2020 (DATE OF INCEPTION)
(See Independent Accountant’s Review Report) TO FEBRUARY 7, 2020

1. Nature of business and significant accounting policies:

Nature of business:

Viroment Capital, LLC (the Company) was formed on January 27, 2020 and plans to organize barn build packages for the pork industry and lease the barns to the hog growers. The 
barns will be primarily financed through bank and other financing. The Company does not have revenue to date and has not commenced business operations.

Management plans:

The Company currently has no operations, and is planning to raise crowdfunding debt and capital from member contributions. Continuing as a going concern is dependent upon 
raising funds sufficient for management to execute its plan to bring the company into commercial and sustainable viability.

Income taxes:

The Company has been organized as a limited liability company. As such, the Company is treated as a partnership for income tax purposes. The Company is not taxed as a separate 
entity; rather, the income or loss of the Company is included in its members’ individual income tax returns. Therefore, no provision for income taxes is included in these financial 
statements. The Company follows guidance regarding the recognition and measurement of uncertain tax positions.

Finance costs in process:

Finance costs in process consist of fees related to debt financing that has not closed as of the balance sheet date. These costs will offset debt obtained in the future. Additional fees 
may be due as part of success fees for the raising the debt.

Accounting estimates:

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing the financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and 
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary 
from the estimates that were used.

Subsequent events:

In preparing this financial statement, the Company has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through February 10, 2020, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued.

2. Due to related party:

Due to related party consists of funds paid on behalf of the Company by a related party for organization and finance costs. These amounts are due on demand. The related party is an 
entity that is owned by one of the Company’s members.
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